
1

City of Kelowna
Regular Council Meeting

AGENDA

Monday, April 8, 2013

1:30 pm

Council Chamber

City Hall, 1435 Water Street

Pages

1. Call to Order
This meeting is open to the public and all representations to Council form part of the
public record. A live audio feed is being broadcast and recorded by CastaNet and a
delayed broadcast is shown on Shaw Cable.

2. Confirmation of Minutes 6 - 20
Regular PM Meeting - March 18, 2013

Regular PM Meeting - March 25, 2013

3. Public in Attendance

3.1 Rotary Centre for the Arts - Annual Report 21 - 28
To update Council on the activities of the Rotary Centre for the Arts.

4. Unfinished Business

4.1 Rezoning Application No. Z12-0039, Supplemental Report – Westcorp
Properties Inc., Mobile Home Relocation Plan, 3787, 3791 & 3795 Lakeshore
Road

29 - 32

To report back to Council with regards to clarification on the intent of Council
Policy No. 229 – Mobile Home Park Redevelopment and Option #4 of the
applicant’s relocation plan.

4.1.1 Bylaw No. 10817 (OCP12-0008) - Westcorp Properties Inc., 3787, 3791
and 3795 Lakeshore Road

33 - 35

To give Bylaw No. 10817 second and third reading.

4.1.2 Bylaw No. 10812 (TA12-0007) - Westcorp Properties Inc., New CD 24
Comprehensive Development Zone 24 - Zoning Bylaw No. 8000

36 - 79

To give Bylaw No. 10812 second and third reading.



2

4.1.3 Bylaw No. 10818 (Z12-0039) - Westcorp Properties Inc., 3787, 3791
and 3795 Lakeshore Road

80 - 81

To give Bylaw No. 10818 second and third reading.

5. Development Application Reports & Related Bylaws

5.1 Bylaw No. 10837 (OCP13-0001) - Graeme James, 1242-1244 Pheasant Street 82 - 83
Requires a majority of all members of Council (5).

To give first reading consideration to the Bylaw associated with Official
Community Plan Bylaw Amendment Application No. OCP13-0001 (Bylaw No.
10837) for the properties located at 1242-1244 Pheasant Street.

5.1.1 Bylaw No. 10838 (Z13-0002) - Graeme James, 1242-1244 Pheasant
Street

84 - 85

To give first reading consideration to the Bylaw associated with
Rezoning Application No. Z13-0002 (Bylaw No. 10838) for the
properties located at 1242-1244 Pheasant Street.

5.2 Rezoning Application No. Z13-0012 - Blenk Development Corp., Various Wilden
Properties

86 - 91

The Phase 2D rezoning application is to deal with the broad zoning
designations that have shifted slightly now that detailed road and lot layouts
have been established.

5.2.1 Bylaw No. 10839 (Z13-0012) - Blenk Development Corp, Various
Wilden Properties

92 - 93

To give Bylaw No. 10839 first reading.

5.3 Official Community Plan Bylaw Amendment Application No. OCP12-0015 -
0754028 BC Ltd., 526 Doyle Avenue & 1368 St. Paul Street

94 - 162

To consider an OCP amendment to exclude the development proposed at 526
Doyle Avenue and 1368 St. Paul Street from the OCP’s Building Height Policy
in order to permit a 65m (22 storey) and 88m (30 storey) 2 tower, mixed use
development where the City Centre Building Height Map allows 76.5m (~26
storeys); and to permit a 30 storey mixed use development with two towers
having a separation of 32.0m where the minimum tower separation for a
project with a floor plate greater than 697m² is 36.5m.

5.3.1 Bylaw No. 10825 (OCP12-0015) - 0754028 BC Ltd., 526 Doyle Avenue
& 1368 St. Paul Street

163 - 163

Requires a majority of all Members of Council (5).

To give Bylaw No. 10825 first reading.



3

5.4 Official Community Plan Bylaw Amendment Application No. OCP13-0002,
Rezoning Application No. Z13-0003 and Text Amendment Application No.
TA13-0004 - Protech Consultants Ltd.,1760, 2025 & 2137 Quail Ridge Blvd.

164 - 183

To amend the Official Community Plan future land use designations (Map 4.1)
and the existing line work from the "Resource Protection Area", and
"Industrial" designations to a largely industrial and commercial designation,
with the remainder designated for Parks & Open Space. The OCP amendment
is proposed in support of a rezoning to the CD15 - Airport Business Park zone.
Further, to amend Official Community Plan Map 5.8 – Urban Design
Development Permit Area Map by adding the CD15 – Airport Business Park zone
as a ‘General Commercial & Industrial DP Area’ and to amend Table 4.2 by
removing reference to a Pier Mac Area Structure Plan. Additionally, it is
proposed that the subject property be rezoned from the A1- Agriculture 1,
CD15 - Airport Business Park, I5 - Extraction, and P3 - Parks & Open Space
zones (current) to the CD15 - Airport Business Park and P3 - Parks and Open
Space zones (proposed). The proposed CD15 rezoning is in support of a
proposed 51 lot subdivision containing one commercially zoned property and
50 industrially zoned properties. The applicants are concurrently proposing to
amend the CD15 zone to include ‘Breweries and Distilleries, Major’ as a
permitted “Principal Use” within the areas designated as “Industrial” in the
CD15 – Airport Business Park zone. Finally, to amend the CD15 – Airport
Business Park zone by replacing existing Map 1 (Airport Business Park Phase 1
& 2 Zoning Plan) with a revised “Map 1”.

5.4.1 Bylaw No. 10832 (OCP13-0002) - Protech Consultants Ltd., 1760, 2025
& 2137 Quail Ridge Road

184 - 187

Requires a majority of all Members of Council (5).

To give Bylaw No. 10832 first reading.

5.4.2 Bylaw No. 10833 (TA13-0004) - Protech Consultants Ltd., CD15
Airport Business Park

188 - 188

To give Bylaw No. 10833 first reading.

5.4.3 Bylaw No. 10834 (Z13-0003) - Protech Consultants Ltd., 1760, 2025 &
2137 Quail Ridge Road

189 - 189

To give Bylaw No. 10834 first reading.

5.5 Bylaw No. 10703 (OCP11-0018) - JB Developments Inc., 373-375 Fizet Avenue 190 - 190
Requires a majority of all Members of Council (5).

To adopt Bylaw No. 10703.



4

5.5.1 Bylaw No. 10704 (Z11-0090) - JB Developments Inc., 373-375 Fizet
Avenue

191 - 191

To adopt Bylaw No. 10704.

5.5.2 Development Permit Application No. DP12-0171 - JB Developments
Inc., 373-375 Fizet Avenue

192 - 206

To consider a Development Permit for the form and character of the
proposed four-plex housing conversion.

5.6 Rezoning Application No. Z10-0091, Extension Request - Siegrfied Schulz, 196
Cariboo Road

207 - 209

To extend the deadline for adoption of the Zone Amending Bylaw from
October 19, 2012 to October 19, 2013.

6. Bylaws for Adoption (Development Related)

6.1 Bylaw No. 10791 (OCP12-0018) - The Creeks Kelowna, (N of) Steele Road &
1450 Steele Road

210 - 212

Requires a majority of all members of Council (5).

To consider adoption of Bylaw No. 10791 being OCP12-0018 in order to change
the future land use designation to accommodate the proposed single family
subdivision located in “The Ponds” neighbourhood and to further enhance the
neighbourhood’s natural features and trail infrastructure.

6.1.1 Bylaw No. 10792 (Z12-0058) - The Creeks Kelowna, (N of) Steele Road
and 1450 Steele Road

213 - 215

To consider adoption of Bylaw No. 10792 being Z12-0058 in order to
rezone the subject properties to accommodate the proposed single
family subdivision located in “The Ponds” neighbourhood and to
further enhance the neighbourhood’s natural features and trail
infrastructure.

6.2 Bylaw No. 10796 - City of Kelowna Text Amendment Application No. TA12-
0013, Text Amendments to Zoning Bylaw No. 8000 (Carriage House)

216 - 220

To consider adoption of Bylaw No. 10796, being Text Amendment Application
No. TA12-0013 – Text Amendments to Zoning Bylaw No. 8000 – Carriage House.

6.3 Bylaw No. 10801 - City of Kelowna Text Amendment No. TA12-0010, Amending
Section 14, Commercial Zone

221 - 222

To consider adoption of Bylaw No. 10801, being Text Amendment Application
No. TA12-0010 – Text Amendments to Zoning Bylaw No. 8000 – Section 14 –
Commercial Zone.

7. Non-Development Reports & Related Bylaws



5

7.1 Licence and Management Agreement – Downtown Marina 223 - 305
To obtain Council approval of the Licence and Management Agreement.

8. Bylaws for Adoption (Non-Development Related)

8.1 Bylaw No. 10814 – Amendment No. 22 to Traffic Bylaw No. 8120 306 - 310
To consider adoption of Bylaw No. 10814 being Amendment No. 22 to Traffic
Bylaw No. 8120.

9. Mayor and Councillor Items

10. Termination



6



7



8



9



10



11



12



13



14



15



16



17



18



19



20



21



22



23



24



25



26



27



28



REPORT TO COUNCIL 
 
 
 

Date: April 3rd, 2013 

RIM No. 1250-30 

To: City Manager 

From: Land Use Management, Community Sustainability (AW) 

Application: OCP12-0006 / TA12-0007 / Z12-0039 Owner: 
Westcorp On The Lake Inc.,  

Inc. No. A75763 

Address: 3787, 3791, 3795 Lakeshore Road Applicant: Westcorp Properties Inc. 

Subject: Supplemental Report – Mobile Home Relocation Plan  

Existing OCP Designation: 
Mixed Use Tourism / Multiple Unit Residential - Medium Density 
/ Multiple Unit Residential - Low Density / Major Park & Open 
Space 

Proposed OCP Designation: 

 
Mixed Use Tourism / Multiple Unit Residential - High Density / 
Multiple Unit Residential - Medium Density / Major Park & Open 
Space 

Existing Zone: 
 
C1 – Local Commercial, C9 – Tourist Commercial, RM7 – Mobile 
Home Park and RR3 – Rural Residential 3 

Proposed Zone: CD24 - Comprehensive Development 24 zone (newly created) &  
P3 – Parks & Open Space 

 

1.0 Recommendation 

That Council receives for information the supplemental report from the Land Use Management 
Department dated April 3rd, 2013 with respect to clarification on Application No’s. OCP12-0006, 
TA12-0007 & Z12-0039. 

2.0 Purpose  

To report back to Council with regards to clarification on the intent of Council Policy No. 229 – 
Mobile Home Park Redevelopment and Option #4 of the applicant’s relocation plan.  

3.0 Land Use Management  

The intent of Council Policy No. 229 is to ensure that residents of Mobile Home Parks are dealt 
with in a fair and transparent manner when the property is under a redevelopment proposal. As 
per the applicant’s relocation strategy, Westcorp has relocated approximately 80% of the mobile 
home park tenants prior to Council’s consideration of the land use.  Accordingly, given the four 
available relocation options for all of the impacted residents, the objectives of Council Policy 229 
are believed to be satisfied.    

29



OCP12-0006 / TA12-0007 / Z12-0039 – Page 2 

 
 

4.0 Proposal 

Relocation Plan 

Over the past few years the applicant has worked to relocate the Hiawatha mobile home park 
tenants, when the process began there were a total of 94 units and currently 18 units remain 
onsite. This has been achieved through passive acquisitions as tenants were interested and 
willing to consider the sale of their mobile home. As part of the relocation plan the applicant is 
committed to actively working with the remaining tenants should the development proposal 
receive Council endorsement. As outlined in the applicant’s ‘Relocation Plan for Hiawatha Mobile 
Home Owners’ the applicant has committed that:  

Each existing mobile home owner will be paid the 12 months’ value of their pad rent 
(approximately $5,000) and will be given 12 months’ notice to vacate the Hiawatha Mobile Home 
Park upon the Effective Notice Date (as per provincial law). Each owner can then choose one 
option from the following four relocation options:  
 
Option 1: Westcorp will relocate the mobile home.  

 Westcorp will assume the cost of relocation (and reconnection to services) of any 
approved-for-transport mobile home to anywhere in BC or Alberta.  

 Compensation: 12 months’ pad rent (approximately $5,000) + moving costs + a lump sum 
to equal a combined minimum value of $25,000.  

 
Option 2: Westcorp will purchase the mobile home.  

 Westcorp will purchase the mobile home and will assume responsibility for the cost of 
demolition and removal.  

 Current average total compensation amount is $31,989.  

 For those owners who choose to sell after the Effective Notice Date, the 12 months’ pad 
rent already paid will be factored into the purchase price in order that a consistent 
purchase practice will be maintained for all residents. (The assurance that monetary 
settlements for mobile home sales will be consistent for all residents of the Park has 
been very important for Hiawatha residents who have already relocated because those 
residents do not want to feel penalized for choosing to relocate sooner than other 
residents within the Park.) If Westcorp cannot, or chooses not to, resell a mobile home 
after it has been purchased from the Hiawatha owner, that owner may relocate or salvage 
the mobile home if they so choose, at their cost.  

 
Option 3: Westcorp will offer Hiawatha residents an option to purchase a housing unit within 
the new development.  

 The Hiawatha mobile home owner will be offered a five (5) percent reduction of the list 
price up to a maximum of $25,000 on any new housing unit for sale by Westcorp, or any 
other development company which is affiliated with Westcorp, located within the City of 
Kelowna. The purchase discount will be a one-time offer.  

 Compensation: 12 month’s pad rent + $25,000 to a minimum combined total of $30,000.  
 
Option 4: Westcorp will provide Hiawatha residents with an affordable rental housing option.  

 The Hiawatha mobile home owner will be provided a rental unit at a rate consistent with 
the mobile home owner’s current housing costs. Determination of the rent rate can be 
vetted on an ongoing basis by an outside agency deemed appropriate by the City of 
Kelowna, and there shall be no time limit on how the subsidy can apply to that individual. 

30



OCP12-0006 / TA12-0007 / Z12-0039 – Page 3 

 
 

Until such time as a unit is available within the development, a subsidized unit will be 
provided elsewhere in the community. 

 
Additionally, Seniors Outreach will be contracted by Westcorp to assess the needs of each 
Hiawatha mobile home owner who wishes to choose Option 4 of the Relocation Plan. The mobile 
home owner’s current housing costs (inclusive of things such as utilities, taxes, etc) will be 
determined, and a social worker will provide recommendations to Westcorp about what rent 
subsidy is required for that individual. The social worker will also look at all other means of 
assistance that the mobile home owner might be eligible for (and not currently taking advantage 
of). The social worker will determine what needs to happen in terms of the individual’s 
relocation and will create a plan for how that process will unfold.   

Report prepared by: 

     
Alec Warrender, Land Use Planner  
 

Reviewed by:    Danielle Noble, Manager, Urban Land Use 
 

Approved for Inclusion:   Doug Gilchrist, A. General Manager, Community Sustainability 

 

Attachments: 

Council Policy 229 

31



POLICY 229 

 

Council Policy 
Mobile Home Park Redevelopment 

APPROVED February 8, 1993 

City of Kelowna 
1435 Water Street  
Kelowna, BC  V1Y 1J4   
250 469-8500 
kelowna.ca 

RESOLUTION:  R375/10/04/26 
REPLACING:  S120/93/02/08 
DATE OF LAST REVIEW:  April 2010 
 
  
1. All Tenants affected by any proposed mobile home park redevelopment be advised by the owner that an 

application for a mobile home site redevelopment has been made. 

2. The Owners of any proposed mobile home park site redevelopment include in their zoning and development 
application any proposals for the relocation of persons occupying the current mobile home park site. 

3. The Owners of any mobile home park site proposing to redevelop to another residential zone, provide present 
tenants with a first refusal to purchase prior to giving notice to tenants that they must vacate the mobile home 
park site. 

4. The applicant of any mobile home park site undergoing redevelopment provide all tenants of the park with a 
letter at least 10 days prior to the matter being presented to Council for their consideration.  This letter would 
advise the tenants of the date and time of the Council Meeting when such application is to be considered, and 
that any tenants who deem their interest to be affected by such redevelopment may appear before Council and 
express their views regarding this redevelopment. 

5. That any rezoning of existing mobile home parks where non-CSA approved or older mobile or manufactured 
homes are located, will not be considered for rezoning until a viable relocation plan for affected units is in place. 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
REASON FOR POLICY  
 Policy established because of concern for people being displaced when redevelopment of mobile home park sites. 

LEGISLATIVE AUTHORITY 
 Council Resolution. 

PROCEDURE FOR IMPLEMENTATION 
 Through the Land Use Management Department as applications are received. 

 

 32



CITY OF KELOWNA 
 

BYLAW NO. 10817 
 

Official Community Plan Amendment No. OCP12 – 0006 
Westcorp on the Lake Inc. No. A75763  
3787, 3791 and 3795 Lakeshore Road 

 
WHEREAS Council wishes to adopt certain text amendments to Bylaw No. 10500 - Kelowna 
2030 - Official Community Plan; 
 
AND WHEREAS Council may adopt an official community plan by bylaw and each reading of 
the bylaw must receive an affirmative vote of a majority of all members of Council; 
 
AND WHEREAS after first reading of the bylaw and before third reading of the bylaw, Council 
held a public hearing on the proposed amendments to the official community plan in 
accordance with Sections 890 through 894 of the Local Government Act; 
 
NOW THEREFORE the Municipal Council of the City of Kelowna, in open meeting assembled, 
enacts as follows: 

 

1. THAT Map 4.1 - GENERALIZED FUTURE LAND USE of “Kelowna 2030 – Official 
Community Plan Bylaw No. 10500” be amended by changing the Generalized Future 
Land Use designation for Lot 2, D.L. 134, ODYD, Plan 3420 Except Parcel A (Plan B6180 
and Plan H9673), located at 3791 Lakeshore Road; Lot 3, DL 134, ODYD, Plan 3420 
Except Plan H9673, located at 3795 Lakeshore Road, and Lot B, D.L. 134, ODYD, Plan 
12063 located at 3787 Lakeshore Road, Kelowna B.C. from the Mixed Use Tourism / 
Multiple Unit Residential - Medium Density / Multiple Unit Residential - Low Density / 
Major Park & Open Space to the Mixed Use Tourism / Multiple Unit Residential - High 
Density / Multiple Unit Residential - Medium Density / Major Park & Open Space, as 
shown on Map “A” attached to and forming part of this bylaw; 
 

2.  AND THAT Chapter 5 – Development Process, Objective 5.5 Ensure appropriate and 
context sensitive built form, Policy .1 Building Height, OTHER URBAN CENTRES, 
Elsewhere be amended by adding to the table titled, “Policy .1 Building Heights Does 
Not Apply to the following:” the following civic and legal addresses: 

  

3787 Lakeshore Road Lot B, D.L. 134, ODYD, Plan 12063 

3791 Lakeshore Road Lot 2, D.L. 134, ODYD, Plan 3420 Except 
Parcel A (Plan B6180 and Plan H9673) 

3795 Lakeshore Road Lot 3, DL 134, ODYD, Plan 3420 Except Plan 
H9673 

 
 
3.   This bylaw shall come into full force and effect and is binding on all persons as and 

 from the date of adoption. 
 
 
 
 

33



Read a first time by the Municipal Council this  11th day of March, 2013. 

 
 
Considered at a Public Hearing on the 
 
 
Read a second and third time by the Municipal Council this 
 
 
Adopted by the Municipal Council of the City of Kelowna this 
  
     

 
Mayor 

 
 

City Clerk 
  

34



Bylaw No. 10817 – Page 3 
 

35



Schedule ‘B’ – Comprehensive Development Zones Revised @     CD24-1 
 

CITY OF KELOWNA 
 
 

BYLAW NO. 10812 
 

Text Amendment No. TA12-0007 –Amendment to the City of Kelowna 
Zoning Bylaw No. 8000 –  

New CD24 - Comprehensive Development Zone 24 
 

 
The Municipal Council of the City of Kelowna, in open meeting assembled, enacts that City of 
Kelowna Zoning Bylaw No. 8000 be amended as follows: 
 
1. THAT Section 1 – General Administration, 1.3 Zoning Map, 1.3.1 be amended by adding 

to the end of Section 18 – Comprehensive Development Zones the following: 

 
2. AND THAT Section 7 – Landscaping and Screening, Table 7.1 – Minimum Landscape 

Buffer Treatment Levels Schedule,  
 
 a)  be amended in Commercial Zones, under Location by adding “CD24 Sub-Area A”; and 
 
 b) be amended in Urban Residential Zones, under Location by adding “CD24 Sub-Area B”  
 
3. AND THAT a new CD24 – Comprehensive Development Zone 24 be added to Section 18 – 

Schedule B - Comprehensive Development Zones as attached outlined in Schedule “A” 
attached; 
 

4. This bylaw shall come into full force and effect and is binding on all persons as and from 
 the date of adoption. 
 
Read a first time by the Municipal Council this 11th day of March, 2013.  
 
Considered at a Public Hearing on the   
 
Read a second and third time by the Municipal Council this   
 
Approved under the Transportation Act this   
 
____________________________________________________________________ 
(Approving Officer-Ministry of Transportation and Infrastructure) 
 
Adopted by the Municipal Council of City of Kelowna on the   
 

 
Mayor 

 
 

 
City Clerk 

 
 
 

CD23 (Intentionally Blank) 
CD24 Comprehensive Development Zone 24 

36



City of Kelowna    Consolidated Zoning Bylaw No. 8000 

Schedule ‘B’ – Comprehensive Development Zones Revised @     CD24-2 

Schedule ‘A’ 

CD24 – Comprehensive Development Zone 
 
1.1 Purpose 

 
The purpose is to provide for the integrated design of a comprehensive mixed-use 
development which includes tourist commercial and residential uses.   
 

1.2 CD24 Lands 
 
The CD24 Lands consist of two Sub-Areas A and B inclusive (“CD24 Sub-Areas”) as 
shown on Plan HW-1.  The boundaries of Areas A and B will generally conform to Plan 
HW-1. 
 

1.3 Regulations 
 
In the CD24 Comprehensive Development Zone, regulations may be different for each 
CD24 Sub-Area as set out in the CD24 Sub-Area Zoning as shown on Schedules 1 and 
2. 
 

1.4 General Regulations of the Comprehensive Site 
 
(a) Section 6 – General Development Regulations of this bylaw applies; 

 
(b) Section 7 – Landscaping and Screening of this bylaw applies; 

 
(c) Section 9 – Specific Use Regulations of this bylaw does not apply with the 

exception of: 
 Sub-Section 9.2 – Home Based Business, Minor; 
 Sub-Section 9.3 – Home Based Business, Major. 
 

(d) The CD24 Comprehensive Development Zone has been designated as a 
Development Permit Area by “Kelowna 2030 – Official Community Plan Bylaw No. 
10500” for the purpose of guiding the form and character of development.  The 
guidelines applicable to the CD24 Comprehensive Development Zone are annexed 
to this Bylaw as Annexure “1” and entitled “CD24 Comprehensive Development Area 
Design Guidelines”. 
 

1.5 Site Coverage 
 
(a) The maximum site coverage is 40%, provided that the maximum site coverage of 

buildings, driveways, and above ground parking areas is 50%. 
 

(b) Parking structures located above natural finished grade and surfaced with 
landscaping or useable open space shall not be included in the calculation of site 
coverage. 
 

1.6 Other Regulations 
 
(a) A total of fifty (50) purpose-built rental units shall be included in the CD24 zone prior 

to the completion of 570 units. 
 

(b) No commercial uses shall be located beyond 250 metres of Lakeshore Drive 
frontage. 

 
 
 

37



City of Kelowna    Consolidated Zoning Bylaw No. 8000 

Schedule ‘B’ – Comprehensive Development Zones Revised @     CD24-3 

1.7 Parking and Loading 
 
1.7.1 Loading facilities shall be designed in accordance with the loading regulations of  

Section 8 – Parking and Loading of this bylaw, with the exception that the 
minimum number of loading spaces required must be in accordance with Table 2 
of this CD24 Zone. 
 

1.7.2 Parking spaces shall be designed in accordance with the parking regulations of 
Section 8 – Parking and Loading of this bylaw, with the exception that the 
minimum number of parking spaces required must be in accordance with Table 1 
of this CD24 Zone. 
 

1.7.3 Bicycle parking shall be provided in accordance with the bicycle parking 
regulations of Section 8 – Parking and Loading of this bylaw. 
 

1.7.4 Co-op cars or pool cars provided for shared use by residential development shall 
equate to five parking stalls per pool car provided.  A maximum of 10 pool cars can 
be used for parking stall credits within the zone.  The provision of pool cars shall 
be considered as part of a Development Permit and will be secured by way of 
agreement with the developer. 
 

 Table 1: Parking 
Use Minimum Parking Space Requirement 
Commercial 2.5 spaces per 100 m2 Gross Floor Area 
Residential 1.4 spaces per dwelling unit / 3 bedroom apartment 

1.2 space per dwelling unit / 2 bedroom apartment 
1.0 spaces per dwelling unit / 1 bedroom apartment 
0.8 spaces per dwelling unit / studio apartment 
1.55 spaces for dwelling unit/ 3+ bedroom 
townhouse unit 
1.35 spaces per dwelling unit/2 bedroom townhouse 
unit  
1.10 spaces per dwelling unit/ 1 bedroom townhouse 
unit  
Additional parking shall be designated for residential 
visitor parking at a rate of 1 space for every 7 
dwelling units 

Supportive  Housing 1 space per three bed spaces  
Hotels 0.75 spaces per sleeping unit 
Hotel  Ancillary Uses 
(restaurant/lounge, 
conference/meeting rooms, 
retail shops) 

4.0 spaces per 100 m² of Gross Floor Area 

 
 Table 2: Loading 

Use Minimum Parking Space Requirement 
Commercial/Hotel 2  Large scale loading stalls 

1 per 2,800 m2 gross floor area 

 
 

  

38



City of Kelowna    Consolidated Zoning Bylaw No. 8000 

Schedule ‘B’ – Comprehensive Development Zones Revised @     CD24-4 

2.1 Subdivision Regulations 
 
(a) Each lot created that is serviced by the common lot access shall have a minimum 

frontage on the common lot access of 10 metres 
 

(b) Area B minimum lot width is 25 metres 
 

(c) Area B minimum lot depth is 30 metres 
 

(d) Area B minimum lot area is 750 m2 
 

(e) At the time of subdivision, a Section 219 Restrictive Covenant will be registered on 
all properties indicating the allocation of l Net Floor Area to each of the lots being 
created.  The sum of all allocation covenants cannot exceed 90,990 m2 or 1.25 FAR. 

  

39



City of Kelowna    Consolidated Zoning Bylaw No. 8000 

Schedule ‘B’ – Comprehensive Development Zones Revised @     CD24-5 

PLAN HW-1 
 
 

 

40



City of Kelowna  Consolidated Zoning Bylaw No. 8000 

Schedule ‘B’ – Comprehensive Development Zones Revised @     CD24-6 

SCHEDULE 1 – CD24 SUB-AREA A ZONING 
 

7.1  Purpose 
 

The purpose of Sub-Area A is to provide a mix of tourist commercial and residential 
uses.   
 

7.2.1 Principal Uses 
 

The principal uses in this Sub-Area are: 
 

a) apartment hotels 
b) boarding or lodging houses 
c) congregate housing 
d) group home major 
e) hotels 
f) motels 
g) multiple dwelling housing 
h) supportive housing 
i) tourist campsites 

 
7.2.2 Secondary Uses 
 

a) agriculture, urban 
b) boat storage (only within an enclosed building or structure) 
c) care centre major 
d) community recreation services 
e) financial services  
f) food primary establishment 
g) health services  
h) liquor primary establishment , major 
i) liquor primary establishment, minor 
j) liquor primary license  
k) non-accessory parking 
l) home based business minor 
m) offices  
n) participant recreation services, indoor 
o) personal services establishments 
p) retail liquor sales (establishments) 
q) retail store, general  

 
7.3 Density 
 

a) Area A has a maximum F.A.R. of 1.5.  The overall site density shall not exceed a Net 
Floor Area of 90,990 m2 or an F.A.R. of 1.25 calculated on the gross site area, 
whichever is the greater. 
 

b) Area A has a minimum ground floor commercial area of 2,500 m2. 
 

c) A minimum of 50% ground floor commercial area within Area A must front Lakeshore 
Drive. 
 

7.4 Height 
 

The maximum height of one building within Area A shall be the lesser of 36 metres or 
11 storeys, not including rooftop mechanical penthouse, antenna or other ancillary 
structures.  For all other buildings in Area A, the maximum height should be the lesser of 

41



City of Kelowna  Consolidated Zoning Bylaw No. 8000 

Schedule ‘B’ – Comprehensive Development Zones Revised @     CD24-7 

33 metres or ten (10) storeys, not including rooftop mechanical penthouse, antenna or 
other ancillary structures.   
 

7.5.1 Site Setbacks 
 

Perimeter Property Line Setbacks 
a) South Side – 3.0 metres from the boundary of the Wilson Creek green space for any 

buildings and structures less than 15 metres in height.  All portions of buildings and 
structures above 15 metres in height will require an additional 1.5 metre setback for a 
total of 4.5 metre setback from the boundary of the Wilson Creek Green Space.  
 

b) North Side – 7.5 metres for all buildings and structures up to 10 metres in height; 15 
metres for any buildings and structures greater than 10 metres in height. 
 

c) West Side / Lakeshore Road Frontage – 0.0 metres  for 50% of the frontage and 3.0 
metres for 50% of the frontage for any buildings or structures under 10 metres in 
height.  3.0 metres for any portion of buildings or structures above 10 metres in 
height.  Notwithstanding this provision, architectural features that are less than 25% of 
the building face width may encroach into the 3.0 metre setback requirement, to a 
maximum of 1.5 metres. 
 

7.5.2 Internal Site Setbacks 
 

a) The site is intended to be subdivided further into individual parcels served by a common 
lot access road.  The minimum setbacks for all internal parcels are: 

i.  0 metres for all parking structures; 
ii.   0 metres for front yard setback; and  
iii.  3.0 metre setback from all internal side and rear yards. 

 
7.6 Private Open Space 
 

A minimum area of 7.5 m2 of private open space shall be provided per bachelor 
dwelling, apartment hotel unit, or congregate housing bedroom; 15 m2 of private 
open space shall be provided per 1 bedroom dwelling, and 25 m2 of private open 
space shall be provided per dwelling with more than 1 bedroom, except for hotel 
where no minimum private open space is required. 
 

7.7 Other Regulations 
 

a) The maximum site area of Sub-Area A is 35,000 m2. 
 

b) Financial services use shall not have a floor area greater than 280 m2 
 

c) Health services and office uses shall not have a cumulative floor area that exceeds 500 
m2 
 

d) Retail store, general use shall be limited to a maximum single tenancy of 1,400 m2 

42



City of Kelowna   Consolidated Zoning Bylaw No. 8000 
  

Annexure 1 

Schedule ‘B’ – Comprehensive Development Zones Revised @     CD24-8 
 

 
SCHEDULE 2 – CD24 SUB-AREA B ZONING 
 

8.1 Purpose 
 
The purpose of Sub-Area B is to provide multi-family residential housing.   
 

8.2.1 Principal Uses 
 

The principal uses in Sub-Area B are: 
a) congregate housing 
b) group home major 
c) multiple dwelling housing 
d) supportive housing 

 
8.2.1 Secondary Uses 

 
The secondary uses in Sub-Area B are: 

a) agriculture, urban 
b) boarding or lodging houses 
c) care centre major 
d) care Centre, major 
e) non-accessory parking 
f) community recreation services 
g) home based business, minor 

 
8.3 Density 

 
Sub-Area B has a maximum density of 1.20 F.A.R.  In addition, the overall site density 
shall not exceed a Net Floor Area of 90,990 m2 or an F.A.R. of 1.25 calculated on the 
gross site area, whichever is the greater. 
 

8.4 Height 
 
For the purposes of height, Sub-Area B will be made up of three (3) distinct areas as 
illustrated on Plan HW-2.  Building heights within the Community Interface area shall 
be the lesser of 11.5 metres or 3.5 storeys.  Building heights within the Internal 
Transition area shall be the lesser of 20.5 metres or 6 storeys.  Building heights within 
the Core Area shall be the lesser of 29.5 metres or 9 storeys. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

43



City of Kelowna  Consolidated Zoning Bylaw No. 8000 

Schedule ‘B’ – Comprehensive Development Zones Revised @     CD24-9 

 
 
PLAN HW-2 
 
 
  

44



City of Kelowna  Consolidated Zoning Bylaw No. 8000 

Schedule ‘B’ – Comprehensive Development Zones Revised @     CD24-10 

 
8.5 Site Setbacks 

 
Perimeter Setbacks 
a) South Side – 3.0 metres from the boundary of the Wilson Creek green space for any 

buildings and structures less than 15 metres in height.  All portions of buildings 
and structures above 15 metres in height will require an additional 1.5 metre 
setback for a total of 4.5 metre setback from the boundary of the Wilson Creek green 
space.  
 

b) North Side – 7.5 metres for all buildings. 
 

c) East Side – 7.5 metres for all buildings. 
 

Internal Setbacks 
a) The site is intended to be subdivided further into individual parcels served by a 

common lot access road.  The minimum setbacks for all internal parcels are:  
o 0 metres for all parking structures;  
o 2 metres from the fronting road, and  
o 3.0 metres from all side and rear yards. 

 
8.6 Private Open Space 

 
A minimum area of 7.5 m2 of private open space shall be provided per bachelor 
dwelling or congregate housing bedroom; 15 m2 of private open space shall be 
provided per 1 bedroom dwelling; and 25 m2 of private open space shall be provided 
per dwelling with more than 1 bedroom. 
 

8.7 Other Regulations 
 

a) The maximum site area of Sub-Area B is 60,000 m2. 
 

b) The uses set within Section 8.2 are only permitted provided that off-street vehicular 
parking and off-street loading must be screened from public view with a minimum 2.0 
metre landscape buffer. This buffer can be reduced to a 1.0 metre width when 
provided in combination with a decorative fence or wall with a minimum height of 1.2 
metres. A minimum of 50 family-oriented dwellings shall be included in Sub-Area B 
prior to the completion of 400 residential units.  Family-oriented dwellings, for 
purposes of this zone, are defined as a dwelling suitable as a residence for a 
household with children which meets the following criteria: 
 

i. The lowest storey of the dwelling is no higher than the third storey of the 
building; 
 

ii. The dwelling has two bedrooms or more, and the average number of 
bedrooms per dwelling is not less than 2.25 for all such dwellings in a 
development; 
 

iii. The dwelling has individual and private access to grade, except that in the 
case of stacked row housing access to dwellings above the first storey may 
be shared by two dwellings. In the case of apartment housing, access to 
dwellings above the first storey may be shared, provided that entrances to 
not more than six dwellings are located on any one storey or landing. 

45



City of Kelowna   Consolidated Zoning Bylaw No. 8000 
  

Annexure 1 

Schedule ‘B’ – Comprehensive Development Zones Revised @     CD24-11 
 

 

 

 

CD24 COMPREHENSIVE DEVELOPMENT 

DESIGN GUIDELINES  

46



City of Kelowna   Consolidated Zoning Bylaw No. 8000 
 

Schedule ‘B’ – Comprehensive Development Zones Revised @     CD24-12 

CONTENTS 

INTRODUCTION AND OVERVIEW ................................................................................................ 1 

1.1 Using the Design Guidelines .................................................................................................................... 2 

1.2 Guiding Principles .................................................................................................................................... 3 

OVERALL DEVELOPMENT GUIDELINES ........................................................................................ 7 

2.1 Building Siting, Massing and Proportion .................................................................................................. 7 

2.2 Building Heights and Setbacks ................................................................................................................. 9 

2.3 Building Entrances ................................................................................................................................. 10 

2.4 Building Rooftops, Balconies, Overhangs and Soffits ............................................................................ 11 

2.5 Exterior Materials, Treatment and Windows ........................................................................................ 12 

2.6 Parking, Loading, Fire and Emergency Access ....................................................................................... 13 

2.7 Signage................................................................................................................................................... 16 

2.8 Lighting .................................................................................................................................................. 17 

2.9 Screening and Fencing ........................................................................................................................... 18 

2.10 Site Access and Connections ................................................................................................................. 20 

2.11 Public and Private Open Space .............................................................................................................. 21 

LANDSCAPE DESIGN GUIDELINES .............................................................................................. 25 

3.1 Pedestrians ............................................................................................................................................ 25 

3.2 Cycling .................................................................................................................................................... 26 

3.3 Wayfinding and Signage ........................................................................................................................ 27 

3.4 Wilson Creek Green Space Landscaping ................................................................................................ 27 

3.5 Community Gardens .............................................................................................................................. 28 

3.6 Street Tree Planting ............................................................................................................................... 28 

3.7 Landscape Planting ................................................................................................................................ 30  

47



City of Kelowna   Consolidated Zoning Bylaw No. 8000 
 

Schedule ‘B’ – Comprehensive Development Zones Revised @     CD24-13 

INTRODUCTION AND OVERVIEW 

The development envisioned under the CD24 zone is to be 

a place where a sense of community thrives and pride in 

the neighbourhood is evident.  

The CD24 development will be an inviting and sustainable 

mixed-use commercial residential neighbourhood that will 

support the tourism potential of this unique area of 

Kelowna.  The overall vision for CD24 is forward thinking; 

incorporating principles of smart growth development, a 

high level of urban design and best management practices 

for sustainability.  The following are the over-arching 

development objectives for CD24: 

 Promote the City of Kelowna’s vision for new 

communities and development, as outlined in Chapter 

5.0 of the 2030 Overall Community Plan (OCP): develop 

in a sustainable manner; focus development in 

established growth areas; ensure appropriate and 

context sensitive built form; create a sense of 

community; provide high quality urban design; create 

opportunities for greater pedestrian, active 

transportation and public transit use. 

 Promote the creation of a Complete Communities and 

Compact Urban Form that combines a variety of 

residential building types with a tourism based 

commercial and retail component that is responsive to 

the surrounding context. 

 Promote a pedestrian-oriented lifestyle community 

that integrates mixed-use development with park-like 

open spaces that are inter-connected by pathways 

both internally and externally. 

 

 
SITE PLAN 

 
MIXED USE – COMMERCIAL TOURISM 

 
SUSTAINABILITY 

48



City of Kelowna   Consolidated Zoning Bylaw No. 8000 
 

Schedule ‘B’ – Comprehensive Development Zones Revised @     CD24-14 

 Promote the construction of energy efficient buildings 

and best management practices with regards to 

sustainability initiatives for community design, energy 

efficiency, reduced water consumption, active 

transportation, increased biodiversity and preservation 

of ecology. 

The following Design Guidelines will ensure a harmonious 

understanding of the ‘vision’, with a strong focus on 

environmental, economic and social sustainability. 

1.1 USING THE DESIGN GUIDELINES 

These Design Guidelines form part of a Comprehensive 

Development (CD24) agreement that will shape the future 

of this multi-phased mixed-use development.  The site has 

been divided into two distinct areas (Area A and Area B).  

Area A has both residential and commercial uses and Area 

B has only residential uses.  As such, these guidelines have 

been structured to include overall guidelines for both Area 

A and Area B and commercial specific guidelines for Area A.   

 

 
 

49



City of Kelowna   Consolidated Zoning Bylaw No. 8000 
 

Schedule ‘B’ – Comprehensive Development Zones Revised @     CD24-15 

The intent of the Design Guidelines is to provide the 

following: 

 Provide the framework that will be used by individuals 

preparing the form and character Development Permit 

applications relating to buildings and open spaces 

within the CD24 boundary. 

 Assist the City of Kelowna’s planning staff with 

individual Development Permit applications within the 

CD24 boundary. 

 Provide general guidance as to the level of detailed 

design needed to ensure that each individual 

development is compatible with the overall urban 

design concept established for CD24 Zone.  

 Provide, through high-level graphic examples, to 

illustrate potential applications of the design 

guidelines. 

These guidelines are not intended to be the final form of 

development, but rather represent a ‘conforming outline’ 

to be used as a starting point for detailed design to build 

upon. 

1.2 GUIDING PRINCIPLES 

Guiding principles represent the larger planning and design 

objectives that are to be reinforced whenever possible 

during subsequent development stages. 

1.2.1 LAND USE PRINCIPLES 

 The development of the CD24 site will incorporate a 

mix of land uses including retail, commercial, hotel and 

residential with associated residential uses.  

 Land use for the CD24 site has been allocated to two 

different areas (‘Area A’ and ‘Area B’). 

 

.  

RESIDENTIAL BUILDING 

 

 

RESIDENTIAL BUILDING 

50



City of Kelowna   Consolidated Zoning Bylaw No. 8000 
 

Schedule ‘B’ – Comprehensive Development Zones Revised @     CD24-16 

 Area A’s core land use will be tourism-based 

commercial that includes hotel and conference space, 

ground floor retail, and residential use located above 

retail.  Commercial development will be 

complemented with an urban plaza space that 

accommodates some surface parking.  

 Area A’s building forms respond to the Lakeshore Road 

frontage and will have a landmark structure in terms of 

scale and architecture. 

 Area B’s land use will be residential, with no 

commercial or retail use, and will be complemented by 

an inter-connected network of landscaped open 

spaces. 

 Area B’s building forms will be mid-rise, multi-unit 

structures that step back in height from the site edges 

in response to adjacent existing residential. 

 Vehicular traffic within the site will be accommodated 

by an internal road network, with limited surface 

parking and an easily accessible parking structure. 

1.2.2 SUSTAINABILITY PRINCIPLES 

 To promote higher density mixed-use development 

near existing communities and public infrastructure to 

reduce adverse environmental and public health 

effects associated with low density urban sprawl. 

 To encourage the development of energy-efficient 

buildings by employing strict heating and cooling 

strategies that will reduce dependency on natural 

resources. 

 To reduce pollution and flooding associated with major 

storm events through on-site stormwater capture and 

treatment to promote aquifer recharge and improve 

water quality by emulating natural conditions. 

 To reduce energy consumption and pollution from 

motor vehicles by providing high levels of external 

connectivity and by encouraging alternative modes of 

transportation such as public transit, cycling, car 

sharing and walking. 

 To promote a healthy lifestyle by providing safe, 

appealing and comfortable street, pathway and open 

space environments. 

 

 

GREEN BUILDING 

 

 

ACTIVE TRANSPORTATION 

 

 

COMMUNITY GARDENS 

 

51



City of Kelowna   Consolidated Zoning Bylaw No. 8000 
 

Schedule ‘B’ – Comprehensive Development Zones Revised @     CD24-17 

 To preserve water quality, natural hydrology, habitat, 

and biodiversity through conservation and 

rehabilitation of wetlands and Wilson Creek. 

 To enable the widest spectrum of people, regardless of 

age or ability, to more easily participate in community 

life by incorporating principles of universal accessibility 

into the design process. 

 To promote community-based food production, access 

to fresh produce, and improve nutrition through 

provision of community gardens. 

 To limit or eliminate the use of potable water for 

irrigation by use of captured or recycled water for use 

in landscape irrigation. 

 To minimize amounts of sod lawn provided and to use 

a planting palette of drought tolerant native, or native-

adaptive, plant species to minimize water consumption 

for irrigation.  

1.2.3 URBAN DESIGN PRINCIPLES 

 It is the overall intent that the CD24 development site 

incorporates a high level of urban design and character 

into its buildings and outdoor open spaces that is 

responsive to the functional requirements of a mixed-

use development, the site’s unique context, and the 

promotion of a pedestrian-oriented neighbourhood.  

 Building and open space design should convey human 

scale, address pedestrian comfort and safety, and 

complement the surrounding community as well as 

existing buildings. 

 Create opportunities for public open space as part of 

the development that is safe, of high-quality and 

human scale. 

 Consider a road network as part of the public open 

space that will include amenities that promote 

pedestrian comfort and use. 

 
MINIMAL SOD PLANTING 

 

 
MIXED-USE – URBAN DESIGN 

 

 
PEDESTRIAN FRIENDLY STREETSCAPE 

 

 
TOURISM - COMMERCIAL 

52



City of Kelowna   Consolidated Zoning Bylaw No. 8000 
 

Schedule ‘B’ – Comprehensive Development Zones Revised @     CD24-18 

1.2.4 RESPONSE TO CONTEXT 

 Development in Area A will have a strong urban 

character in the treatment of buildings and open 

spaces in response to the context of Lakeshore Road, 

Manteo Resort and other major commercial 

developments within the Cook Road Tourist 

Commercial Area.  

 Development in Area B will have a residential 

character through scale and material treatment of 

buildings, landscape buffers and landscape treatment 

of open spaces that respond to the context of adjacent 

existing residential uses. 

 Development in both Area A and Area B will respond 

to the highly naturalized character of the Wilson Creek 

wetland and riparian corridor by providing the 

required building setbacks from the City of Kelowna 

Wilson Creek Linear Park and accompanying 

environmental green space. 

 Character of exterior spaces and selection of plant 

material is to transition from cultured (inside site) to 

natural (edge of site at environmental riparian zone). 

 The character of buildings and public spaces within the 

CD24 site should celebrate that which is unique and 

distinctive about the Okanagan Valley by drawing 

inspiration from the region’s natural and cultural 

landscapes. 

1.2.5 CRIME PREVENTION THROUGH ENVIRONMENTAL 

DESIGN (CPTED) 

 Provide sufficient density to help ensure enough “eyes 

and ears” on the street. 

 Improve public safety through the creation of public 

spaces that instil a sense of pride and ownership.  

 Provide natural surveillance and sight lines to ensure 

unobstructed views in areas where public safety and 

pedestrian / vehicle conflicts will be a factor. 

 Provide lighting at a sufficient enough level to 

uniformly light adjacent sidewalks so as to provide a 

high level of “psychological comfort and safety” for 

pedestrian use at night. 

 

 
WILSON CREEK 

 

 
OKANAGAN INSPIRED LANDSCAPING 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

53



City of Kelowna   Consolidated Zoning Bylaw No. 8000 
 

Schedule ‘B’ – Comprehensive Development Zones Revised @     CD24-19 

OVERALL DEVELOPMENT GUIDELINES 

The following guidelines apply to both Area A and Area B.  

Additionally, at the end of each section, commercial 

specific guidelines for Area A only have been highlighted. 
2.1. BUILDING SITING, MASSING AND 
PROPORTION 

 In general, building massing will respond to adjacent 

existing land uses by stepping the heights of buildings 

from the edges of the site (lower building heights) to 

the core of site (higher building heights). 

 Where residential buildings are situated in close 

proximity to each other, consideration should be given 

to stepping back the upper floors of the building to 

visually reduce the massing by expanding the 

horizontal relationship between the upper levels when 

compared to the lower levels. 

 Consideration should be given at the site planning level 

to provide private open space at grade for each ground 

unit along with transitional landscaped open space 

from private to semi-private / semi-public space (see 

CD24 Comprehensive Zoning Bylaw for minimum 

private open space requirements). 

 Buildings should be sited with sensitivity to future 

development on adjacent properties and in a way that 

promotes the creation of functional and 

interconnected outdoor spaces for residents within the 

community. 

 Building siting should consider placement and 

orientation to maximize use of natural light in building 

design, and maximize view corridors to Wilson Creek 

while minimizing views into adjacent developments. 

 

 
HOTEL CONFERENCE PODIUM 

 

 
TOWER PODIUM ASSEMBLY 

 

 
SUSTAINABILITY 

54



City of Kelowna   Consolidated Zoning Bylaw No. 8000 
 

Schedule ‘B’ – Comprehensive Development Zones Revised @     CD24-20 

 Buildings should demonstrate a high degree of human 

scale through emphasis of doors and windows and 

through appropriate choice of materials and surface 

detailing to create a rich visual interest at the 

pedestrian level.  

 Building articulation refers generally to the exterior 

details and the arrangement of both specific and 

repetitive features.  As it is not intended that the CD24 

site be developed under one specific architectural 

theme, care and attention at the preliminary design 

stage should be made to ensure that different 

architectural styles be complementary in detail to each 

other. 

 Building facades should have a balance of vertical and 

horizontal proportions.  

 Vertical accents should occur on a regular basis to 

reinforce a pedestrian-scaled rhythm and are 

preferred for windows.  

 Horizontally-extended glazed areas should be 

subdivided into vertically proportioned windows 

separated by mullions or building structure. 

 Building siting and massing for structures over 2 stories 

should be comprised of a podium and a tower 

element.  

 Building tower and podium should be perceived as 

assemblages of forms through overlapping of building 

elements to break-up massing.  Homogenous building 

treatments that tend to create monolithic building 

massing are strongly discouraged. 

 Building towers should be designed to help reduce 

perceptions of bulk as well as contribute to a distinct 

identity for the architectural expression of 

development.  

 Towers should have a minimum 25 metre separation 

from any other tower, with the distance between 

buildings measured from the nearest vertical plane, 

not including balconies or building overhangs. 

 

 

 

 
PEDESTRIAN LEVEL INTEREST 

 

 
WILSON CREEK GREEN SPACE 

55



City of Kelowna   Consolidated Zoning Bylaw No. 8000 
 

Schedule ‘B’ – Comprehensive Development Zones Revised @     CD24-21 

2.2. BUILDING HEIGHTS AND SETBACKS 

 The CD24 Zone prescribes minimum setbacks to the 

external property boundaries on the CD24 site. 

 Building heights will step in response to the prescribed 

setbacks as outlined in the CD24 Zone Site Setbacks. 

 Designated setback areas along the north and eastern 

property lines which are immediate to existing 

residential development should be primarily treated as 

semi-private to private space allowing for maximum 

landscape planting and screening and minimum 

pedestrian access. 

 In residential units located at the ground level adjacent 

to the Wilson Creek Green Space, it is recommended 

that buildings be sited to maximize the potential for 

on-grade outdoor private patio spaces. 

2.2.1 COMMERCIAL BUILDING HEIGHTS AND 

SETBACKS 

 The podium for each building should be no more than 

3 stories above grade.   

 Where residential uses are proposed above retail or 

commercial uses, the first level of residential should be 

set back slightly further than the commercial or retail 

façade. 

 Where buildings face the commercial piazza, floors 

above the first 2 stories should be slightly set back 

from the lower façade in order to create an 

appropriate pedestrian scale of building at the 

commercial level. 

 The first 2 stories of a building is where design 

elements can be most effective to provide a human 

scale to the building, regardless of its overall size and 

massing.  Lower levels should be designed to 

accentuate the horizontal elements and to provide a 

separation between the lower retail uses and upper 

mixed use levels.  

 

 

 
INVITING ENTRANCES 

 

 
COVERED ENTRANCES 

 

 
UNIVERSALLY ACCESSIBLE MAIN ENTRANCE 

56



City of Kelowna   Consolidated Zoning Bylaw No. 8000 
 

Schedule ‘B’ – Comprehensive Development Zones Revised @     CD24-22 

2.3. BUILDING ENTRANCES 

 All entrances should be inviting from the street and 

create a comfortable and welcoming experience 

through attention to details, proportions, materials, 

and lighting. 

 Principal entrances should be easy to identify from the 

street or any adjoining public open space.  

 If the principal building entrance is located within a 

courtyard/ garden space, there should be adequate 

address identification in close proximity to street or 

adjoining open space, and an appropriate walkway 

through the space to the main entry door. 

 Principal entrances should include a canopy, overhang, 

portico or other similar structure to provide 

appropriate weather protection, without sacrificing 

visibility. 

 Principal entrances should be universally accessible.  

 Principal entrances should be in close proximity to a 

vehicular lay-by or drop off area, without 

compromising pedestrian safety. 

 The building address should be clearly visible and 

located near the principle building entrance. 

 The principal entrance should be designed so that it is 

secure and that visitors can be identified from within 

the building without opening the door. 

 Secondary entrances and exits should be designed for 

safety and visibility. 

 If the route of access to secondary entrances crosses 

through a courtyard / garden space or landscaped 

area, there should be a defined path.  

 If a secondary entrance is not frequently used, the 

pathway does not necessarily have to be a hard 

surface.  Crushed gravel could be an adequate 

treatment. 

2.3.1 COMMERCIAL BUILDING ENTRANCES 

 Retail spaces should be easy to see into from the 

adjoining commercial plaza and outdoor space(s).  A 

high degree of transparency should not preclude use 

of mullion patterns to add visual interest and human 

scale to the building. 

 

 
BALCONY AND OVERHANG RESPOND TO CLIMATE 

 

 
LANDSCAPED DECKS AND ROOFTOPS 

 

 
SOLAR SHADING 

57



City of Kelowna   Consolidated Zoning Bylaw No. 8000 
 

Schedule ‘B’ – Comprehensive Development Zones Revised @     CD24-23 

2.4. BUILDING ROOFTOPS, BALCONIES, 
OVERHANGS, AND SOFFITS 

 Buildings should be articulated with the aim of creating 

shadows through indentations and projections of 

elements within a façade composition on all sides – 

not just the front building elevation. (i.e. windows and 

doors, cornice lines, pilasters, balconies, and/or base-

relief detailing).  

 Buildings with flat roof areas, whether actively used or 

not, should be enhanced by use of texture, colour, 

and/or landscaping, especially when visible from 

habitable spaces above. 

 Rooftops designed as active outdoor social spaces are 

encouraged and should be designed to withstand the 

weight of mature trees and plantings.  

 All mechanical equipment and elevator penthouses 

should be integrated with the architectural treatment 

of the roof, or be screened with materials and finishes 

compatible with the building’s design. 

 In response to a regional expression, building detailing 

should emphasize shade from summer sun with 

overhangs and recesses of sufficient depth that are 

appropriate responses to solar exposure.   

 Upper levels of buildings should incorporate decks, 

balconies, or other building features as outdoor 

amenity space for occupants.  Balconies should be 

designed to maximize outdoor living opportunities. 

 Where appropriate, Green Roofs should be considered 

as a viable option to tar and gravel ballast roofs in 

response to sustainable building practices and the 

reduction of heat island effect on roofs. 

 Any soffits or the underside of any portion of a 

building, including the undersides of balconies, within 

the first 2 stories and exposed to public view should be 

treated in a manner as to provide visual interest and 

show attention to detail. 

 

 

 
REGIONAL EXPRESSION – TRANSITION TO OUTSIDE 

 

 
SOFFIT TREATMENT 

 

 
BALCONY AND OVERHANGS RESPOND TO CLIMATE 

 

 
LANDSCAPED DECKS AND ROOFTOPS 

 

58



City of Kelowna   Consolidated Zoning Bylaw No. 8000 
 

Schedule ‘B’ – Comprehensive Development Zones Revised @     CD24-24 

2.4.1 COMMERCIAL BUILDING ROOFTOPS, 

BALCONIES, OVERHANGS AND SOFFITS 

 Where at-grade patios are to be provided in support of 

commercial uses, consideration should be given to 

provide a landscape buffer between the public realm 

and outdoor patio.  

 Outdoor patios should be delineated with decorative 

fencing of a high quality and durable material (i.e. 

metal) and should not exceed 1.2 metres in height 

unless considered as part of a gateway treatment. 

2.5. EXTERIOR MATERIALS, TREATMENT 
AND WINDOWS 

 In response to a regional expression, the character of 

building, detailing and selection of materials should 

celebrate the unique and distinctive qualities of the 

Okanagan Valley and draw inspiration from the 

region’s natural and cultural landscapes. 

 In response to a regional expression, consider 

techniques and treatments that emphasize the 

transition between inside and outside through the 

differing seasons such as; retractable windows, 

overhead rolling doors, canopies, trellises, and 

extended building planes. 

 Window and balcony sizes and spacing should create a 

comfortable rhythm that is consistent through the 

majority of the floors above the lowest level.  

 Windows should be maximized to create natural light 

penetration into the buildings.  Positioning of windows 

will consider solar effects during both the hottest 

summer months and the cooler and greyer winter 

months. 

 Windows that open for natural ventilation should be 

encouraged, but the windows must also have a means 

to be secured at lower levels on the buildings. 

 Windows should incorporate an appropriate trim 

detail that will be suited to the exterior materials and 

colours of the building. 

 

 
OUTDOOR PATIO DECORATIVE FENCING 

 

 
COMPLEMENTARY MATERIAL CHANGE 

 

 
WINDOW BALCONY RHYTHM 

59



City of Kelowna   Consolidated Zoning Bylaw No. 8000 
 

Schedule ‘B’ – Comprehensive Development Zones Revised @     CD24-25 

 All roof flashings and vents exposed to public view 

should be painted to match adjacent surfaces or 

disguised in a manner consistent with the visual 

characteristics of the building. 

 Materials should be durable and appropriate to the 

character of community development.  No vinyl siding 

or non-vision (mirrored) window glass is to be used as 

part of building fenestration. 

2.6. PARKING, LOADING, FIRE AND 
EMERGENCY ACCESS 

 Vehicle drop off and temporary lay-by parking should 

be provided in close proximity to residential buildings, 

or by having a single drop off serving a grouping of 

buildings. 

 Vehicle drop off and temporary lay-by parking should 

be located in a manner as to ensure adequate access 

by the appropriate sized vehicles, while minimizing 

pedestrian conflicts and visual impacts from principle 

building entries and outdoor patios. 

 Vehicle drop off and temporary lay-by parking should 

be treated so that pedestrians and vehicles have equal 

status. 

 Vehicle drop off and temporary lay-by parking should 

offer visual interest (i.e. stamped concrete, concrete 

pavers, etc.) such that the space takes on a higher 

quality and distinction from the asphalt roadway 

surface.  

 The majority of the required parking will be located in 

parking structures.  Due to the high water table, it is 

not practical to construct the parking structures 

completely underground.  

 Under-building parking structures should be built to 

internal property lines to ensure a contiguous public 

open space can be created on top of the structure. 

 Parking garage interconnectivity should be encouraged 

between adjacent building sites. 

 

 

 

REGIONAL EXPRESSION – TRANSITION TO OUTSIDE 

 

 

VEHICLE DROP OFF PAVING 

 

 

ARCHITECTURAL INTEGRATED PARKADE ENTRY 

60



City of Kelowna   Consolidated Zoning Bylaw No. 8000 
 

Schedule ‘B’ – Comprehensive Development Zones Revised @     CD24-26 

 The lowest level parkade can have approximately ½ 

storey of the parking structure wall height exposed, 

provide that it is treated in a manner as outlined in 

these guidelines. 

 The second level parkade should be integrated into 

buildings and may include portions of the parkade 

structure that will have a full one-storey potentially 

exposed, provide that it is treated in a manner as 

outlined in these guidelines. 

 Exposed parkade walls in areas with no pedestrian 

access have the potential to be naturally ventilated 

using screened openings.  The design of screens should 

be decorative with be a powder-coated finished metal 

material.  

 Exposed parkade walls in areas with pedestrian access 

will, at minimum, include; colour parging or cast-in-

place concrete reveals, and if possible, sloped 

landscape with plant screening to minimize visual 

impact of walls. Any landscaping associated with 

parkade structures will consider CPTED guidelines. 

 Exposed parkade walls in areas with pedestrian access 

and associated with second level parking should also 

function as pedestrian access points to the network of 

open spaces by incorporated into their design stairs 

and/or ramps for pedestrian access.  

 Terraced landscaping should be used to complement 

pedestrian access points and be integrated into the 

overall landscape open space design. 

 Exposed parkade walls in highly visible areas should 

have equal treatment as building exteriors in terms of 

articulated surface, reveals and applied detailing to 

visually break-up wall surfaces. 

 Garage doors and vehicle access points into building 

should not terminate on axial views (i.e. views down 

streets within the vicinity of the site).  

 Where axial views are terminated, design 

consideration should be given to mitigating the visual 

impact of such views and to otherwise provide a high 

degree of human scale and visual interest at visual 

termination points. 

 

 

CONSOLIDATED LOADING AND PARKING 

 

 

EXTERNAL TREATMENT OF PARKADE WALLS 

 

 

UNOBTRUSIVE PARKADE ENTRY 

61



City of Kelowna   Consolidated Zoning Bylaw No. 8000 
 

Schedule ‘B’ – Comprehensive Development Zones Revised @     CD24-27 

 Doors and entrances into parking garages should not 

be visually obtrusive and should not be more visually 

prominent than any principal entrance to the building. 

 Garage entrances should be architecturally integrated 

into the overall building design with street- level 

exterior building finishes wrapping into the garage 

opening for a minimum of 2 metres in depth.  

 Doors to parking garages should have an architectural 

treatment that is primarily expressed as an opaque or 

semi-opaque door rather than an open screen.  Open 

screens are acceptable if highly detailed and rich in 

visual interest. 

 Garbage and recycling facilities should be located away 

from public sidewalks and screened from view.  The 

materials used for such purposes should be common 

to the building’s exterior finishes. 

 Surface parking should consider the use of permeable 

pavers as a means for passive storm water 

management to control surface water run-off. 

2.6.1 COMMERCIAL PARKING, LOADING, FIRE 

AND EMERGENCY ACCESS 

 There is to be one access off of Lakeshore Road that 

will serve as the main entrance for the commercial and 

hotel uses. 

 Surface parking lots should be exclusively for 

commercial and retail uses and temporary drop off 

areas; structured parking (except for drop-off zones) 

will be created for residential uses. 

 Loading areas for commercial and hotel uses should be 

consolidated into one area that provides safe and 

efficient access and minimizes exposure to adjacent 

commercial uses.  

 

 

LAY-BY PARKING 

 

 

PARKING PLAZA 

 

  

62



City of Kelowna   Consolidated Zoning Bylaw No. 8000 
 

Schedule ‘B’ – Comprehensive Development Zones Revised @     CD24-28 

2.7. SIGNAGE 

 Building signage should be made of durable, weather-

resistant materials, and be professionally fabricated 

and installed.  No box signs are permitted. 

 The size of any individual sign should follow a common 

theme of building signage as well as the appearance on 

an individual building’s facade.  

 The scale and visual qualities of a building should not 

be compromised by the size and/or number of building 

and address signs. 

 Address signage should be of a pedestrian scale that is 

proportionate to the residential building frontage that 

it promotes. 

 Free standing entry features that include building / 

address signage, and that are integrated with a site’s 

landscape design, should be encouraged.  

 Any free standing entry feature should be built to 

internal property lines to ensure a contiguous public 

open space. 

 Any free standing entry feature, as part of the building 

design, should be included in the Development Permit 

package and include detail elevations and material 

selection. 

2.7.1 COMMERCIAL SIGNAGE 

 Signage should create a rich visual character to 

enhance an overall festive character of the commercial 

area.  Signage should be made of durable, weather-

resistant materials, and be professionally fabricated 

and installed.  No box signs or back-lit signs are 

permitted. 

 Signage should consist of fascia signage, projecting 

signage and a free standing main project sign located 

along Lakeshore Road frontage.  

 The main project sign should include the name of the 

project (yet to be determined) and identification for 

the commercial hotel.  Individual retailers and 

commercial businesses should have an opportunity for 

secondary placement on this sign. 

 

 

DURABLE BUILDING SIGNAGE 

 

 

FREE STANDING BUILDING SIGNAGE 

 

 

FREE STANDING BUILDING SIGNAGE 

63



City of Kelowna   Consolidated Zoning Bylaw No. 8000 
 

Schedule ‘B’ – Comprehensive Development Zones Revised @     CD24-29 

 Fascia signage should be of a pedestrian scale that is 

proportionate to the retail frontage that it promotes. 

 Projecting signage should not extend over large areas 

unless incorporated as part of an awning, with text 

located within the awning valance.  Letters should be 

of appropriate scale and size to complement the 

character of the awning design. 

 The size of any individual sign should follow a common 

theme of building signage as well as the appearance on 

an individual building’s facade. 

2.8. LIGHTING 

 Illumination should be planned as a key element in a 

façade’s design with consideration for the effect on 

the façade and on adjoining buildings and open spaces.  

 All exterior lighting should follow best practice 

methods to preserve the Dark Sky by limiting light 

pollution and to include selection of high performance 

fixtures that conserve energy.  

 Lighting should not contribute to glare through use of 

full cut-off or low-wattage luminaries.  

 Designs should also incorporate shielded fixtures 

and/or appropriate mounting heights, as well as be 

aimed appropriately. 

 Building and wall scone lighting should be in response 

to the individual building’s architectural character, 

while complementary to the overall character of the 

residential area.  

 Building and parkade entry lighting should be of 

sufficient illumination levels as to clearly indicate 

principle entries from secondary, and to provide a high 

level of “psychological comfort” for persons using each 

entrance. 

 Directional or accent lighting should be limited to 

specific exterior feature elements of notable 

distinction. 

 

 

PROJECT SIGNAGE 

 

 

DARK SKY EXTERIOR LIGHTING 

 

 

FAÇADE LIGHTING EFFECTS 

64



City of Kelowna   Consolidated Zoning Bylaw No. 8000 
 

Schedule ‘B’ – Comprehensive Development Zones Revised @     CD24-30 

 Street and pedestrian light fixtures should add daytime 

visual interest and human scale to the exterior 

environment and be complimentary to the building 

design, as well as help accentuate the rhythm of the 

building façade.  

 Lighting should be designed for high-quality 

environmental performance.  Only one style of street 

and pedestrian fixture should be used within the 

residential areas. 

 Lighting of sidewalks and bike paths adjacent to 

roadways should provide for continuous and uniform 

lighting of ground level. 

2.8.1 COMMERCIAL LIGHTING 

 Window displays should be lit from the inside of the 

tenant space with directional lighting such that there is 

minimum light spillage outside of the tenant space. 

2.9. SCREENING AND FENCING 

 Areas for consideration for buffering and fencing will 

be along the property boundary between the CD24 site 

and the adjacent residential properties and should 

respond to privacy issues. 

 All buffering and fencing should be an appropriate 

response to adjacent social interaction, security and 

safety. 

 A solid privacy fence, along with supplemental 

planting, should be provided in response to landscape 

aesthetics and to assist with sound attenuation.  

 Fence height and landscape buffer screening should be 

maximized in these areas and meet, as a minimum the 

City of Kelowna’s Section 7 Landscaping and Screening 

Level 3 Landscape Buffer Requirements. 

 Level 3 Landscape Buffer Requirements: a minimum 3 

metre landscape buffer is required to separate uses 

from adjacent existing properties and will consist of a 

vegetative buffer or a continuous opaque barrier. 

 

 

PATHWAY LIGHTING 

 

SHIELDED AIMED LIGHTING 

 

PRINCIPLE ENTRY LIGHTING 

 

INDIVIDUAL UNIT FENCING 

65



City of Kelowna   Consolidated Zoning Bylaw No. 8000 
 

Schedule ‘B’ – Comprehensive Development Zones Revised @     CD24-31 

 Fencing should be treated simply and in a similar 

manner between individual parcels and buildings to 

create a sense of harmony and unification with the 

residential area.  

 Ground level private patios should be delineated with 

fencing of a high quality and durable material (i.e. 

wood or metal) and should not exceed 1.5 metres in 

height unless considered as part of a gateway 

treatment. 

 In all public to semi-private open areas, fencing should 

be visually permeable and its height should be such 

that it is not imposing to the pedestrian realm and 

maintain CPTED sightlines. 

 The use of chain link as a fencing should be 

discouraged in public open space and private 

landscaped areas, with the exception of the 

delineation of the Wilson Creek wetland and riparian 

corridor. 

 Variations in fence treatment can be presented at the 

Development Permit stage, and should only be 

considered when the fence design is in response to a 

specific microclimate to increase pedestrian comfort or 

to increase usability of an outdoor space (i.e. patio). 

2.9.1 COMMERCIAL SCREENING AND FENCING 

 The commercial area and associated parking plaza 

should be considered as an urban plaza.  As such, the 

City of Kelowna’s Section 7.0 Landscaping and 

Screening requirements of surface parking lots should 

be relaxed in consideration of this higher urban 

treatment.  

 No major conflicting land uses are proposed with the 

commercial area that will require significant screening.  

Any requirements to separate adjacent building uses 

or create exterior territorial definition should be 

accomplished through planting. 

 Landscape screening and buffer should be considered 

along the Lakeshore Road corridor in response to any 

outdoor activities related to commercial uses.  Any 

planting in close proximity to intersections and 

pedestrian and vehicle conflict points will respond to 

visual sight lines and CPTED safety requirements. 

 

 

INDIVIDUAL UNIT FENCING 

 

 

VARIATION ON FENCE 

 

 

PRIVACY FENCING 

66



City of Kelowna   Consolidated Zoning Bylaw No. 8000 
 

Schedule ‘B’ – Comprehensive Development Zones Revised @     CD24-32 

 Outdoor patios should be delineated with decorative 

fencing of a high quality and durable material (i.e. 

metal) and should not exceed 1.2 metres in height 

unless considered as part of a gateway treatment. 

2.10. SITE ACCESS AND CONNECTIONS 

 Primary access into the CD24 site is provided off of 

Lakeshore Road along with a secondary access off of 

Bird Place (via a new bridge over Wilson Creek). 

 A secondary vehicular and pedestrian access into the 

CD24 site will be provided from Springrose Way. 

 Emergency vehicle access into the CD24 site is 

provided off of Springbrook Road.  This access will 

provide important emergency access into the CD24 

site and improved pedestrian connectivity to the larger 

community. 

 Circulation and connectivity between the four vehicle 

access points will consist of an interior road network as 

part of a bare-land strata development and should be 

designed in a manner that will reduce the potential for 

short cutting. 

 All internal roads and access points into / out of the 

CD24 site should be designed in a manner that 

promotes pedestrian and cycling in a safe and 

comfortable public realm environment. 

 Bridge access off Bird Place will include appropriate 

Wilson Creek environmental approvals in conjunction 

with the bridge design and construction.  

 Bridge access off Bird Place will be constructed over 

Wilson Creek and designed as a gateway entrance to 

the site and the bridge design should be included as 

part of the form and character Development Permit 

application. 

 Bridge access off Bird Place will accommodate 

pedestrian and cyclists, and the north side approach 

will also be designed to accommodate a pedestrian 

crossing of the secondary entry road for the Wilson 

Creek trail.  

 

 

SITE ACCESS AND CONNECTIONS 

 

 

PERSPECTIVE – LOOKING SOUTH 

 

 

 

67



City of Kelowna   Consolidated Zoning Bylaw No. 8000 
 

Schedule ‘B’ – Comprehensive Development Zones Revised @     CD24-33 

 For any pedestrian underpass associated with the Bird 

Place bridge access, consideration should be given to 

increasing the amounts of pedestrian level lighting 

under bridge structure and additional considerations 

for CPTED principles at bridge abutments to minimize 

potential hiding places. 

 It is anticipated that vehicle access off of Lakeshore 

Road will be associated with a new controlled 

intersection which will serve as the main entrance for 

the commercial and hotel uses.  

 The Lakeshore Road entry is considered a major 

pedestrian and commuter cycle connection with safe 

and convenient access to the adjacent Multi-Use 

Corridor (MUC) that connects Upper Mission to 

Downtown. As such, consideration should be given to 

the commercial plaza and adjacent ground floor retail 

design for the accommodation of multi-modal 

movement. 

2.10.1 COMMERCIAL SITE ACCESS AND CONNECTIONS 

 Pedestrian walkways adjacent to ground floor retail 

should be wide enough to accommodate retail 

overflow into the public realm frontage zone without 

restricting pedestrian circulation. 

 The commercial area will be an area where the public 

is invited to be, and security within public areas should 

be considered in conjunction with building 

development.  

 All security devices such as gates or screens should be 

located on the inside of the retail frontages.  Corridors 

or entry ways that need to be secured should be either 

doors or gates in keeping with the architectural style of 

the exterior of the building.  Roller gates and shutters 

are not permitted. 

 

 

COMMERCIAL AREA SITE ACCESS 

 

 

PROVIDE LARGE PUBLIC OPEN SPACES 

  

68



City of Kelowna   Consolidated Zoning Bylaw No. 8000 
 

Schedule ‘B’ – Comprehensive Development Zones Revised @     CD24-34 

2.11. PUBLIC AND PRIVATE OPEN SPACE 

 The provision of large usable areas designated for use 

by CD24 residents should be promoted in the building 

siting and design of exterior spaces. 

 Private open space should be limited to exterior spaces 

immediately adjacent to residential units (private 

patios and balconies) and to principle/ secondary 

building entrances - to promote a continuous and 

integrated series of open spaces. 

 In situations where private areas will not be secured, 

landscape design and planting should create a 

territorial separation between semi-public and private 

spaces, without necessitating the use of fencing that 

will disrupt the visual continuity of the landscaped 

open spaces; fencing should be provided only when 

security is an issue. 

 Spatial separation, combined with landscape planting, 

should be considered in all locations where there is an 

interface between a road and a building, or a major 

pedestrian access route and a building.  

 Open spaces should be highly accessible and primarily 

promote passive recreational uses such as walking, 

jogging, cycling, and informal play opportunities. 

 Open spaces should provide for some level of 

pedestrian scale lighting to promote safety and 

encourage limited night-time use.  

 The provision of landscape feature elements such as 

gazebos, trellises, and pergolas should be encouraged 

as a way to enhance the visual interest and use of 

open spaces and should be attractive when viewed 

from above. 

 A continuous pedestrian connection should be 

provided to link all major open spaces, including the 

Wilson Creek wetland and riparian corridor, which 

limits any potential for pedestrian and vehicle 

conflicts. 

 

 

 

 

URBAN DESIGN 

 

 

ENHANCED PUBLIC REALM 

 

 

HIGH QUALITY PLAY EQUIPMENT 

69



City of Kelowna   Consolidated Zoning Bylaw No. 8000 
 

Schedule ‘B’ – Comprehensive Development Zones Revised @     CD24-35 

 Portions of the Wilson Creek’s northern boundary will 

be reserved as public open space, and will be 

protected by covenant against development in order 

to preserve and enhance the creek’s wetland and 

riparian habitat.  

 Any new work associated with Wilson Creek’s northern 

boundary will be designed in a manner to meet City of 

Kelowna design and construction standards and any 

environmental mitigation recommendations.  

 Provision of community gardens should be considered 

either as part of the overall development’s common 

open space, or as part of an individual building’s 

garden space.  Community gardens provide a direct 

sustainability feature and also create more of a 

community presence in the development. 

 Community gardens should be considered as part of a 

private or semi-private open space development and 

be designed in a manner that provides some level of 

security and controlled access for users. 

 Provision of structured play areas should be 

considered either as part of the overall development’s 

common open space, or as part of an individual 

building’s garden space. 

 Structured play should consist of play equipment that 

promoted physical play and social interaction among 

its users.  

 Any play equipment should conform to current CSA 

playground standards and be of high quality design 

and durable materials and include appropriate safety 

surfacing.  

 No black colour rubber tile safety surfacing should be 

used due to potential heat absorption.  

 Non-structural retaining walls used in open spaces 

should not be greater than 1.2 metres in height and 

made from local stone or of modular/ segmental block 

construction. 

 

 

PEDESTRIAN AMENITIES 

 

 

LOW NATURAL STONE WALLS 

 

 

TERRACED LANDSCAPE TREATMENT 

70



City of Kelowna   Consolidated Zoning Bylaw No. 8000 
 

Schedule ‘B’ – Comprehensive Development Zones Revised @     CD24-36 

 Where structural retaining walls are required, exposed 

faces should be treated in a manner that is 

complementary with adjacent landscaping and/or 

architectural details - so as to limit their overall mass, 

height and visual impact.  

 Where structural retaining walls are required, exposed 

faces should be treated in a manner that will 

discourage graffiti (i.e. treated with anti-graffiti 

coating).  Photo image vinyl wraps should be provided 

on all utility boxes that are susceptible to graffiti (i.e. 

tagging). 

2.11.1 COMMERCIAL PUBLIC AND PRIVATE OPEN 

SPACE 

 The Commercial plaza should be fully accessible to the 

public as it depends on pedestrian and vehicular 

traffic.  Open spaces within this area should serve 

either as aesthetic landscaped areas relating to retail 

activity or routes of access.  

 The character of the commercial open space should 

have an “urban plaza character” in support of retail 

activities and promote a pedestrian friendly 

environment through spatial continuity between the 

public and private realms.  

 The design of open spaces within the commercial plaza 

should promote social interaction throughout the 

following site planning considerations: orient the 

spaces to take advantage of natural sunlight and key 

views; provide shade and protection from wind and 

other climatic elements.  

 Encourage the provision of streetscape elements of 

greater distinction within the public realm that should 

incorporate a high level of urban and functional 

design.  The intent is to create a unique and 

memorable experience through innovative and 

creative design. 

 Consideration should be given to placement of 

streetscape elements within the commercial area’s 

public realm so as not to create clutter or restrict 

 

 

PEDESTRIAN ZONES 

 

 

PEDESTRAIN ZONE LEGEND 

 

 

PEDESTRIAN SIDEWALK 

71



City of Kelowna   Consolidated Zoning Bylaw No. 8000 
 

Schedule ‘B’ – Comprehensive Development Zones Revised @     CD24-37 

pedestrian movement.  

 The public realm for Area “A” should be considered as 

a series of pedestrian zones in which specific site 

furnishing, planting and streetscape elements will be 

located.  Zones may include any of the following: 

 Edge Zone: immediately adjacent to parking and 

provides a safety buffer for pedestrian against vehicle 

encroachment;  

 Furniture and Planting Zone: accommodates street 

tree planting, lighting, site furniture and other fixed 

objects;  

 Pedestrian Clearance Zone: must be kept free of 

obstructions and provide a continuous linear pathway 

of an appropriate width to serve anticipated 

pedestrian flow;  

 Frontage and Marketing Zone: is the area directly in 

front of the building and/or property line.  It can be 

used as flow-out space, patios and outdoor display 

areas for merchants.  

 Enhanced Public Realm Zone: is the flexible parking 

space that can be utilized for seating areas. 

 Consideration should be given to the use of brick 

pavers as the primary surface treatment to promote a 

sense of ‘high quality urban design’ and promote 

passive stormwater management through porous 

pavement. 

 Consideration should be given to the use of rolled 

curbing in association with decorative metal bollards in 

high pedestrian and vehicle circulation areas to define 

and separate movement while maintaining continuity 

of paving treatment. 

 Open space areas closer to Lakeshore Road should be 

used to complement the main signage opportunities 

and create an aesthetic buffer between the site and 

the boulevard. 

 

 

 

URBAN PLAZA CHARACTER 

 

 

SOCIAL INTERACTION 

72



City of Kelowna   Consolidated Zoning Bylaw No. 8000 
 

Schedule ‘B’ – Comprehensive Development Zones Revised @     CD24-38 

LANDSCAPE DESIGN GUIDELINES 

3.1.  PEDESTRIANS 

 All major pedestrian walkways within the semi-private 

and public open spaces should be accessible at all 

hours and to all users, and conform to best practices 

for barrier-free design. 

 All internal roads should include sidewalks of a 

minimum 1.8 metre width.  

 Wherever possible, sidewalks should be separated by a 

planted boulevard of minimum 2.0 metre width. 

 All major pedestrian walkways should provide for 

some level of pedestrian scale lighting to promote 

safety and encourage limited night-time use.  

 Pedestrian network should be considered in 

conjunction with overall roadway network and building 

siting, so as to maximize interconnectivity between 

roads private and public open spaces and minimize 

pedestrian and vehicle conflicts. 

 A hierarchy of pedestrian pathways should be 

developed in conjunction with overall pedestrian 

network system.  Paving surface treatment and 

pathway widths should be used as part of the 

pedestrian hierarchy.  

 Consideration should be given for the following 

pathway hierarchy system;  

o brick pavers in urban areas where pedestrian 

and vehicles have equal importance;  

o concrete paving for major pathways and 

sidewalks within public realm;  

o combination concrete and brick paving for 

pathways within the private realm;  

o asphalt paving for multi-modal and high 

traffic pathways in natural areas;  

o compacted crushed granular in low traffic 

natural areas. 

 

 
SEPARATED WALKWAY 

 
HIERARCHY PATHS 

 
BRICK PAVERS IN URBAN PLAZA AREA 

 
ROLLED CURB WITH BRICK PAVERS 

73



City of Kelowna   Consolidated Zoning Bylaw No. 8000 
 

Schedule ‘B’ – Comprehensive Development Zones Revised @     CD24-39 

 Public realm should provide site furnishing, comfort 

amenities, shade trees, low level planting, and 

landscape / urban design elements that will create a 

pedestrian friendly streetscape environment and 

promote pedestrian use. 

 Pedestrian crosswalks should be treated in a manner 

that provides paving contrast, in an aesthetically 

pleasing manner, between pedestrian zones within 

roadway.  

 Pedestrian crosswalks paving treatment should be 

limited to: 

o stamped and tinted concrete,  

o wear-resistant thermal plastic traffic patterns 

(i.e. SquareOne Paving), 

o or at minimum, painted zebra lines.  

3.2. CYCLING 

 Bike paths for recreation, commuter bike lanes and 

multi-use shared bike and pedestrian corridors shall 

promote alternative modes of transportation and 

increased physical activity that provides a direct 

sustainability feature to the CD24 site, and also creates 

more of a community presence in the development. 

 Pathway connections into the CD24 site should take 

full advantage of the adjacent Lakeshore Multi-Use 

Corridor (MUC) that connects Upper Mission to 

Downtown.  As such, consideration should be given to 

the Commercial Plaza and adjacent ground floor retail 

design for the accommodation of multi-modal 

movement. 

 Given the residential nature of the development, with 

lower traffic volumes when compared to city collector 

and arterial roads, no painting should be required to 

delineate commuter bike lanes on internal roads. 

 Bollards are recommended in areas where separated 

bike paths join-up with vehicle intersections as a way 

to encourage the slowing down and dismounting of 

cyclists before crossing roadway. 

 

 
PEDESTRIAN SIDEWALK 

 

 
PEDESTRIAN AMENITIES 

 

 
PROMOTE CYCLING 

74



City of Kelowna   Consolidated Zoning Bylaw No. 8000 
 

Schedule ‘B’ – Comprehensive Development Zones Revised @     CD24-40 

 Provisions should be made for safe and reliable bicycle 

storage in key public open space areas and within 

every private building site in the development. 

3.3. WAYFINDING AND SIGNAGE 

 Buildings in the residential area should have adequate 

directional signage at the main entries to the CD24 

site.  

 All of the internal roads will be private roads and 

should be properly named and addressed to orient and 

direct local residents and visitors within the 

development. 

 A logical addressing system should be developed in 

conjunction with the City of Kelowna and the 

emergency response providers, to ensure that each 

building or cluster of town houses is easily identifiable.  

 Any wayfinding and directional signage associated with 

the Wilson Creek wetland and riparian corridor should 

be coordinated with the City of Kelowna’s wayfinding 

and park signage requirements. 

3.4. WILSON CREEK GREEN SPACE 
LANDSCAPING 

 Portions of the Wilson Creek’s northern boundary will 

be reserved as public open space, and will be 

protected by covenant against development in order 

to preserve and enhance the creek’s wetland and 

riparian habitat.  

 Private open space landscaping adjacent to the Wilson 

Creek Green Space should consist primarily of native 

and indigenous plant species in natural plant groupings 

that is complementary of the public open space 

treatment for the adjacent Wilson Creek wetland and 

riparian corridor.  

 Private patios adjacent to the Wilson Creek Green 

Space should provide some fencing in response to 

security and delineation of private and public spaces.  

 

 
PROJECT SIGNAGE 

 

 
AWNING SIGNAGE 

 

 
WILSON CREEK SPACE SETBACK 

75



City of Kelowna   Consolidated Zoning Bylaw No. 8000 
 

Schedule ‘B’ – Comprehensive Development Zones Revised @     CD24-41 

 Private patio spaces should be delineated with 

decorative fencing of a high quality and durable 

material (i.e. metal, glass) and should not exceed 1.2 

metres in height unless considered as part of a 

gateway treatment. 

 Private patio fencing should encourage views to the 

adjacent naturalized landscape and be constructed in a 

manner that minimizes its opaqueness. 

 Non-structural retaining walls used in open spaces 

should not be greater than 1.2 metres in height and 

made from local stone or of modular/ segmental block 

construction.  

3.5. COMMUNITY GARDENS 

 Provision of community gardens should be considered 

either as part of the overall development’s common 

open space, or as part of an individual building’s 

garden space.  Community gardens provide a direct 

sustainability feature and also create more of a 

community presence in the development. 

 Maintenance agreements between developers and 

users should be developed in coordination with the 

establishment of any community garden, to ensure 

proper stewardship, access control and visual tidiness 

of these unique garden spaces. 

 The provision of landscape feature elements such as 

gazebos, trellises, and a storage shed should be 

encouraged to enhance the visual interest and 

functionality of the community gardens, and should be 

attractive when viewed from above. 

3.6. STREET TREE PLANTING 

 Street trees can significantly contribute to the overall 

beauty and increased property values of the CD24 site 

and therefore should be provide wherever possible. 

 

 

 

 
PUBLIC SPACE COMMUNITY GARDENS 

 

 
STREET TREES ADAPTED TO REGION 

 

 
STREET TREES TO CELEBRATE SEASONS 

 

76



City of Kelowna   Consolidated Zoning Bylaw No. 8000 
 

Schedule ‘B’ – Comprehensive Development Zones Revised @     CD24-42 

 Street trees should be of a deciduous species that has 

a non-aggressive root habit and tolerant of urban 

conditions (i.e. road salt) with a minimum 7.5 cm (3”) 

calliper size measured at Circumference at Breast 

Height (CBH).  

 At minimum, street tree selection should be cross-

referenced to the City of Kelowna’s Tree Selection 

Guidelines for appropriateness of tree species:  

http://www.kelowna.ca/CM/Page292.aspx 

 Street tree species selection should be suitable for the 

Okanagan climate and growing conditions and have 

been grown locally.   

 Street tree species selection should celebrate seasonal 

variations through changing colour of leaves, winter 

and summer bark and branching interest, etc. 

 Street tree species selection should provide enough 

diversity of species as to protect against the spread of 

disease and pests that can devastate monoculture 

plantings (i.e. Dutch Elm disease). 

 Street tree planting (i.e species and spacing) should be 

treated in a similar manner on both sides of the 

internal road ROW to create a unified appearance. 

 Changes in street tree species should be in logical 

locations such as roadway intersections, changes in 

road directions, and termination of key roadway vistas. 

Avoid random or multiple specie changes along a 

single stretch of roadway. 

 Soil volumes for street tree planting should be 

maximized to increase the area available for root 

growth.  

 Consideration should be given to providing continuous 

soil trenches, root zone break-out areas to adjacent 

green spaces, structural soil, and use of suspended 

pavement systems such as SilvaCell® as possible 

strategies of increasing soil volumes.  

 Wherever possible, all trees should be offset back from 

sidewalk and major utility services by a minimum of 

2.0 metres measured from edge of conflict to edge of 

tree rootball. If not possible root barriers should be 

used. 

 

 
MAXIMIZE SOIL AREA FOR TREES 

 

 
ROOT BARRIERS ADJACENT TO UTILITIES 

 

 
STREET TREE DRIP IRRIGATION 

 

77



City of Kelowna   Consolidated Zoning Bylaw No. 8000 
 

Schedule ‘B’ – Comprehensive Development Zones Revised @     CD24-43 

 Root barriers should be provided at critical root zones 

areas adjacent to sidewalks, utilities and other 

vulnerable infrastructure, to direct surface roots 

downward and away from potential conflicts. 

 All street trees should be irrigated with an automatic 

underground irrigation system. System controls and 

zoning should be such as to allow trees to be irrigated 

independently of other planting.  

 All irrigation should conform to the highest standards 

and irrigation best practices for reduced water 

consumption and usage. 

 Drip and Drip manifold should be the preferred 

method of irrigation, to eliminate water loss due to 

over-spraying and evaporation and provide equal 

distribution of water directly to the root zone area. 

3.7. LANDSCAPE PLANTING 

 Landscape planting (including trees) should include 

species adapted and suitable for the Okanagan’s hot-

dry climate and growing conditions and have been 

grown locally.   

 Plant material should be of various species and genus 

as to provide a high level of visual and seasonal 

interest in form, colour and texture.  

 Landscape trees should be large enough at maturity to 

create a park-like setting, especially along roadside 

boulevards. 

 Plant material should be specified at a sufficient 

installation sizes as to provide an immediate landscape 

impact. 

 Planting areas should include a mixture of deciduous 

and evergreen plants in combinations of perennials, 

ornamental grasses, shrubs, and trees in response a 

building’s specific exterior space programming and 

buffering requirements. 

 All planting should conform to the BC Landscape 

Standards, current edition, for minimum plant and 

installation specifications. 

 

 
MAXIMIZE LANDSCAPE BUFFERING AT EDGES 

 

 
SCREEN PRIVATE FROM PUBLIC SPACES 

 

 
GREEN STREETS 

 

 

78



City of Kelowna   Consolidated Zoning Bylaw No. 8000 
 

Schedule ‘B’ – Comprehensive Development Zones Revised @     CD24-44 

 
 

 All planting should be irrigated with an automatic 

underground irrigation system. System controls and 

zoning should be such as to allow planting to be 

irrigated independently of landscape trees and street 

tree planting.  

 All irrigation should conform to the highest standards 

and irrigation best practices for reduced water 

consumption and usage. 

 Drip and Drip manifold should be the preferred 

method of irrigation, to eliminate water loss due to 

over-spraying and evaporation and provide equal 

distribution of water directly to the root zone area. 

 

 
VARIETY OF PLANT SPECIES 

 

 
PLANTING ENTRY 

 

 
NATURALIZED PLANTING 

79



CITY OF KELOWNA 
 

BYLAW NO. 10818 
Z12-0039 – Westcorp On The Lake Inc.  
3787, 3791 and 3795 Lakeshore Road 

 

 
A bylaw to amend the "City of Kelowna Zoning Bylaw No. 8000". 
 
The Municipal Council of the City of Kelowna, in open meeting assembled, enacts as follows: 
 

1. THAT City of Kelowna Zoning Bylaw No. 8000 be amended by changing the zoning 
classification of a portion of Lot 2, District Lot 134, ODYD, Plan 3420, Except Parcel A 
(Plan B6180) and Plan H9673; Lot 3, District Lot 134, ODYD, Plan 3420, Except Plan 
H9673; and Lot B, District Lot 134, ODYD, Plan 12063 located on Lakeshore Road, 
Kelowna, B.C., from the C1 – Local Commercial zone, the C9 – Tourist Commercial 
zone, the RM7 – Mobile Home Park zone and the RR3 – Rural Residential 3 zone to the 
CD24 – Comprehenive Development 24 zone and the P3 – Parks & Open Space zone as 
per Map “B” attached to and forming part of this bylaw. 

 
2. This bylaw shall come into full force and effect and is binding on all persons as and 

from the date of adoption. 
 
 
Read a first time by the Municipal Council this 11th day of March, 2013. 
 
 
Considered at a Public Hearing on the 
 
 
Read a second and third time by the Municipal Council this 
 
 
Adopted by the Municipal Council of the City of Kelowna this 
 
 
 
 

 
Mayor 

 
 
 
 

 
City Clerk 

  

80



Bylaw No, 10818 – Page 2 
 

81



Report to Council 
 

 

Date: 

 
April 2, 2013 
 

File: 
 

0600-10 

To:  
 

City Manager 
 

From: 
 

City Clerk 

Subject: 
 

Official Community Plan Amendment Application OCP13-0001 and Rezoning 
Application Z13-0002 

 Report Prepared by: Jolene Lamoureux, Legislative Clerk 

 

Recommendation: 
 
THAT Bylaw No. 10837 for Official Community Plan Bylaw Amendment Application No. OCP13-
0001 be read a first time;  
 
AND THAT Bylaw No. 10838 for Rezoning Application No. Z13-0002 be read a first time. 
 
Purpose:  
 
To give first reading consideration to the Bylaws associated with Official Community Plan 
Bylaw Amendment Application No. OCP13-0001 (Bylaw No. 10837) and Rezoning Application 
No. Z13-0002 (Bylaw No. 10838) for the properties located at 1242-1244 Pheasant Street. 
 
Background: 
 
At the March 25, 2013 PM Council Meeting, Council considered the requested Official 
Community Plan amendments and rezoning applications for the properties located at 1242-
1244 Pheasant Street.  During Council’s consideration of the staff report, Council adopted the 
“Alternate Recommendation” and forwarded the Official Community Plan and Rezoning 
Applications to a Public Hearing.   Council is required to give initial reading consideration to 
the amending Bylaws in order to forward the application to a Public Hearing. 
 
Submitted by:  
 
 
 
Stephen Fleming, City Clerk 
 

82



 

CITY OF KELOWNA 
 

BYLAW NO. 10837 
 

Official Community Plan Amendment No. OCP13-0001 – 
Geoff and Leanne Proteau  
1242-1244 Pheasant Street 

 
A bylaw to amend the "Kelowna 2030 – Official Community Plan Bylaw No. 10500". 
 
The Municipal Council of the City of Kelowna, in open meeting assembled, enacts as follows: 
 
1. THAT Map 4.1 - GENERALIZED FUTURE LAND USE of “Kelowna 2030 – Official 

Community Plan Bylaw No. 10500” be amended by changing the Generalized Future 
Land Use designation of Strata Lot 1 and 2, District Lot 137, ODYD, Strata Plan 
KAS1353, together with an interest in the common property in proportion to the unit 
entitlement of the strata lot as shown on Form 1, located on Pheasant Street, 
Kelowna, B.C., from the  Multiple Unit Residential (Medium Density) designation to the 
Multiple Unit Residential (Low Density) designation; 

 
2. This bylaw shall come into full force and effect and is binding on all persons as and 

from the date of adoption. 
 
 
Read a first time by the Municipal Council this  
 
 
Considered at a Public Hearing on the  
 
 
Read a second and third time by the Municipal Council this  
 
 
Adopted by the Municipal Council of the City of Kelowna this 
 
 
 
 

 
Mayor 

 
 
 

 
City Clerk

 
 

 
 

 

83



Report to Council 
 

 

Date: 

 
April 2, 2013 
 

File: 
 

0600-10 

To:  
 

City Manager 
 

From: 
 

City Clerk 

Subject: 
 

Official Community Plan Amendment Application OCP13-0001 and Rezoning 
Application Z13-0002 

 Report Prepared by: Jolene Lamoureux, Legislative Clerk 

 

Recommendation: 
 
THAT Bylaw No. 10837 for Official Community Plan Bylaw Amendment Application No. OCP13-
0001 be read a first time;  
 
AND THAT Bylaw No. 10838 for Rezoning Application No. Z13-0002 be read a first time. 
 
Purpose:  
 
To give first reading consideration to the Bylaws associated with Official Community Plan 
Bylaw Amendment Application No. OCP13-0001 (Bylaw No. 10837) and Rezoning Application 
No. Z13-0002 (Bylaw No. 10838) for the properties located at 1242-1244 Pheasant Street. 
 
Background: 
 
At the March 25, 2013 PM Council Meeting, Council considered the requested Official 
Community Plan amendments and rezoning applications for the properties located at 1242-
1244 Pheasant Street.  During Council’s consideration of the staff report, Council adopted the 
“Alternate Recommendation” and forwarded the Official Community Plan and Rezoning 
Applications to a Public Hearing.   Council is required to give initial reading consideration to 
the amending Bylaws in order to forward the application to a Public Hearing. 
 
Submitted by:  
 
 
 
Stephen Fleming, City Clerk 
 

84



CITY OF KELOWNA 
 

BYLAW NO. 10838 
Z13-0002 – Geoff and Leanne Proteau  

1242-1244 Pheasant Street 

 

 
A bylaw to amend the "City of Kelowna Zoning Bylaw No. 8000". 
 
The Municipal Council of the City of Kelowna, in open meeting assembled, enacts as follows: 
 

1. THAT City of Kelowna Zoning Bylaw No. 8000 be amended by changing the zoning 
classification of Strata Lot 1 and 2, District Lot 137, ODYD, Strata Plan KAS1353, 
together with an interest in the common property in proportion to the unit 
entitlement of the strata lot as shown on Form 1, located on Pheasant Street, 
Kelowna, B.C., from the RU6 – Two Dwelling Housing zone to the RM1 – Four Dwelling 
Housing zone. 

 
2. This bylaw shall come into full force and effect and is binding on all persons as and 

from the date of adoption. 
 
 
Read a first time by the Municipal Council this 
 
 
Considered at a Public Hearing on the 
 
 
Read a second and third time by the Municipal Council this 
 
 
Adopted by the Municipal Council of the City of Kelowna this 
 
 
 
 

 
Mayor 

 
 
 
 

 
City Clerk 

 

85



REPORT TO COUNCIL 
 
 
 

Date: March 15, 2013 

RIM No. 1250-30 

To: City Manager 

From: Land Use Management, Community Sustainability (AW) 

Application: Z13-0012 Owner: Various owners 

Address: Various Wilden Properties Applicant: Blenk Development Corporation 

Subject: Rezoning Application 

Existing OCP Designation: Single / Two Unit Residential & Major Park and Open Space  

Existing Zone: 
P3 – Parks and Open Space, RU2H – Medium Lot Housing (Hillside 
Area), RU1H - Large Lot Housing (Hillside Area) & Agriculture 1 

Proposed Zone: RU2H – Medium Lot Housing (Hillside Area), P3 – Parks and Open 
Space & RU1H - Large Lot Housing (Hillside Area) 

 

1.0 Recommendation 

THAT Rezoning Application No. Z13-0012 to amend the City of Kelowna Zoning Bylaw No. 8000 by 
changing the zoning classification of a portion of The North West ¼ of Section 5, Township 23, 
ODYD, Except Plans 20895, KAP88266, and EPP24895, located at 185 Clifton Road North, The 
South West ¼ of Section 5, Township 23, ODYD, Except Plans KAP83526, KAP88266, EPP9195, and 
EPP24895, located at (E OF) Upper Canyon Drive, The North East ¼ of Section 5, Township 23, 
ODYD, Except Plans 896, B645, KAP69724, and EPP24895, located at (W OF) Union Road, Lot D, 
Section 8, Township 23, ODYD, Plan KAP75116, Except Plan EPP24895, located at 225 Clifton 
Road from P3 – Parks and Open Space, RU2H – Medium Lot Housing (Hillside Area), RU1H - Large 
Lot Housing (Hillside Area) and Agriculture 1 to RU2H – Medium Lot Housing (Hillside Area) & 
RU1H - Large Lot Housing (Hillside Area) as shown on Map ‘B’ attached to the report of the Land 
Use Management Department, dated March 15, 2013 be considered by Council;    
 
AND FURTHER THAT the Zone Amending Bylaw be forwarded to a Public Hearing for further 
consideration; 

2.0 Purpose  

The Phase 2D rezoning application is to deal with the broad zoning designations that have shifted 
slightly now that detailed road and lot layouts have been established. 

3.0 Land Use Management  

This application is to rezone portions of the Phase 2D Wilden neighbourhood.  The detailed lot 
configuration and road design has now been created for Phase 2D and this application is intended 

86



Z13-0012 – Page 2 

to align the zoning designations with the proposed lot layout. The result will be improved lot 
layouts requiring less grading. This is seen to be an administrative exercise, and to ensure land 
uses are consistent with the established lot layout. 

4.0 Proposal 

4.1 Background 

The Glenmore Highland ASP was adopted in 2002 and has guided the Wilden community 
development. The ASP is a high level document that outlined where development should be 
located and how it should take shape. When the ASP was adopted, most of the land was pre-
zoned at the same time based on the work done through the ASP. Staff recently submitted a 
large amendment for the Wilden development but these properties were not dealt with. 
 

4.2 Project Description 

The Phase 2D rezoning amendment is to deal with block zoning designations that have shifted 
slightly now that detailed road and lot layouts have been designed. 
 

4.3 Site Context 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Phase 2D 

87



Z13-0012 – Page 3 

5.0 Technical Comments 

5.1 Building & Permitting Department 

No comment 

5.2 Development Engineering Department 

The adjustment to the zoning boundaries as indicated does not compromise any municipal 
services. 

5.3 Fire Department 

Fire Hydrants and flows as per the City of Kelowna Subdivision Bylaw #7900. Wilden is an 
interface area and all areas required fuel modifications as per the Fire Smart Guidelines. 
Fuel treatments should include up to 100 meters from home sites on sloped areas. 

5.4 Fortis BC - Gas 

Upon review of the property referral referencing the above noted matter, please be 
advised that FortisBC facilities will not be adversely affected.   
FortisBC (electric) reviewed the attached referral and based on the information received 
have identified two areas that Fortis will require SRW for protection of existing Fortis 
facilities over the approximate areas shown in the two attached sketch plans.  Fortis has 
no other objections with the proposal subject to any changes to this application which 
would require further review and comment by Fortis.  
 
Prior to final approval of this application, the applicants must contact FortisBC at 1-866-
436-7847 and quote their file # Z12-0023; OCP12-0003; Wilden Phase 2 to initiate all 
necessary arrangements for electrical service with this proposal.  It is the developer's 
responsibility to ensure that all of FortisBC's requirements including construction fees and 
any SRWs that may be required have been addressed prior to receiving final approval. 
 

5.5 Infrastructure Planning 
We will require fencing along the side property line of Lot 56.  Because the interface is 
between natural area park and manicured front/side yard, it probably should be either 
chain link or post & rail.  This would be true for Lots 53, 52, 18 and 17 or any other lots 
that have this type of interface. In areas where a private back/side yard with a registered 
Section 219 covenant back on to parkland, we have agreed with Wilden to continue with 
the post and sign pilot project.  This is to be completed at time of subdivision. 
 
Any areas of park that are disturbed, they will need to restore - I would suggest that they 
install temporary construction fencing to try to protect the area from contractors. For 
road frontage immediately adjacent to public park & open space, the developer shall 
install a vertical curb. 

6.0 Application Chronology  

Date Application Received: March 1st, 2013 
 
 
 
 

88



Z13-0012 – Page 4 

Report prepared by: 

     
Alec Warrender, Land Use Planner 
 

Reviewed by:           Danielle Noble, Manager of Urban Land Use 
 

Approved for Inclusion:         Doug Gilchrist, A. General Manager, Community Sustainability 

Attachments:  

Subject Property Map 
Map ‘B’ 

 

89



90



91



CITY OF KELOWNA 
 

BYLAW NO. 10839 
Z13-0012 – Glenwest Properties Ltd. Inc. No. C0889227  

185 Clifton Road North, (E of) Upper Canyon Drive, (W of) 
Union Road and 225 Clifton Road 

 

 
A bylaw to amend the "City of Kelowna Zoning Bylaw No. 8000". 
 
The Municipal Council of the City of Kelowna, in open meeting assembled, enacts as follows: 
 

1. THAT City of Kelowna Zoning Bylaw No. 8000 be amended by changing the zoning 
classification of a portion of The North West ¼ of Section 5, Township 23, ODYD, 
Except Plans 20895, KAP88266 and EPP24895  located on Clifton Road North; The South 
West ¼ of Section 5, Township 23, ODYD, Except Plans KAP83526, KAP88266, EPP9195 
and EPP24895, located on Upper Canyon Drive; The North East ¼ of Section 5, 
Township 23, ODYD, Except Plans 896, B645, KAP69724 and EPP24895, located on 
Union Road; Lot D, Section 8, Township 23, ODYD, Plan KAP75116, Except Plan 
EPP24895, located on Clifton Road, Kelowna, B.C., from the P3 – Parks and Open 
Space zone, the RU2h – Medium Lot Housing (Hillside Area) zone, the RU1h – Large Lot 
Housing (Hillside Area) zone and the A1 – Agriculture 1 zone to the RU2h – Medium Lot 
Housing (Hillside Area) zone and the RU1h – Large Lot Housing (Hillside Area) zone as 
per Map “B” attached to and forming part of this bylaw. 

 
2. This bylaw shall come into full force and effect and is binding on all persons as and 

from the date of adoption. 
 
 
Read a first time by the Municipal Council this 
 
 
Considered at a Public Hearing on the 
 
 
Read a second and third time by the Municipal Council this 
 
 
 
Adopted by the Municipal Council of the City of Kelowna this 
 
 
 
 

 
Mayor 

 
 
 
 

 
City Clerk 

  

92



 

93



REPORT TO COUNCIL 
 
 
 

Date: March 15th, 2013 

RIM No. 1250-20 

To: City Manager 

From: Land Use Management, Community Sustainability (AW) 

Application: 
OCP12-0015 / DP12-
0198 / DVP12-0199 

Owners: 

0754028 BC LTD., INC. NO. BC0754028 & 

D.M.R LAW CORPORATION, INC. NO. 
BC0776896; 0814932 BC LTD., INC. NO. 
BC0814932 / BETKER HOLDINGS INC., INC. 
NO. BC0936374  

Address: 
526 Doyle Avenue 

1368 St. Paul Street 
Applicant: 0754028 BC LTD. (Doug Dueck) 

Subject: Supplemental Report - OCP Text Amendment 

Existing OCP Designation: Mixed-Use (Residential/Commercial) 

Existing Zone: C7 – Central Business Commercial 

 

1.0 Recommendation 

THAT Official Community Plan Bylaw Amendment No. OCP12-0015 to amend the 2030 Official 
Community Plan Bylaw No. 10500, for Objective 5.5, Policy .1, Building Height to exclude the 
development proposed at 526 Doyle Avenue and 1368 St. Paul Street from the City Centre 
Building Heights Map in order to permit one 30 storey (88m) mixed use tower be considered by 
Council;  
 
AND THAT Official Community Plan Bylaw Amendment No. OCP12-0015 to amend the 2030 
Official Community Plan Bylaw No. 10500, for Objective 5.5, Policy .1, Building Height to exclude 
the development proposed at 526 Doyle Avenue and 1368 St. Paul Street in order to permit a 22 
storey and 30 storey mixed use development with the two towers having a separation of 32.0m 
where the minimum tower separation for a project with a tower floor plate greater than 697m² is 
36.5m., be considered by Council; 
 
AND THAT Council considers the applicant’s March 8th, 2013 Public Information Meeting to be 
appropriate consultation for the purpose of Section 879 of the Local Government Act, as outlined 
in the report of the Land Use Management Department dated March 15th, 2013; 
 
AND THAT the Official Community Plan Bylaw Amendment Bylaw be forwarded to a Public 
Hearing for further consideration; 
 

94



OCP12-0015 / DP12-0198 / DVP12-0199 – Page 2 

 
 

AND THAT Final Adoption of the Official Community Plan Bylaw Amendment Bylaw be considered 
by Council; 
 
AND THAT Council authorize the issuance of Development Permit No. DP12-0198 for Lot A, 
District Lot 139, ODYD, Plan EPP9526, located at 526 Doyle Avenue and Lot A, District Lot 139, 
ODYD, Plan KAP87835 located at 1368 St. Paul Street, Kelowna, B.C. subject to the following: 
 
1)  The dimensions and siting of the building to be constructed on the land be in general 
accordance with Schedule "A"; 
 
2)  The exterior design and finish of the building to be constructed on the land be in general 
accordance with Schedule “B”; 
 
3)  Landscaping to be provided on the land be in general accordance with Schedule "C"; 
 
4)  The applicant be required to post with the City a Landscape Performance Security deposit  
in the form of a "Letter of Credit" in the amount of 125% of the estimated value of the 
landscaping, as determined by a professional landscaper and for the public art program; 
 
5)  The registration of a covenant on title limiting the use of CRU #6 as a Major Child Care Centre 
including dedicated play space on top of the podium to the satisfaction of the Interior Health 
Authority as shown on Schedule “A”;   
 
6)  The execution of the Servicing Agreement and associated bonding for the Development 
Engineering requirements; 
 
7)  Registration of a plan of subdivision at Land Titles Office to consolidate the two subject 
properties into a single title prior to issuance of the Development Permit; 
 
8)  That Cash-in-Lieu of the required parking (35 x $22,500.00 = $787,500.00) be provided prior to 
issuance of the Development Permit. 
 
9) Prior to issuance of a Building Permit the applicant be required to design the building to 
accommodate Fortis BC’s anticipated District Energy system; 
 
10) Prior to issuance of a Building Permit the applicant be required to provide plans for two 
electric car charging stations and a bike share program including 10 bikes;  
 
AND FURTHER THAT the applicant be required to complete the above-noted condition No. 4 
within 180 days of Council approval of the Development Permit Application in order for the 
permit to be issued; 
 
AND THAT Council authorize the issuance of Development Variance Permit No. DVP12-0199 for 
Lot A, District Lot 139, ODYD, Plan EPP9526, located at 526 Doyle Avenue and Lot A, District Lot 
139, ODYD, Plan KAP87835 located at 1368 St. Paul Street, Kelowna, B.C.;  
 
AND FURTHER THAT variances to the following sections of Zoning Bylaw No. 8000 be granted: 
 
Section 14.7.5 (a) Development Regulations - Height:   
To vary the height from 44m permitted to 65m (Tower #1) and 88m (Tower #2) proposed; 

95



OCP12-0015 / DP12-0198 / DVP12-0199 – Page 3 

 
 

 
Section 14.7.5 (e) Development Regulations – Setbacks above 15m:   
To vary the building setback for Tower #1 along Doyle Avenue from 3.0m required to 1.24m 
proposed for portions of a building above 15m; 
 
Section 14.7.5 (g) Development Regulations - 80˚ Inclined Angle:  
To vary the inclined plane above 15m from 80˚ permitted for Tower #1 to 85.58˚for western 
elevation and 88.65º for the eastern elevation and from 80º for Tower #2 to 87.07º for the 
western elevation and 83.09º for the eastern elevation. 
 
Section 14.7.5 (h) Development Regulations – Floor Plate Area:  
To vary the maximum floor plate area for Tower #2 from 676m² to 822.65m² (Floors 5-13) - 
770.63m² (Floors 14-21) - 695.85m² (Floors 22-28); 
 
Section 14.7.5 (i) Development Regulations – Horizontal Dimension Above 15m:   
To vary the maximum horizontal dimension above 15m for Tower #2 from 26m permitted to 
37.8m x 31.24m proposed; 
 
Section 14.7.5 (l) (i) Development Regulations – Setbacks above 22m:   
To vary the building setback from an interior lot line for Tower #2 from 15m required to 4.0m 
proposed for portions of a building above 22m; 
 
Section 14.7.5 (l) (ii) Development Regulations – Setbacks above 22m: 
To vary the building setback from a lot line abutting a lane for Tower #2 from 10m required to 
3.6m proposed for portions of a building above 22m; 

2.0 Purpose  

To consider an OCP amendment to exclude the development proposed at 526 Doyle Avenue 
and 1368 St. Paul Street from the OCP’s Building Height Policy in order to permit a 65m (22 
storey) and 88m (30 storey) 2 tower, mixed use development where the City Centre Building 
Height Map allows 76.5m (~26 storeys); and to permit a 30 storey mixed use development with 
two towers having a separation of 32.0m where the minimum tower separation for a project with 
a floor plate greater than 697m² is 36.5m.  
 
A Development Permit for the form and character of the proposed two high rise towers is also 
under consideration. The following variances have been proposed as part of the revised 
development concept: 
 
1.   Vary the height from 44m permitted to 65m (Tower #1) and 88m (Tower #2) proposed; 
2.   Vary the required setback from a property line abutting a street from 3.0m required to 1.24m 
proposed for portions of a building above 15m; 
3.   Vary the building setback from an interior lot line from 15m required to 4.0m proposed for 
portions of a building above 22m; 
4.   Vary the building setback from a lot line abutting a lane for Tower #2 from 10m required to 
3.6m proposed for portions of a building above 22m; 
5.   Vary the maximum horizontal dimension above 15m for Tower #2 from 26m permitted to 
37.8m x 31.24m proposed; 
6.   Vary the maximum floor plate area for Tower #2 from 676m² to 822.65m² (Floors 5-13) - 
770.63m² (Floors 14-21) - 695.85m² (Floors 22-28);  
7.   Vary the inclined plane above 15m from 80˚ permitted for Tower #1 to 85.58˚for western 

96



OCP12-0015 / DP12-0198 / DVP12-0199 – Page 4 

 
 

elevation and 88.65º for the eastern elevation and to vary the 80º for Tower #2 to 87.07 º for the 
western elevation and 83.09 for the eastern elevation. 

3.0 Land Use Management  

 
When this application was defered at the December 3rd, 2012 Council Meeting, Staff had 
indicated that the desire was to work with the applicant to establish a concept that could be 
supported, the ideal situation was to have a project that satisfied both the floor plate area and 
tower seperation regulations. Staff had indicated that the additional height (30 storeys) could be 
supported if these two important criteria had been addressed. Since then, the applicant has been 
able to secure the property to the north which has eliminated the tower seperation variance.  
However, the additional land assembly has been unable to address the floor plate variance and it 
remains unchanged. While Staff would still prefer to see the floor plate area variance 
considerably reduced (or eliminated), Staff are supporting the project based on the increased 
tower seperation and the proposed amenity package. 
 
Downtown Plan & OCP Considerations 
Although the applicant has made positive changes the overall massing, the floor plate and height 
variance for Tower #2 remains a concern. As was evident through the Downtown Plan Charette 
public process creating a dynamic skyline, allowing strategic and sustainable density, and 
incorporating facilities/elements that enhance public benefits are all highly desirable public 
objectives. Through this collaborative process, the subject property was noted as having the 
potential to support building heights of up to 26 stories.  However, these height considerations 
were balanced with an important 36.5m tower separation provision when floor plates exceed 
697m². As proposed, the towers are sited 32m apart which is a reduction from the required 
36.5m.  Furthermore, this larger height profile would be more appropriate with a slender tower 
conforming to the 697m² maximum floor plate area.  Notably, the first 8 stories of Tower #2 have 
a floor plate area of 822.65 m² which is in excess of the maximum allowable.  
 
It is important to note that the building heights identified in the OCP do not imply or recommend 
that all development reach this maximum height potential.  Rather, site-specific consideration of 
each development is required to ensure an overall improvement to the urban design and public 
realm of the Downtown. The evaluation criteria for tall buildings have been identified as:  
 

 Contextual fit into the surrounding urban fabric 

 Shadowing of the public realm 

 View impacts 

 Overlook and privacy impacts on neighbouring buildings 

 Impacts on the overall skyline 

 Distance between adjacent buildings above 22m in height 

 Impacts on adjacent or nearby heritage structures 

 Building form and massing to mitigate negative impacts of buildings over 22m in height 
 
The proposed development does not satisfy all of these criteria, but the applicant has made 
improvements to the project that have brought it more in line with these criteria. Considering 
additional height above and beyond the OCP City Centre Building Height Map is not the core issue 
when evaluating the merits of the overall development proposal. However, approving additional 
height for a project that does not conform to the floor plate area continues to be a concern.  
 

97



OCP12-0015 / DP12-0198 / DVP12-0199 – Page 5 

 
 

Visual & Shadow Impact Assessment 
The Visual Impact analysis attached to this report shows how the proposed development has been 
improved to reduce impacts on the surrounding neighbourhood and the Downtown Urban Centre. 
There will be significant changes to Kelowna’s sky line and the surrounding neighbourhood as a 
result of this project moving forward, but increasing the tower separation to 32m has helped to 
minimize these impacts. The larger tower separation in conjunction with the reduced the floor 
plate area for Tower #1 has significantly reduced the project’s overall massing.  
 
Amenity Package 
 
Daycare 
The applicant is still proposing to secure one of the street level retail spaces for the use of a 
daycare. The original proposal included a day-care space of 165m² finished at a cost of 
approximately $650,000. The applicant no longer plans to finish the space but will secure a 
188m² unit (see the attached site plan shown on Schedule ‘A’). A covenant will be registered on 
title restricting the use and ensuring that the daycare is secured in perpetuity. The details of this 
covenant have not been fully endorsed by the City’s Solicitor, however the applicant’s lawyer 
will be required to provide a covenant that is appropriately drafted and acceptable to the City. 
The applicant will be responsible for the costs associated with the City’s review of the legal 
document. The applicant will have to work with Interior Health on programming to ensure the 
licensing requirements can be satisfied. 
 
Public Art 
The public art component includes a sailboat at the entrance to the north tower and a bronze 
statue of a bicyclist on the corner of St. Paul and Doyle. The applicant has estimated the cost of 
these pieces at $55,000 (see the attached Public Art Proposal). 
 
Transportation & Mobility 
The applicant has committed to providing two electric car charging stations and a bike share 
program providing 10 bikes as part of the proposal. While these aren’t amenities that benefit the 
broader community, they are progressive features that have not yet been attempted in Kelowna.  
Notably, the applicant is not seeking a variance for parking reduction, but committing to the cash 
in-lieu amount.  This provides the City with a further investment in comprehensive Downtown 
parkade solutions, rather than requesting a variance that would place additional strain on the 
available downtown parking stalls. 
 
Sustainable Building    
The applicant has committed to designing the building to take advantage of District Energy if / 
when it becomes available. Rainwater capture will also be used to irrigate on-site landscaping.    
 
In summary, consideration of a project of this scale and size will be precedent setting for the 
City, and a proposal with this height and massing will have a lasting impact on the City’s skyline. 
The redevelopment of the subject properties will achieve many planning objectives noted in the 
OCP and Downtown Plan that will help catalyze an environment of live, work, and play. The 
project will add additional residential and hotel units to the Downtown Urban Centre which will 
help to support local businesses, while there are components of the project that recognize the 
importance of its proximity to the Cultural District and this important transitional location. The 
applicant team has again made a number of improvements to the overall design of the project. 
This final package has advanced to a point where considerable effort has been undertaken for 
the land assembly to reduce the tower separation and consequently the massing of the two 

98



OCP12-0015 / DP12-0198 / DVP12-0199 – Page 6 

 
 

towers.  On balance, Staff are able to support the proposed development recognizing that it does 
not completely adhere to the framework of the Official Community Plan and C7 zoning 
regulations.  
 

4.0 Proposal 

4.1 Background 

At the December 3rd, 2012 Regular Council meeting, Council deferred the proposed OCP 
amendment so that the applicant could work with Staff to review the viability of a project having 
a reduced floor plate area and an increased tower separation.  

4.2 Project Description 

Commercial and retail units will be wrapped around the exterior of the 4 storey podium, while 
parking will be located at the centre. The wrapping of the commercial units around the exterior 
of the podium provides the parking structure with a visual buffer and an active streetscape. Two 
residential towers will be located above the commercial / parking podium, Tower #1 is 22 storeys 
(65m) and Tower #2 will be 30 storeys (88m). The project is comprised of a total of 161 
residential units (1 three bedroom, 90 two bedroom and 70 one bedroom), 128 hotel suites and 
approximately 3,000m² of commercial space. 
 
The exterior of the proposed buildings are designed to be finished with grey and beige painted 
concrete, and the commercial retail units will have clear windows while the towers will have 
bronze tinted windows.  The top surface of the podium has been designed to include extensive 
landscaping, a hot tub, pool and other amenities for the residents. The top of the podium is 
finished with a metal railing system around the perimeter. The private open space requirements 
will be met as each unit will have sufficient deck / patio space. In addition, residents will have 
access to approximately 1,858m² of open space located on top of the podium. The proposed 
streetscaping will be similar to what has been secured through the Madison development which 
would include street trees, benches and additional landscaping. The applicant has proposed 
public art features that will adorn the building podium, the corner of St. Paul and Doyle and the 
St. Paul lobby entrance will provide art pieces located near the entranceways. The applicant has 
also proposed that one of the commercial retail units (188m²) be secured as a day-care. A total 
of 7 variances have been requested, they are as follows: 
 

1. Vary the height from 44m permitted to 65m (Tower #1) and 88m (Tower #2) proposed; 
2. Vary the required setback from a property line abutting a street from 3.0m required to 

1.24m proposed for portions of a building above 15m; 
3. Vary the building setback from an interior lot line from 15m required to 4.0m proposed 

for portions of a building above 22m; 
4. Vary the building setback from a lot line abutting a lane for Tower #2 from 10m required 

to 3.6m proposed for portions of a building above 22m; 
5. Vary the maximum horizontal dimension above 15m for Tower #2 from 26m permitted to 

37.8m x 31.24m proposed; 
6. Vary the maximum floor plate area for Tower #2 from 676m² to 822.65m² (Floors 5-13) - 

770.63m² (Floors 14-21) - 695.85m² (Floors 22-28);  
7. Vary the inclined plane above 15m from 80˚ permitted for Tower #1 to 85.58˚for western 

elevation and 88.65º for the eastern elevation and to vary the 80º for Tower #2 to 87.07 º 
for the western elevation and 83.09 for the eastern elevation. 

 

99



OCP12-0015 / DP12-0198 / DVP12-0199 – Page 7 

 
 

It should also be noted that the applicant will be providing cash-in-lieu for some of the required 
parking spaces. The applicant is providing 295 stalls where 330 stalls are required. In order to 
meet the parking requirements, cash-in-lieu of the required parking will be provided for 35 stalls 
(35 x $22,500 = $787,000.00). The proposal compares to the C7 zone requirements is as follows: 
 

CRITERIA Deferred Application Development Proposal C7 Zone  

  Development Regulations 

Total Floor Area (m²) 26,571.3m² 26,931m²  

F.A.R. 7.54 6.41 FAR = 9.0 

Building Height Tower #1 – 22 storeys / 65m  
Tower #2– 30 Storeys / 88m 

Tower #1 – 22 storeys / 65m  
Tower #2– 30 Storeys / 88m 

44.0m 

       Setbacks - At Grade 

Front (St. Paul St.) 0.0m 0.0m 0.0m 

Rear (lane) 0.0m 0.0m 0.0m 

North Side 0.0m 0.0m 0.0m 

South Side 0.0m 0.0m 0.0m 

      Setbacks - 15m above grade 

East - St. Paul St. 3.0m 3.0m 3.0m 

West – lane Tower #1 – 15.3m 
Tower #2 - 3.64m 

Tower #1 – 15.3m 
Tower #2 - 3.64m 

3.0m 

North – Property 1.22m 4.0m 4.0m  

South - Doyle Ave. 1.24m 1.24m 3.0m 

     Setbacks - 22m above grade 

North – Adj. property 1.22m 4.0m 15.0m 

West – lane / Madison Tower #2 - 3.64m Tower #2 - 3.64m 10.0m 

Tower Separation  19.5m 32.0m 30.0m 

           Floor Plate 

 Floor Plate - Exterior 
horizontal dimension 

Tower #1 – 25.96m x 25.96m 
Tower #2 - 37.8m x 31.24m 

Tower #1 – 25.96m x 25.96m 
Tower #2 - 37.8m x 31.24m 

26.0m (max) 

Floor Plate - Diagonal 
dimension 

Tower #1 – 29.72m 
Tower #2 - 32.46m 

Tower #1 – 29.72m 
Tower #2 - 32.46m 

39m (max) 

 
 
 
 

Floor Plate - Area 

Tower #1: 
Floors 5 – 615.5 m² 

Floors 6-15 – 587.7 m² 
Floors 16-22 – 466.75 m² 

 
Tower #2: 

Floors 5–13 - 822.65 m² 
Floors 14-21 - 770.63 m² 
Floors 22-28 – 695.85 m² 
Floors 29-30 – 627.56 m² 

Tower #1: 
Floors 5 – 615.5 m² 

Floors 6-15 – 587.7 m² 
Floors 16-22 – 466.75 m² 

 
Tower #2: 

Floors 5–13 - 822.65 m² 
Floors 14-21 - 770.63 m² 
Floors 22-28 – 695.85 m² 
Floors 29-30 – 627.56 m² 

 
 
 
 

676 m² (max) 

 
 

Vertical Angle - 15m 

Tower #1 
South - 88.65º 
West - 85.58º 

 
Tower #2 

West – 87.07º 
East – 83.09º 

Tower #1 
South - 88.65º 
West - 85.58º 

 
Tower #2 

West – 87.07º 
East – 83.09º 

 
 

80º  

100



OCP12-0015 / DP12-0198 / DVP12-0199 – Page 8 

 
 

 

Private Open Space 2,415 m² 
+ 2,022 m² top of podium   

2,415 m² 
+ 1,858m² top of podium   

2,065 m²  

Parking Stalls (#) 210 stalls 
(Cash in lieu for 106 stalls) 

295 stalls 
(Cash in lieu for 35 stalls) 

330 stalls  

Bicycle Parking (#) Class I: 102 
Class II: 42 

Class I: 102 
Class II: 42 

Class I: 94  
Class II: 42  

Loading Stalls (#) 4 stalls 4 stalls 4 stalls  
Current Proposed Variances: 
1. Vary the height from 44m permitted to 65m (Tower #1) and 88m (Tower #2) proposed; 
2. Vary the required setback from a property line abutting a street from 3.0m required to 1.24m proposed for 

portions of a building above 15m; 
3. Vary the building setback from an interior lot line from 15m required to 4.0m proposed for portions of a 

building above 22m; 
4. Vary the building setback from a lot line abutting a lane for Tower #2 from 10m required to 3.6m proposed 

for portions of a building above 22m; 
5. Vary the maximum horizontal dimension above 15m for Tower #2 from 26m permitted to 37.8m x 31.24m 

proposed; 
6. Vary the maximum floor plate area for Tower #2 from 676m² to 822.65m² (Floors 5-13) - 770.63m² (Floors 

14-21) - 695.85m² (Floors 22-28);  
7. Vary the inclined plane above 15m from 80˚ permitted for Tower #1 to 85.58˚for western elevation and 

88.65º for the eastern elevation and to vary the 80º for Tower #2 to 87.07 º for the western elevation and 
83.09 for the eastern elevation. 

4.3 Site Context 

Subject Property Map:  
 

 

101



OCP12-0015 / DP12-0198 / DVP12-0199 – Page 9 

 
 

Adjacent land uses are as follows: 
Orientation Zoning Land Use 

North C7 – Central Business Commercial Office building 

East C7 – Central Business Commercial Newspaper office 

South C4 – Urban Centre Commercial Parking 

West C7 – Central Business Commercial 
I4 – Central Industrial 

Madison Development 
Awning manufacturer 

 

5.0 Current Development Policies  

5.1 Kelowna Official Community Plan (OCP) 

5.1.1 Development Process (Chapter 5) - Considerations in Reviewing Development Applications 
Ensure appropriate and context sensitive built form (Objective 5.5) 
 
Building Height (Policy .1). In determining appropriate building height, the City will take 
into account such factors as:  

• Contextual fit into the surrounding urban fabric  
• Shadowing of the public realm  
• View impacts  
• Overlook and privacy impacts on neighbouring buildings  
• Impacts on the overall skyline  
• Distance between adjacent buildings above 22m in height  
• Impacts on adjacent or nearby heritage structures  
• Building form and massing to mitigate negative impacts of buildings over 22m in 

height  
 

For all properties where height variances are required, a minimum separation distance of 
36.5 m (120 ft.) will be sought between adjacent towers where there are floor plates 
larger than 697 sq. m (7,500 sq. ft.) and a minimum separation distance of 30.5 m (100 ft) 
will be sought between towers where floor plates are less than 697 sq. m. (7500 sq. ft.). 
In addition, where a height variance is required, adequate view corridors shall be 
provided between towers. For blocks a minimum of 100m in width, any portion of a 
building above 44.0m should be sited to afford existing surrounding tower development on 
the same block a 40 degree panoramic view, measured from the closest building face 
parallel to the lot line fronting a street. 

Unless existing zoning provides for greater heights, building heights within the areas noted 
on Map 5.3 should be as noted below:  

City Centre: For the Downtown area, building heights shall, at maximum, be as noted 
on the “Downtown Building Heights” map. To achieve those heights, Council may 
consider variances from the heights set out in the Zoning Bylaw, provided that the 
additional height (beyond that provided in the Zoning Bylaw) results in the creation of 
affordable housing or yields other significant community benefits. 

 
5.1.2 Urban Design Development Permit Areas (Chapter 14) – Revitalization Design Guidelines 
 

Objectives 

 Use appropriate architectural features and detailing of buildings and landscapes to 
define area character; 

102



OCP12-0015 / DP12-0198 / DVP12-0199 – Page 10 

 
 

 Convey a strong sense of authenticity through high quality urban design that is 
distinctive of Kelowna; 

 Enhance the urban centre’s main street character in a manner consistent with the 
area’s character; 

 Provide for a scale and massing of buildings that promotes an enjoyable living, 
pedestrian, working, shopping and service experience; 

 Encourage an appropriate mix of uses and housing types and sizes; 

 Design and facilitate beautiful public open spaces that encourage year-round 
enjoyment; 

 Create open, architecturally-pleasing and accessible building facades to the street; 
and 

 Improve existing streets and sidewalks to promote alternative transportation. 
 

Guidelines 
 

Relationship to the Street (Objective 2.0) 

 Ensure streetwall height is proportional (0.75:1 maximum) to the width of the street 
as measured from building face to building face. Any development that exceeds this 
height must utilize a podium and step back above the streetwall; 

 Provide for public movement, street furniture, and building access zones to be 
incorporated into sidewalks adjacent to development; 

 Design buildings to occupy 100% of a property’s frontage along streets, eliminating 
elements that disrupt the streetwall such as off-street parking, dead spaces, empty 
lots, or driveways; 

 Coordinate building setbacks with adjacent sidewalks to increase the space for public 
use (i.e., utilize a building setback or building indentation as a patio space or seating 
area, incorporate corner rounding into the public realm with specialized paving 
treatment and street furniture); 

 Provide a high quality public realm consistent with the character of urban 
development (i.e. incorporate focal points/plazas, pedestrian pathways, parks and 
open space, enhanced streetscapes, and landscaping). 

 
Downtown Considerations  

 Articulate the street façade in a vertical rhythm that is consistent with the traditional 
subdivision pattern (i.e., maintain the character of narrow buildings and storefronts 
through changing materials, patterns, reveals, setbacks, façade portions, or design 
elements to maintain façade widths); 

 Incorporate a level of detailing that conveys a sense of craftsmanship consistent with 
the era in which original downtown buildings were built (i.e., incorporate 
architectural features such as quoins, traditional brick patterns, pediments, 
keystones, recessed entrances, etc.); 

 Windows should be set back from the building face (as opposed to flush) and include 
headers and sills; 

 Windows at street level should keep the sills low for displays of retail goods and for 
high visibility into interior spaces; 

 Upper floor windows should have vertical proportions where the height is at a 
minimum, 1.5 times the width; 

 Brick and cut stone are preferred building materials, where appropriate. Materials 
should emulate a range of colours found on prominent buildings located Downtown; 

103



OCP12-0015 / DP12-0198 / DVP12-0199 – Page 11 

 
 

 

 Incorporate high quality signage utilizing traditional size, style, fonts and design. 
Prominent and colourful signage creating a rich visual character is encouraged; 
however, illuminated signs in fluorescent colours are discouraged. 

 
Building Design (Objective 4.0) 

 Align architectural features from one building to the next. (i.e., building kickplate, top 
and bottom height of first floor windows, transoms over entranceway, horizontal and 
vertical proportions of the building, sign band above street level, parapet and cornice 
line, window sills on upper floors, roof line and proportions); 

 Mitigate the effect of shadowing on public areas. A visual assessment sun/shadow study is 
required for those developments greater than 5 storeys in height; 

 Design active facades that incorporate windows and doors on at least 75% of a building’s 
frontage; 

 Design buildings with an identifiable base, middle, and top through a change in setbacks, 
projections, textures, materials, detailing, or other architectural features; 

 Incorporate distinctive massing articulation and architectural treatments for corner sites, 
highly visible building sites, or buildings/portions of buildings that terminate important 
view corridors (i.e., varying building heights, change in façade plane, additional 
pedestrian space, large windows, awnings, canopies, arcades, or archways); 

 Orient windows, entrances, balconies and other building elements to surrounding points of 
interest and activity; 

 Use architectural elements such as atriums, grand entries and large ground-level windows 
to reveal active interior spaces; 

 Promote pedestrian-scaled architecture along the street through the use of street wall 
massing, articulation, quality materials and decorative details, textures, colours, lighting, 
and signage; 

 Design buildings with individual entrances leading to streets and pathways rather than 
lobby entrances; 

 Provide ground level access for first storey units within multiple unit residential projects; 

 Provide transition zones between the inside and outside of buildings and where 
applicable, between the public and private realms, with increased setbacks to incorporate 
courtyards, arcades, plazas, and/or patios; 

 Incorporate a high level of transparency (non-reflective and non-tinted glazing) on a 
minimum of 75% of the first floor elevation for commercial, mixed use, and industrial 
developments; 

 Finish buildings with exterior building materials that are natural, indigenous, durable and 
appropriate to the character of the development. Recommended building materials 
include brick, stone, wood and heavy timber, clear glass, metal, composite cement board, 
and finished in-situ concrete and modular concrete; 

 Prohibited building materials include vinyl siding, reflective or non-vision glass, plastic, 
unpainted or unstained wood, including pressure treated wood, and concrete block; 

 Stucco and stucco-like finishes shall not be used as a principal exterior wall material; 

 Select exterior building materials that are appropriate to the building face orientation 
(sun, wind, noise, views) as well as building use and street frontage; 

 Vents, mechanical rooms/equipment, and elevator penthouses should be integrated with 
the architectural treatment of the roof, or be screened with materials and finishes 
compatible with the building’s design. 

 

104



OCP12-0015 / DP12-0198 / DVP12-0199 – Page 12 

 
 

View Corridors (Objective 5.0) 

 Preserve and protect existing views, and where possible, create new viewscapes at the 
pedestrian level for any public or semi-public space; 

 Reinforce viewscapes to and from developments (i.e. through the placement of seating, 
open spaces, circulation routes and massing of buildings); 

 Retain extensive views (including from afar) to both the Lake and to the mountains, and 
special care should be taken with respect to massing of new developments on street ends 
from the pedestrian level and from other strategic locations; 

 Design new developments that take into account the view characteristics of adjacent 
ground floor public areas, of surrounding buildings as well as the view potential of the 
proposed building itself. 

 
Public Art (Objective 8) 

 Incorporate quality public art that: 
o Is located strategically to enhance the visual environment and provide interactive 

and interpretive experiences; 
o Is complimentary and architecturally enhancing when related to a specific 

building. 
 
Tower Design (Objective 9) 

 Design towers that are sited, shaped, and oriented along their longest axis in order to 
enhance the views to and through the skyline; 

 Incorporate tower forms and the upper portions of buildings as integral yet distinct 
elements of the overall building design. Tower tops are encouraged to have trellising and 
roof projections that are fundamental expressions of the building structure and contain 
substantial landscaping; 

 Evaluate tower buildings with respect to their compatibility with surrounding structures 
and contribution to the general skyline. Tower design should contemplate: 

o Colour, reflectivity, shape, materials, detailing, and ease of maintenance; 
o Generally, lighter-coloured buildings are preferred; 

 Incorporate architecture that expresses a slender verticality, particularly in its upper 
elements. Design buildings greater than ten floors that are tall, slender towers rather 
than bulkier towers of the same floor space ratio; 

 Design new buildings to take into account microclimatic effects, including shading of 
adjacent areas (i.e., reduce the casting of long shadows on high volume pedestrian areas) 
and wind tunneling; 

 Integrate new developments with the established urban pattern through siting and 
building design by utilizing transitional structures, setbacks, landscaping, etc.; 

 Enhance large, flat expanses of roof (whether actively used or not) with texture, colour, 
and/or landscaping where visible from above or adjacent properties; 

 Enhance towers with elements such as gazebos, trellises, and pergolas providing visual 
interest and usability of rooftop spaces; 

 Incorporate balconies into building design as outdoor rooms rather than as appendages to 
a building’s mass. Recess balconies a minimum depth of 1m within the adjoining building 
face; 

 Design podiums to provide an animated pedestrian environment with the use of street 
wall massing, articulation, and overall design. Podiums should highlight their active uses 
and disguise any parking or ancillary uses. 

105



OCP12-0015 / DP12-0198 / DVP12-0199 – Page 13 

 
 

6.0 Technical Comments  

6.1 Building & Permitting Department 

 This building is required to be of non-combustible construction. Any proposed deviance 
from this requirement of BCBC 2012 requires an approved alternate solution report 
approved prior to the release of the Development Permit.  

 A minimum Geodetic Elevation of 343.66 meters is required for all habitable spaces 
including the parking garage(s).  

 A Geotechnical report is required to address the sub soil conditions and potential impact 
on neighbouring properties. A Geotechnical pier review will be required at time of 
building permit application. 

 A Structural peer review will be required at time of building permit application. 

 We strongly recommend that the developer have his professional consultants review and 
prepare solutions for potential impact of this development on adjacent properties. Any 
damage to adjacent properties is a civil action which does not involve the city directly. 
The items of potential damage claims by adjacent properties are items like settlement of 
foundations (preload), damage to the structure during construction, additional snow drift 
on neighbour roofs, excessive noise from mechanical units, vibration damage during 
foundation preparation work etc. 

 Door swing and travel distances to be addressed at time of building permit application  

 Travel distances are required to meet BCBC 12 for the pool deck level to exit stairwells. 
This may require additional signage or an alternative solution at time of Building Permit 

 Guards are required for patio areas & all decks. The drawings provided don’t clearly. 

 A fire resistance rating is required for garbage enclosure room(s). The drawings submitted 
for building permit are to clearly identify how this rating will be achieved. 

 Requirements of the City of Kelowna fire prevention regulations bylaw No. 6110 for 
buildings greater than 6 stories are to be shown on the building permit drawings. 

 Access to the mechanical rooms at roof level are required 

 Size and location of all signage to be clearly defined as part of the development permit 

 Awnings over city property require an indemnification agreement(s). 

6.2 Development Engineering Department 

See Attached Development Engineering Memorandum 

6.3 Fire Department 

A central alarm and control facility is to be provided that is accessible from the primary 
entrance as per 3.2.6 of the BCBC. The standpipe system is to be provided with a 3" drain 
for PRV testing. A fire hydrant is to be located on the south side of St Paul St. within close 
proximity of the building and located within 45M of the FD connection. Fire flows 
calculations will be required as per the City of Kelowna Subdivision bylaw #7900 with a 
minimum of 150ltr/sec flow. The fire prevention bylaw requirements for high buildings 
will be required. Additional comments will be required at the building permit application. 

6.4 Fortis BC - Gas 

FortisBC Inc. has no land rights concerns at this time.  It should be noted that land rights 
issues may arise from the design process but can be dealt with at that time, prior to 
construction.   

106



OCP12-0015 / DP12-0198 / DVP12-0199 – Page 14 

 
 

6.5 Fortis BC – Electric 

Due to the overall size of the development, it is likely that there will be some impact to 
off-site FBC facilities in close proximity.  The applicant is responsible for all off-site costs 
incurred as a part of this development.  Any primary facilities that will be required on-site 
will require land rights protection prior to construction or energization. Otherwise, FBC 
has no land rights concerns at this time. 

6.6 Infrastructure Planning 

The developer should use the same vocabulary of streetscape elements / palette of 
materials as that used for the Madison frontages (Ellis Street and Doyle Avenue). The 
detailing of the sidewalk pattern in the Madison's case related directly to the location of 
the entrances to the commercial and residential units so obviously, this will not be the 
same as that of the proposed project. Nevertheless, the general character can be 
replicated through use of the same surface materials, benches, bollards, vegetation, trees 
and the curb let-down detail.  

A Landscape Plan is required to be submitted as part of the Civil Engineering Drawing 
Review that details the public sidewalk including: i) the proposed trees/plants (species, 
size, etc), ii) tree planting detail (tree grate, structural soils, irrigation, etc.), iii) curb 
let-down detail, iv) furniture and v) street light locations, etc. 

The irrigation system for the street trees and vegetation will be the responsibility of the 
developer and ultimately the future strata. 

Urban Braille, as per the Madison frontage should be incorporated into the public 
streetscape. The applicant is encouraged to use CNIB's resources and the City's 
Accessibility Committee. 

 

7.0 Application Chronology  

Date of Application Received: November 2nd, 2012 
Date of Council Deferral:  December 3rd, 2012 
Revised Application received: March 4th, 2013 
 
Applicant’s Public Information Meeting: March 8th, 2013 
 
The applicant hosted a Public Information Meeting to provide neighbouring businesses and 
residents with information and an opportunity to make comment prior to the application 
advancing to Council. Council Policy 367 was recently adopted which provides guidelines for 
appropriate consultation measures. Although the application has been in process long before the 
policy was adopted, Staff encouraged the applicant to hold an open house to ensure public 
consultation was conducted on the refined development proposal.    

Report prepared by: 

     
Alec Warrender, Land Use Planner  
 
 

107



OCP12-0015 / DP12-0198 / DVP12-0199 – Page 15 

 
 

Reviewed by:    Danielle Noble, Manager, Urban Land Use 
 

Approved for Inclusion  D. Gilchrist, A. General Manager, Community Sustainability 

Attachments: 

Subject Property Map 
Sit Plan  
Elevations & Renderings 
Landscape Plan 
Amenity Package Outline 
Public Art Proposal 
Development Engineering Requirements 
Public Information Meeting Summary 
 

108



109



110



111



112



113



114



115



116



117



118



119



120



121



122



123



124



125



126



127



128



129



130



131



132



133



134



135



136



137



138



139



140



141



142



143



144



145



146



147



148



149



150



151



152



153



154



155



156



157



158



 

 

CITY OF KELOWNA 
 
APPROVED ISSUANCE OF A: 
 

 Development Permit No.:  DP12-0198 & DVP12-0199        

 
EXISTING ZONING DESIGNATION: 
 
WITHIN DEVELOPMENT PERMIT AREA: 
 
DEVLOPMENT VARIANCE PERMIT: 
 

 
C7 – Central Business Commercial  
 
Revitalization Development Permit Area 
 
Multiple Variances (See Section 1. below) 

 

 
ISSUED TO:         0754028 BC LTD. (Doug Dueck) 
 

LOCATION OF SUBJECT SITE: 526 Doyle Avenue & 1368 St. Paul Street 

 

 

 LOT DISTRICT LOT TWP DISTRICT PLAN 

 
LEGAL 
DESCRIPTION: 
 

A 139  ODYD Plan EPP9526 

A 139  ODYD Plan KAP87835 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

SCOPE OF APPROVAL 
 
This Permit applies to and only to those lands within the Municipality as described above, and any and all buildings, 
structures and other development thereon. 
 
This Permit is issued subject to compliance with all of the Bylaws of the Municipality applicable thereto, except as 
specifically varied or supplemented by this Permit, noted in the Terms and Conditions below. 
 
Applicants for a Heritage Alteration Permit should be aware that the issuance of a Permit limits the applicant to be 
in strict compliance with regulations of the Zoning Bylaw or Subdivision Control Bylaw unless specific Variances have 
been authorized by the Permit.  No implied Variances from bylaw provisions shall be granted by virtue of drawing 
notations which are inconsistent with bylaw provisions and which may not have been identified as required Variances 
by the applicant or City staff. 

 
1. TERMS AND CONDITIONS: 

 
 
1)  The dimensions and siting of the building to be constructed on the land be in general accordance with 
Schedule "A"; 
 
2)  The exterior design and finish of the building to be constructed on the land be in general accordance with 
Schedule “B”; 
 
3)  Landscaping to be provided on the land be in general accordance with Schedule "C"; 
 
4)  The applicant be required to post with the City a Landscape Performance Security deposit  
in the form of a "Letter of Credit" in the amount of 125% of the estimated value of the landscaping, as 
determined by a professional landscaper and for the public art program; 
 
5)  The registration of a covenant on title limiting the use of CRU #6 as a Major Child Care Centre including 

159



- 2 - 
DP12-0198 & DVP12-0199 

 

 

dedicated play space on top of the podium to the satisfaction of the Interior Health Authority as shown on 
Schedule “A”;   
 
6)  The execution of the Servicing Agreement and associated bonding for the Development Engineering 
requirements; 
 
7)  Registration of a plan of subdivision at Land Titles Office to consolidate the two subject properties into a 
single title prior to issuance of the Development Permit; 
 
8)  That Cash-in-Lieu of the required parking (35 x $22,500.00 = $787,500.00) be provided prior to issuance of 
the Development Permit. 
 
9) Prior to issuance of a Building Permit the applicant be required to design the building to accommodate Fortis 
BC’s anticipated District Energy system; 
 
10) Prior to issuance of a Building Permit the applicant be required to provide plans for two electric car 
charging stations and a bike share program including 10 bikes; 
 
AND THAT the applicant be required to complete the above-noted condition No. 4 within 180 days of Council 
approval of the Development Permit in order for the permit to be issued. 
 
AND FURTHER THAT variances to the following sections of Zoning Bylaw No. 8000 be granted: 
 
Section 14.7.5 (a) Development Regulations - Height:   
To vary the height from 44m permitted to 65m (Tower #1) and 88m (Tower #2) proposed; 
 
Section 14.7.5 (e) Development Regulations – Setbacks above 15m:   
To vary the building setback for Tower #1 along Doyle Avenue from 3.0m required to 1.24m proposed for 
portions of a building above 15m; 
 
Section 14.7.5 (g) Development Regulations - 80˚ Inclined Angle:  
To vary the inclined plane above 15m from 80˚ permitted for Tower #1 to 85.58˚for western elevation and 
88.65º for the eastern elevation and from 80º for Tower #2 to 87.07º for the western elevation and 83.09º for 
the eastern elevation. 
 
Section 14.7.5 (h) Development Regulations – Floor Plate Area:  
To vary the maximum floor plate area for Tower #2 from 676m² to 822.65m² (Floors 5-13) - 770.63m² (Floors 
14-21) - 695.85m² (Floors 22-28); 
 
Section 14.7.5 (i) Development Regulations – Horizontal Dimension Above 15m:   
To vary the maximum horizontal dimension above 15m for Tower #2 from 26m permitted to 37.8m x 31.24m 
proposed; 
 
Section 14.7.5 (l) (i) Development Regulations – Setbacks above 22m:   
To vary the building setback from an interior lot line for Tower #2 from 15m required to 4.0m proposed for 
portions of a building above 22m; 
 
Section 14.7.5 (l) (ii) Development Regulations – Setbacks above 22m: 
To vary the building setback from a lot line abutting a lane for Tower #2 from 10m required to 3.6m proposed 
for portions of a building above 22m; 
 

2. The development shall commence by and in accordance with an approved Building Permit within ONE YEAR of 

the date of the Municipal Council authorization resolution. 
 
3. DEVELOPMENT: 
 

160



- 3 - 
DP12-0198 & DVP12-0199 

 

 

 The land described herein shall be developed strictly in accordance with the terms and conditions and 
provisions of this Permit and any plans and specifications attached to this Permit which shall form a part 
hereof. 

 
 If the Permittee does not commence the development Permitted by this Permit within one year of the date of 

this Permit, this Permit shall lapse. 
 
 This Permit is not transferrable unless specifically Permitted by the Municipality.  The authorization to transfer 

the Permit shall, if deemed acceptable, be granted by Council resolution. 
 
 THIS Permit IS NOT A BUILDING Permit. 
 
3. PERFORMANCE SECURITY: 
 
 As a condition of the issuance of this Permit, Council is holding the security set out below to ensure that 

development is carried out in accordance with the terms and conditions of this Permit.  Should any interest be 
earned upon the security, it shall accrue to the Permittee and be paid to the Permittee if the security is 
returned.  The condition of the posting of the security is that should the Permittee fail to carry out the 
development hereby authorized, according to the terms and conditions of this Permit within the time provided, 
the Municipality may use the security to carry out the work by its servants, agents or contractors, and any 
surplus shall be paid over to the Permittee, or should the Permittee carry out the development Permitted by 
this Permit within the time set out above, the security shall be returned to the Permittee.  There is filed 
accordingly: 

 
 (a) Cash in the amount of $                 N/A                           . 
 (b) A Certified Cheque in the amount of $                  N/A                         . 
 (c) An Irrevocable Letter of Credit in the amount of $               TBD                  . 
 
 Before any bond or security required under this Permit is reduced or released, the Developer will provide the 

City with a statutory declaration certifying that all labour, material, workers' compensation and other taxes 
and costs have been paid. 

 
5. APPLICANT'S AGREEMENT: 
 
 I hereby declare that all the above statements and the information contained in the material submitted in 

support of this Permit are to the best of my belief, true and correct in all respects.  Upon issuance of the 
Permit for me by the Municipality, then in such case, I covenant and agree to save harmless and effectually 
indemnify the Municipality against: 

 
 (a) All actions and proceedings, costs, damages, expenses, claims, and demands whatsoever and by 

whomsoever brought, by reason of the Municipality granting to me the said Permit. 
 
 (b) All costs, expenses, claims that may be incurred by the Municipality if the construction by me of 

engineering or other types of works as called for by the Permit results in damages to any property 
owned in whole or in part by the Municipality or which the Municipality by duty or custom is obliged, 
directly or indirectly in any way or to any degree, to construct, repair, or maintain. 

 
 I further covenant and agree that should I be granted a Development Permit or Development Variance Permit, 

the Municipality may withhold the granting of any occupancy Permit for the occupancy and/or use of any 
building or part thereof constructed upon the hereinbefore referred to land until all of the engineering works 
or other works called for by the Permit have been completed to the satisfaction of the Municipal Engineer and 
Director of Planning & Development Services. 

 
Should there be any change in ownership or legal description of the property, I undertake to notify the Land Use 
Management Departmant immediately to avoid any unnecessary delay in processing the application. 
 
 
I HEREBY UNDERSTAND AND AGREE TO ALL THE TERMS AND CONDITIONS SPECIFIED IN THIS PERMIT. 
 
 
 

161



- 4 - 
DP12-0198 & DVP12-0199 

 

 

_____________________________________________ 
Signature of Owner/Authorized Agent 
 
 
 
 
______________________________________________ 
Print Name in Bold Letters 
 

______________________________________________ 
Date 
 
 
 
 
______________________________________________ 
Telephone No. 
 

 
 
 
5. APPROVALS: 
 

 

DEVELOPMENT PERMIT & DEVELOPMENT VARIANCE PERMIT AUTHORIZED BY THE COUNCIL ON THE 23rd DAY OF APRIL, 2013 

 

ISSUED BY THE ACTING GENERAL MANAGER OF COMMUNITY SUSTAINABILITY OF THE CITY OF KELOWNA THE __________ DAY OF 

__________, 2013. 

 

 

 

__________________________________________________ 
Doug Gilchrist, A. General Manager, Community Sustainability 

162



CITY OF KELOWNA 
 

BYLAW NO. 10825 
 

Official Community Plan Amendment No. OCP12 – 0015 
0754028 BC Ltd., Inc. No. BC0754028/D.M.R. Law Corporation, Inc. 

No. BC0776896/0814932 BC Ltd., Inc. No. BC0814932/ 
Betker Holdings Inc., No. BC0936374  

 526 Doyle Avenue and 1368 St. Paul Street 
 
A bylaw to amend the "Kelowna 2030 – Official Community Plan Bylaw No. 10500". 
 
The Municipal Council of the City of Kelowna, in open meeting assembled, enacts as follows: 
 

1. THAT Chapter 5 – Development Process, Objective 5.5 Ensure appropriate and 
context sensitive built form, Policy .1 Building Height, be amended by adding the 
following table after the words “measured from the closest building face parallel to 
the lot line fronting a street.  (See Diagram 5.1)” 

Policy .1 Building Separation Does Not Apply to the following: 

Civic Address Legal Address 

526 Doyle Avenue 

1368 St. Paul Street 

Lot A, District Lot 139, ODYD, Plan EPP9526 

Lot A, District Lot 139, ODYD, Plan KAP87835 

 
2. AND THAT Chapter 5 – Development Process, Objective 5.5 Ensure appropriate and 

context sensitive built form, Policy .1 Building Height, CITY CENTRES be amended 
by adding the following table to the end of the last paragraph: 

 
Policy .1 Building Heights Does Not Apply to the following: 

Civic Address Legal Address 

526 Doyle Avenue Lot A, District Lot 139, ODYD, Plan EPP9526 

1368 St. Paul Street Lot A, District Lot 139, ODYD, Plan KAP87835 

 
3. This bylaw shall come into full force and effect and is binding on all persons as and 

from the date of adoption. 
 
Read a first time by the Municipal Council this   

 
Considered at a Public Hearing on the   
 
Read a second and third time and adopted by the Municipal Council this   
 

 
Mayor 

 
 

 
City Clerk 

 
 

163



REPORT TO COUNCIL 
 
 
 

Date: March 13, 2013 

RIM No. 1250-30 

To: City Manager 

From: Land Use Management, Community Sustainability (GS) 

Application: 

OCP13-0002 

Z13-0003 

TA13-0004 

Owner: 
Pier Mac Petroleum 
Installation Ltd., Inc. No. 
BC0088127 

Address: 

1760 Quail Ridge Blvd. 

2025 Quail Ridge Blvd. 

2137 Quail Ridge Blvd. 

Applicant: Protech Consultants Ltd. 

Subject: OCP Amendment, Rezoning and Text Amendment Applications 

Existing OCP Designation: 
Resource Protection Area (REP), Commercial (COMM), Industrial 
(IND) and Parks & Open Space (PARK) 

Proposed OCP Designation: 
Commercial (COMM), Industrial (IND) and Parks & Open Space 
(PARK) 

Existing Zone(s): 
A1- Agriculture 1, CD15 - Airport Business Park, I5 - Extraction, 
and P3 - Parks & Open Space 

Proposed Zone(s): CD15 - Airport Business Park and P3 - Parks and Open Space 

 

1.0 Recommendation 

THAT Official Community Plan Bylaw Amendment No. OCP13-0002 to amend Map 4.1 of the 
Kelowna 2030 – Official Community Plan Bylaw No. 10500, by changing the Future Land Use 
designation of The West ½ of Section 14 Township 23 ODYD Except Plans H16596, KAP47192, 
KAP51877, KAP53641, KAP53790, KAP57365, KAP73608 and KAP82802 located at 1760 Quail Ridge 
Blvd; Lot A District Lot 32 and Section 14 Township 23 ODYD Plan KAP52924 located at 2137 Quail 
Ridge Blvd; and Lot B District Lot 32 and Section 14 Township 23 ODYD Plan KAP52924 located at 
2025 Quail Ridge Blvd, Kelowna, BC from the Resource Protection Area (REP), Commercial 
(COMM), Industrial (IND) and Parks & Open Space (PARK) designation, to the Commercial (COMM), 
Industrial (IND) and Parks & Open Space (PARK) designation, as shown on Map “A” attached to 
the Report of the Land Use Management Department dated March 13, 2013, be considered by 
Council; 
 
AND THAT Official Community Plan Bylaw Amendment No. OCP13-0002 to amend Map 5.8 of the 
Kelowna 2030 – Official Community Plan Bylaw No. 10500, by adding the ‘Comprehensive 
Development Permit Area’ designation to The West ½ of Section 14 Township 23 ODYD Except 
Plans H16596, KAP47192, KAP51877, KAP53641, KAP53790, KAP57365, KAP73608 and KAP82802 
located at 1760 Quail Ridge Blvd; Lot A District Lot 32 and Section 14 Township 23 ODYD Plan 

164



OCP13-0002/Z13-0002 – Page 2 

 
 

KAP52924 located at 2137 Quail Ridge Blvd; and Lot B District Lot 32 and Section 14 Township 23 
ODYD Plan KAP52924 located at 2025 Quail Ridge Blvd, Kelowna, B.C., as shown on Map “C” 
attached to the Report of Land Use Management Department dated March 13, 2013, be 
considered by Council; 
 
AND THAT Official Community Plan Bylaw No. OCP13-0002 to amend Table 4.2 – Potential ASP 
Development Components of the Kelowna 2030 – Official Community Plan Bylaw No. 10500 by 
removing reference to “1. Pier Mac” as shown on Schedule “A” attached to the Report of the 
Land Use Management Department dated March 13, 2013, be considered by Council;    
 
AND THAT Rezoning Application No. Z13-0003 to amend the City of Kelowna Zoning Bylaw No. 
8000 by changing the zoning classification of The West ½ of Section 14 Township 23 ODYD Except 
Plans H16596, KAP47192, KAP51877, KAP53641, KAP53790, KAP57365, KAP73608 and KAP82802 
located at 1760 Quail Ridge Blvd; Lot A District Lot 32 and Section 14 Township 23 ODYD Plan 
KAP52924 located at 2137 Quail Ridge Blvd; and Lot B District Lot 32 and Section 14 Township 23 
ODYD Plan KAP52924 located at 2025 Quail Ridge Blvd, Kelowna, BC from the A1- Agriculture 1, 
CD15 - Airport Business Park, I5 - Extraction, and P3 - Parks & Open Space zone to the CD15 - 
Airport Business Park and P3 - Parks and Open Space zone, as shown on Map “B” attached to the 
Report of the Land Use Management Department dated March 13, 2013, be considered by 
Council; 
 
AND THAT Zoning Bylaw Text Amendment No. TA13-0004 to amend City of Kelowna Zoning Bylaw 
No. 8000 by amending the CD15 – Airport Business Park zone, as outlined in Schedule “B” of the 
Report of the Land Use Management Department dated March 13, 2013, be considered by 
Council; 
 
AND THAT the City of Kelowna Zoning Bylaw be amended by removing and replacing the CD15 - 
Airport Business Park zone “Map 1” as outlined in Schedule “C” of the Report of the Land Use 
Management Department dated March 13, 2013 be considered by Council; 
 
AND THAT the Official Community Plan Bylaw Amendment Bylaw, the Zone Amending Bylaw and 
the Text Amendment Bylaw be forwarded to a Public Hearing for further consideration;  
 
AND THAT final adoption of the Zone Amending Bylaw be considered subsequent to the 
requirements of the Development Engineering Branch, Environment & Land Use Branch, Ministry 
of Transportation and the Glenmore Ellison Irrigation District being met. 

2.0 Purpose 

To amend the Official Community Plan future land use designations (Map 4.1) and the existing 
line work from the "Resource Protection Area", and "Industrial" designations to a largely industrial 
and commercial designation, with the remainder designated for Parks & Open Space.  The OCP 
amendment is proposed in support of a rezoning to the CD15 - Airport Business Park zone.  
Further, to amend Official Community Plan Map 5.8 – Urban Design Development Permit Area Map 
by adding the CD15 – Airport Business Park zone as a ‘General Commercial & Industrial DP Area’ 
and to amend Table 4.2 by removing reference to a Pier Mac Area Structure Plan.  
 
Additionally, it is proposed that the subject property be rezoned from the A1- Agriculture 1, 
CD15 - Airport Business Park, I5 - Extraction, and P3 - Parks & Open Space zones (current) to the 
CD15 - Airport Business Park and P3 - Parks and Open Space zones (proposed).  The proposed 
CD15 rezoning is in support of a proposed 51 lot subdivision containing one commercially zoned 

165



OCP13-0002/Z13-0002 – Page 3 

 
 

property and 50 industrially zoned properties.  
 
The applicants are concurrently proposing to amend the CD15 zone to include ‘Breweries and 
Distilleries, Major’ as a permitted “Principal Use” within the areas designated as “Industrial” in 
the CD15 – Airport Business Park zone.   
 
Finally, to amend the CD15 – Airport Business Park zone by replacing existing Map 1 (Airport 
Business Park Phase 1 & 2 Zoning Plan) with a revised “Map 1”. 

3.0 Land Use Management 

The Airport Business Park zone (CD15) was created to “provide a zone for the development of a 
comprehensively planned business park for high technology and general industrial and business 
uses to complement the City’s northern gateway development node” and to “provide for a 
neighbourhood commercial area as part of the airport business park development1”.  The 
development has proceeded as anticipated when the CD zone was drafted and adopted into the 
Zoning Bylaw in 2003.  Construction of The Four Points Sheraton near the intersection of Airport 
Way and Highway 97 N is the most recent high profile addition that was anticipated for this zone.   

The subject property is in a gateway location at one of Kelowna’s premiere entry points and in 
close proximity to Kelowna International Airport and University of British Columbia, Okanagan 
campus.  The development site provides for a high profile location for businesses and offers 
among the best transportation infrastructure (i.e. road, rail and air) that Kelowna has to offer.  
The subject properties nicely augment the City’s existing industrial land base with the addition of 
50 industrial parcels of various sizes that will satisfy a wide variety of business needs. 

While the proposed development area was identified in the Official Community Plan (OCP) as a 
potential future Area Structure Plan (ASP) location, the creation of an ASP to direct the orderly 
development was not warranted.  Rather, a Draft ASP developed (but never adopted) prior to the 
initial rezoning and a subsequent set of Development Permit (DP) guidelines provide sufficient 
guidance.  As a result, the current reference in the OCP will be removed as a result of the OCP 
amendment.   

The gateway location and proximity to Highway 97 N and a major residential and tourist hub in 
the Quail Ridge development warrants additional oversight in terms of the form and character of 
future development.  The proposed amendments will result in each of the properties requiring a 
DP prior to construction.  This requirement is consistent with recommendations made in a 
supplemental document to the originally proposed Area Structure Plan (Airport Business Park – 
Development Applications).  The DP will help to ensure a higher level of development in terms of 
the buildings and structures and the landscaping within the zone. 

Development of the subject properties will trigger construction of Hollywood Road N through the 
subject properties and connecting with Quail Ridge Boulevard.  The construction of Hollywood 
Road N between Airport Way and Lougheed Road is anticipated within the 20 year Servicing Plan.  
Construction of Hollywood Road N through the subject properties should allow for the orderly 
development of the industrial parcels with limited impact on Quail Ridge residents and visitors. 

The dedication of the area west of proposed Hollywood Road N to the City, while not providing 
recreational value, will allow the City to ensure that the area can be maintained to a high 
standard.  The visually prominent hillside will be restored by the applicant in addition to a 
commitment to ongoing maintenance for five years to ensure planting success.    

                                                
1 City of Kelowna Zoning Bylaw 8000. Schedule ‘B’ – Comprehensive Development Zones (CD15 – Airport Business Park).  P. CD15-1. 

166



OCP13-0002/Z13-0002 – Page 4 

 
 

A portion of the subject properties was, until very recently, within the Agricultural Land Reserve 
(ALR). Exclusion of a portion of the subject properties was conditional on the provision of 
$150,000 for the improvement of agriculture.  Staff look forward to working with the Agricultural 
Land Commission (ALC) to identify the best use of these funds. 

Staff are supportive of the proposed addition of the ‘Breweries and Distilleries, Major’ use within 
one of the City’s prominent business parks and in a gateway location.  While older breweries and 
distilleries have been associated with noxious odors especially, newer technologies and brewing 
and distilling practices have resulted in the elimination of most odors.  Examples such as the 
Molson Brewery on Burrard Street in Vancouver suggest that even a large scale brewery or 
distillery is a reasonable use in this zone.       

The location of the Airport Business Park at a key location for receiving raw materials and 
shipping finished product further supports this use.  Highway 97 N is a key link between 
Kelowna’s manufacturers and its business markets and the desire for a large scale brewer or 
distiller to locate along this major transportation corridor is evident.  Further, the proposed text 
amendment applies only to a CD zone and only those properties noted as industrial in this zone, 
the properties affected are fairly limited.   

For the above-noted reasons, staff are supportive of the proposed amendments.  While an OCP 
amendment is necessary to facilitate this development, the changes are consistent with staff 
expectations for this area.   

4.0 Proposal 

4.1 Background 

OCP Amendment / Rezoning 

The owners of the subject properties have been operating a gravel extraction operation since the 
1970s.  Several applications over the years have dealt with the ongoing gravel extraction 
operation as the gravel removal has proceeded towards the north boundary of the properties. 

The subject properties were partially within the Provincial Agricultural Land Reserve (ALR) until 
recently.  The land owners applied in 1996 to have ~25 ha excluded from the ALR.  The ALC 
approved the exclusion of the land subject to a number of conditions.  Of significance is a 
condition that the owner provides funds in the amount of $150,000 for an agricultural project of 
the Commission’s choice in the City of Kelowna.  The conditions were satisfied in 2012 and the 
~25 ha removed from the ALR.  The use of the funds has not yet been identified, but it has been 
confirmed that they will be made available for a worthy project in the City’s boundaries.  

As the extraction operations are nearing their end, the land owners are now seeking to develop 
the former extraction areas for urban land uses. 

The CD15 zone was developed with the subject properties in mind and was first applied to 
properties to the south through a 2003 rezoning.  The CD zone contains a variety of uses that are 
appropriate and unique to these properties given their proximity to the airport and university and 
in a gateway location along Highway 97 N.  The CD zone draws from I1 – Business Industrial and I2 
– General Industrial zone uses, in addition to limited uses from the C3 – Community Commercial 
zone.  The CD zone restricts the location and extent of certain uses (i.e. commercial) within the 
development site by virtue of the embedded location map (i.e. Map ‘1’). 

Text Amendment - Breweries and Distilleries, Major 

The applicant seeks to amend the CD 15 – Airport Business Park zone to include the Breweries 
and Distilleries, Major use.  The ‘Breweries and Distilleries, Major’ and ‘Breweries and 
Distilleries, Minor’ use categories were added to Zoning bylaw 8000 in February 2010.  That 

167



OCP13-0002/Z13-0002 – Page 5 

 
 

amendment added the ‘Breweries and Distilleries, Major’ use as a permitted “principal use” to 
the I2 – General Industrial, I3 – Heavy Industrial, I4 - Central Industrial zones.  Meanwhile the C4 – 
Urban Centre Commercial and the C7 – Central Business Commercial zones were identified as 
appropriate zones for a more restrictive use, ‘Breweries and Distilleries, Minor’.   

Staff felt that these few zones were appropriate for this use, which especially in the case of the 
‘Major’, could generate impacts consistent with industrial uses and as a result, less desirable in 
most commercial zones, and even the cleaner ‘Business Industrial’ zone (i.e. I1).     

4.2 Project Description 

a) Official Community Plan 

The applicant is proposing to expand the commercial/industrial uses that currently exist to the 
south of Airport Way north to Quail Ridge Blvd.  Much of the land to become industrial has a 
Resource Protection designation, while the proposed Commercial area has an Industrial future 
land use designation.  In addition, a portion (hillside) is proposed to have a Park designation 
where it is currently designated Industrial and Resource Protection Area (see Map A). 

The entire Airport Business Park is also proposed to become a Development Permit Area which is 
consistent with the recommendations of the area structure planning.  

b) OCP Text Amendment 

The OCP text amendment is required to remove the Pier Mac site as a potential Area Structure 
Plan development site.  The text amendment reflects general housekeeping to ensure that the 
OCP remains accurate and up-to-date. 

c) Zoning 

The subject properties are proposed to be rezoned from the existing A1 – Local Agriculture, I5 – 
Extraction, and P3 – Parks & Open Space zones to the CD15 – Airport Business Park and P3 – Parks 
& Open Space zones in order to accommodate the phased development of the proposed 
commercial/industrial business park (51 lots, comprised of one commercial and 50 industrial 
lots).  The sloped area proposed to be rezoned to the P3 - Parks & Open Space zone will be 
dedicated to the City through the subdivision. 

d) Zoning Bylaw Text Amendments 

The Zoning Bylaw text amendment is required to permit ‘Breweries and Distilleries, Major’ as a 
principal use within the areas designated for industrial in the CD15 – Airport Business Park zone. 

The rezoning of the subject properties north of Airport Way requires the replacement of the 
existing map which displays the extent of the CD 15 zone and the permitted uses within the zone 
with an updated map showing Phase 3. 

e) Development Permit(s) 

A Natural Environment DP will be executed at the staff level pending favourable consideration of 
the proposed land uses by Council and prior to adoption of the zone amending bylaw.  The DP will 
specifically consider the east-facing hillside which will be rezoned and dedicated to the City.  
The DP will also address the drainage and restoration of this visually sensitive slope along with a 
maintenance plan to ensure the longer term success of the restoration.   

Given that the CD15 zone includes some design guidelines, an overarching Form and Character DP 
will not be considered by Council prior to adoption of the zone amending bylaw.  However, the 
proposed changes (including the amendment to OCP Map 5.8) will require that the development 
of the future lots (i.e. construction of buildings) require a DP executed at the staff level. 

168



OCP13-0002/Z13-0002 – Page 6 

 
 

Project Overview 

The applicant proposes the application of the CD15 zone to the portion of the site located 
between Airport Way to the south and Quail Ridge Boulevard to the north for the third and final 
phase.  Since the first two phases were rezoned in 2003 it has been anticipated that this CD zone 
would be extended to the remainder of the site as the aggregate extraction was completed. 

The applicant has provided a preliminary lot layout plan which proposes 51 lots, with nine lots 
being proposed as part of a first phase.  Industrial parcel sizes vary considerably with smaller lots 
of approximately 4,000 m2 and larger lots in excess of 2 ha (21,000 m2) to appeal to a wide 
variety of uses and operations.  The single commercial parcel of 13,600 m2 is located at the 
corner of Highway 97 N and Airport Way.  The location allows for maximum highway exposure.   

While it was originally envisioned (Draft ASP) that Phase 3, north of Airport Way would not 
contain commercial land uses, the development of the earlier phases saw the removal of some of 
that commercial land base in favour of industrial land.  As a result of this redistribution, the 
proposed zoning seeks commercial use north of Airport Way in an amount generally consistent to 
what was agreed to in 2003.   

This application proposes to rezone the west portion of the site which is located between the 
western property line and the proposed Hollywood Road extension between Airport Way and 
Quail Ridge Boulevard to P3 – Parks & Open Space.  The proposed Hollywood Road alignment is at 
the toe of the slope.  The result would be a titled parcel with the land west of the proposed 
Hollywood Road (~9.67 ha) dedicated to the City.  Given the relatively steep slope (i.e. 50%) the 
dedicated parks space will function as a passive park space rather than a usable park. 

The proposal also results in the dedication of land at the intersection of Airport Way and Highway 
97 N.  The dedication of land is consistent with the land dedicated to the south of Airport Way in 
support of an envisioned future diamond interchange.  The diamond interchange is conceptual at 
this time, but has been discussed as an important piece of road infrastructure for years.  Timing 
of the construction is dependent on the procurement of funding from senior governments. 

The applicant notes that a major brewery has entered into a contract with the landowner to 
purchase and construct a brewery within the new phase of development.  This agreement has led 
to the proposed addition of ‘Breweries and Distilleries, Major’ as a ‘Principal Use’ within the 
CD15 – Airport Business Park zone.       

4.3 Site Context 

The subject property is located between the east boundary of the Quail Ridge Development and 
Highway 97 N.  The western edge is bordered by the Okanagan Golf Club’s “The Bear”.  The 
property slopes down west to east from the Quail Ridge development to the Highway.  On the 
northern edge lies a Fortis substation, while Phase I of the Airport Business Park, including the 
Four Points by Sheraton hotel, currently under construction to the south.  

The subject properties have been used for gravel extraction and related uses. 

  

169



OCP13-0002/Z13-0002 – Page 7 

 
 

Adjacent land uses are as follows: 

Orientation Zoning Land Use 

North 
A1 – Agriculture 1 
P4 - Utilities 

Rural 
Fortis Substation 

East 
Highway 
CD12 - Airport  

Highway 97 N 
Kelowna International Airport 

South 
C9 – Tourist Commercial 
CD15 – Airport Business Park 
P3 – Parks & Open Space 

Hotel 
Business park 
Open space 

West CD6 – Golf Resort Golf course 

 
Subject Property Map: 1760, 2025 and 2137 Quail Ridge Blvd 

 

5.0 Current Development Policies 

5.1 Kelowna Official Community Plan (OCP) 

Development Process Policies: 

Rezoning to Industrial. Consider allowing land not currently designated as industrial to be 
supported for an Official Community Plan amendment and subsequent rezoning to allow 
industrial uses provided that such a rezoning would be consistent with other Official Community 
Plan policies, provided that available municipal infrastructure can support the use, and provided 
that the industrial use would be compatible with existing and proposed future surrounding uses. 

Subject Properties 
Approx. location of 
Hollywood Road  

170



OCP13-0002/Z13-0002 – Page 8 

 
 

Compatibility issues to consider include, but are not limited to, visual impact, noise, odour, 
hours of operation, pollution and traffic2. 

Business Centres. Encourage, in areas designated as “Industrial,” the provision of business 
centres that incorporate a mix of research, light manufacturing and associated business office 
uses3. 

Location of Heavy Industry. Direct heavy industries to areas that would not negatively affect 
existing neighbourhoods or businesses and the natural environment4. 

Use of Gravel Prior to Development. Encourage identified gravel resources to be extracted prior 
to development of these sites for urban uses to avoid the necessity of seeking such resources in 
ALR areas (see Map 5.11 – Sand and Gravel Deposits) 5. 

Use of Depleted Areas. Require depleted extraction areas to be rehabilitated in accord with 
provincial Best Management Practices and used for urban or open space purposes consistent with 
Official Community Plan goals and policies6. 

Economic Development Policies: 

Sustainable Prosperity. Assign priority to supporting the retention, enhancement and expansion 
of existing businesses and post secondary institutions and the attraction of new businesses and 
investment identified as bringing sustainable prosperity to Kelowna7. 

Highway 97. Recognize the role that Highway 97 plays as a goods and services transportation link 
between Kelowna and its business markets8. 

6.0 Technical Comments  

6.1 Building & Permitting Department (N/A) 

6.2 Development Engineering Department (see attached) 

6.3 Bylaw Services (N/A) 

6.4 Infrastructure Planning (Parks) 

Consistent with the previous land dedication at 3420 Fleet Avenue as part of the previous phase, 
the City will accept Lot 10 (9.67 ha) as open space dedication with the following conditions: 

 Dedication of a titled lot zoned P3 - Parks & Open Space; 

 The adequate mitigation of all slope hazards, including drainage, erosion, etc.;  

 Environmental Development Permit which satisfies the need for restoration of the lot 
along with an implementation and monitoring plan; and, 

 Five year maintenance agreement to ensure success of the implemented restoration plan. 

6.5 Fire Department 

Fire department access, fire flows, and hydrants as per the BC Building Code and City of Kelowna 
Subdivision Bylaw #7900. The Subdivision Bylaw requires a minimum of 225 litres per second flow. 
Additional comments will be provided at the time of building permit applications. 
 

                                                
2 City of Kelowna Official Community Plan; Chapter 5 – Development Process Chapter – Industrial Land Use Policies. Page 5.29. 
3 City of Kelowna Official Community Plan; Chapter 5 – Development Process Chapter – Industrial Land Use Policies. Page 5.30. 
4 City of Kelowna Official Community Plan; Chapter 5 – Development Process Chapter – Industrial Land Use Policies. Page 5.30. 
5 City of Kelowna Official Community Plan; Chapter 5 – Development Process Chapter – Industrial Land Use Policies. Page 5.30. 
6 City of Kelowna Official Community Plan; Chapter 5 – Development Process Chapter – Industrial Land Use Policies. Page 5.30. 
7 City of Kelowna Official Community Plan; Chapter 8 – Economic Development Chapter – Sustainable Wealth. Page 8.1 
8 City of Kelowna Official Community Plan; Chapter 8 – Economic Development Chapter – Physical Infrastructure. Page 8.3. 

171



OCP13-0002/Z13-0002 – Page 9 

 
 

6.6 Interior Health Authority 

Interior Health is in support of this application. 

6.7 Irrigation District 

The properties are within GEID's boundaries and are currently assessed by GEID with a total of 
114.29 acres of "0" Grade (land with no water).  Land elevation of the properties ranges from 
approximately 433 m at the southeast corner to 464 m at the north end of the site.  The 
proposed CD-15 zoning for commercial and industrial development requires a minimum fire flow 
of 225 in all industrial zones, along with 100 m hydrant spacing.   

The majority of this fire flow must be provided from the UBCO Reservoir with possible 
supplementary flow from the Quail Reservoir.  Pier Mac Petroleum, the City of Kelowna, GEID 
and UBCO contributed to the construction of the UBCO reservoir in 2006.  During the past few 
years, considerable development including build-out at UBCO, connection of the airport lands to 
GEID water, and valving changes by GEID for the Ellison area have occurred. Modelling and 
detailed engineering design are required to update the original design model and analyze the 
demands that development of the subject properties may impose on GEID.  GEID has no objection 
to the rezoning of this property, subject to resolving issues outlined in the above comments. 

7.0 Application Chronology 

Date Application Received: January 11, 2013  

Report prepared by: 

     
Greg Sauer, Environment & Land Use Planner  
 

Reviewed by:    Danielle Noble, Manager, Urban Land Use 
 

Approved for Inclusion:  Doug Gilchrist, Acting Director, Land Use Management 
 

Attachments: 

Subject Property Map 
CD15 – Airport Business Park Zoning Plan – Current Phase 
Map “A” – OCP Amendment 
Map “B” – Zoning Amendment 
Map “C” – Development Permit Area Amendment 
Schedule “A” – Summary of OCP Text Amendments 
Schedule “B” – Map 1 – CD15 Zone 
Schedule “C” – Summary of Zoning Bylaw Text Amendments 
Development Engineering Comments 

172



173



174



175



176



177



178



179



180



181



182



183



 

CITY OF KELOWNA 
 

BYLAW NO. 10832 
 

Official Community Plan Amendment No. OCP13-0002 – 
Pier Mac Petroleum Installation Ltd., Inc. No. BC0088217 

1760, 2025 and 2137 Quail Ridge Boulevard 

 
A bylaw to amend the "Kelowna 2030 – Official Community Plan Bylaw No. 10500". 
 
The Municipal Council of the City of Kelowna, in open meeting assembled, enacts as follows: 
 
1. THAT Map 4.1 - Generalized Future Land Use of “Kelowna 2030 – Official Community 

Plan Bylaw No. 10500” be amended by changing the Generalized Future Land Use 
designation of the West ½ of Section 14, Township 23, ODYD, Except Plans H16596, 
KAP47192, KAP51877, KAP53641, KAP53790, KAP57365, KAP73608 and KAP82802, 
located on 1760 Quail Ridge Boulevard, Lot A, District Lot 32 and Section 14, Township 
23, ODYD District Plan KAP52924, located on 2173 Quail Ridge Boulevard, and Lot B, 
District Lot 32 and Section 14, Township 23, ODYD, District Plan KAP52924, located on 
2025 Quail Ridge Boulevard, Kelowna, B.C., from the  Resource Protection Area (REP), 
Commercial (COMM), Industrial (IND) and Parks & Open Space (PARK) designation to 
the Commercial (COMM), Industrial (IND) and Parks & Open Space (PARK) designation 
as shown on Map “A” as attached;  
 

2. AND THAT Chapter 4:  Future Land Use, Table 4.2 Potential ASP Development 
Components be deleted in it’s entirety that reads: 
 

 
And replaced with: 
 

 

184



 
 

3. AND THAT Map 5.8 – Urban Design DP Area Designation be deleted in it’s entirety and 
replaced with a new Map 5.8– Urban Design DP Area Designation as shown on Map 
“B” as attached; 

 
4. This bylaw shall come into full force and effect and is binding on all persons as and 

from the date of adoption. 
 
 
Read a first time by the Municipal Council this  
 
Considered at a Public Hearing on the  
 
Read a second and third time by the Municipal Council this  
 
Adopted by the Municipal Council of the City of Kelowna this 
 
 
 

 
Mayor 

 
 

 
City Clerk

185



 
 
 

Map “A” 

186



 
Map B 

 

187



CITY OF KELOWNA 
 
 

BYLAW NO. 10833 
 

Text Amendment No. TA13-0004 –Amendment to the City of Kelowna 
Zoning Bylaw No. 8000 – CD15Airport Business Park 

 

 
The Municipal Council of the City of Kelowna, in open meeting assembled, enacts that City of Kelowna 
Zoning Bylaw No. 8000 be amended as follows: 
 
1. THAT Schedule ‘B’ – Comprehensive Development Zones, CD15 – Airport Business Park, 1.2 
 Principal Uses be amended by adding in its appropriate locations, and renumbering subsequent 
 sub-paragraphs the following: 
 

“(d)  breweries and distilleries, major 
 (u) utility services, minor impact 
 (v) vehicle and equipment services, industrial 
 (w) warehouse sales” 
 

2. This bylaw shall come into full force and effect and is binding on all persons as and from the date 
of adoption. 

 
Read a first time by the Municipal Council this   
 
Amended at first reading by the Municipal Council this   
 
Considered at a Public Hearing on the   
 
Read a second and third time by the Municipal Council this   
 
Approved under the Transportation Act this   
_________________________________________________________________________ 
(Approving Officer-Ministry of Transportation and Infrastructure) 
 
Adopted by the Municipal Council of City of Kelowna on the   
 

 
Mayor 

 
 

City Clerk 

188



CITY OF KELOWNA 
 

BYLAW NO. 10834 
Z13-0003 – Pier Mac Petroleum Installation Ltd.   

1760, 2025 and 2137 Quail Ridge Blvd 

 

 
A bylaw to amend the "City of Kelowna Zoning Bylaw No. 8000". 
 
The Municipal Council of the City of Kelowna, in open meeting assembled, enacts as follows: 
 

1. THAT City of Kelowna Zoning Bylaw No. 8000 be amended by changing the zoning 
classification of The West ½ of Section 14, Township 23, ODYD, Except Plans H16596, 
KAP47192, KAP51877, KAP53641, KAP53790, KAP57365, KAP73608 and KAP2802; Lot A, 
District Lot 32 and Section 14, Township 23, ODYD, Plan KAP52924; Lot B, District Lot 
32 and Section 14, Township 23, ODYD, Plan KAP52924, located on Quail Ridge Blvd, 
Kelowna, B.C., from the A1 – Agriculture 1 zone, the CD15 – Airport Business Park 
zone, I5 Extraction zone and the P3 – Parks and Open Space zone to the CD15 – Airport 
Business Park zone and the P3 – Parks and Open Space zone. 

 
2. This bylaw shall come into full force and effect and is binding on all persons as and 

from the date of adoption. 
 
 
Read a first time by the Municipal Council this 
 
 
Considered at a Public Hearing on the 
 
 
Read a second and third time by the Municipal Council this 
 
 
Approved under the Transportation Act 
 
 
____________________________________________________________________________ 
(Approving Officer-Ministry of Transportation) 
 
 
Adopted by the Municipal Council of the City of Kelowna this 
 
 
 
 

 
Mayor 

 
 
 
 

 
City Clerk 

 

189



 

CITY OF KELOWNA 
 

BYLAW NO. 10703 
 

Official Community Plan Amendment No. OCP11-0018 – 
JB Developments Ltd. Inc. No. 0634315 

373-375 Fizet Avenue 

 
A bylaw to amend the "Kelowna 2030 – Official Community Plan Bylaw No. 10500". 
 
The Municipal Council of the City of Kelowna, in open meeting assembled, enacts as follows: 
 
1. THAT Map 4.1 - GENERALIZED FUTURE LAND USE of “Kelowna 2030 – Official 

Community Plan Bylaw No. 10500” be amended by changing the Generalized Future 
Land Use designation of Lot 47, Section 26, Township 26, ODYD, Plan KAP52738, 
located on Fizet Avenue, Kelowna, B.C., from the  Single/Two Unit Residential 
designation to the Multiple Unit Residential (Low Density) designation; 

 
2. AND THAT pursuant to Section 882 of the Local Government Act, each reading of this 

bylaw receive an affirmative vote of a majority of all members of the Council; 
 
3. This bylaw shall come into full force and effect and is binding on all persons as and 

from the date of adoption. 
 
 
Read a first time by the Municipal Council this 7th day of May, 2012. 
 
 
Considered at a Public Hearing on the 29th day of May, 2012. 
 
 
Read a second and third time by the Municipal Council this 29th day of May, 2012. 
 
 
Adopted by the Municipal Council of the City of Kelowna this 
 
 
 
 

 
Mayor 

 
 
 

 
City Clerk

 
 
 

 

190



CITY OF KELOWNA 
 

BYLAW NO. 10704 
Z11-0090 – JB Developments Ltd. Inc. No. 0634315  

373-375 Fizet Avenue 

 

 
A bylaw to amend the "City of Kelowna Zoning Bylaw No. 8000". 
 
The Municipal Council of the City of Kelowna, in open meeting assembled, enacts as follows: 
 

1. THAT City of Kelowna Zoning Bylaw No. 8000 be amended by changing the zoning 
classification of Lot 47, Section 26, Township 26, ODYD, Plan KAP52738 located on 
Fizet Avenue, Kelowna, B.C., from the RU6 – Two Dwelling Housing zone to the RM1 – 
Four Dwelling Housing zone. 

 
2. This bylaw shall come into full force and effect and is binding on all persons as and 

from the date of adoption. 
 
 
Read a first time by the Municipal Council this 7th day of May, 2012. 
 
 
Considered at a Public Hearing on the 29th day of May, 2012. 
 
 
Read a second and third time by the Municipal Council this 29th day of May, 2012. 
 
 
Adopted by the Municipal Council of the City of Kelowna this 
 
 
 
 

 
Mayor 

 
 
 
 

 
City Clerk 

 

191



REPORT TO COUNCIL 
 
 
 

Date: March 28th, 2013 

RIM No. 0940-40 

To: City Manager 

From: Land Use Management, Community Sustainability (AW) 

Application: DP12-0171 Owner: JB Developments Ltd., Inc. No. 0634315 

Address: 373 – 375 Fizet Avenue Applicant: JB Developments Ltd., Inc. No. 0634315 

Subject: Development Permit  

Existing OCP Designation: Single/Two Unit Residential 

Proposed OCP Designation: Multiple Unit Residential (Low Density) 

Existing Zone: RU6 – Two Dwelling Housing 

Proposed Zone: RM1 – Four Dwelling Housing 

 

1.0 Recommendation 

THAT Final Adoption of Official Community Plan Amending Bylaw No. 10703 and the Zone 
Amending Bylaw No. 10704 be considered by Council; 
 
AND THAT Council authorize the issuance of Development Permit No. DP12-0171 for Lot 47, 
Section 26, Twp. 26, ODYD, Plan KAP52738, located at 373 – 375 Fizet Avenue, Kelowna B.C., 
subject to the following: 
 
1. The dimensions and siting of the building to be constructed on the land be in general 
accordance with Schedule "A"; 
 
2. The exterior design and finish of the building to be constructed on the land be in general 
accordance with Schedule “B”; 
 
3. Landscaping to be provided on the land be in general accordance with Schedule "C"; 

2.0 Purpose  

To consider a Development Permit for the form and character of the proposed four-plex housing 
conversion. 

 

192



DP12-0171 – Page 2 

 
 

3.0 Land Use Management  

The applicant has worked with Building & Permitting Staff to prove that the upgrades required to 
bring the building up to code for the 4 units can be accomplished, external changes impacting 
the form and the character of the building are not proposed. Given that the proposed 
development was endorsed by Council at the May 29th, 2012 Public Hearing Staff are supportive 
of the Development Permit. The preference would have been to work with the applicant up front 
to ensure that the design was more appropriate for a four-plex development. However, given 
that the building was previously constructed as a large duplex, exterior design improvements are 
limited.   

 

3.1 Background 

The existing building was constructed and approved originally as a duplex.  Since that time, the 
property has been the subject to Bylaw enforcement for operating as an illegal four-plex.  
Enforcement action has prompted the current owners to pursue this application to legalize the 
four-plex, it is not known when the illegal suites were constructed. Staff were not supportive of 
the OCP and Zone amending Bylaws, they were endorsed by Council at the May 29th, 2012 Public 
Hearing. 

 

3.2 Project Description 

The building was originally constructed as a side-by-side duplex, with a driveway and garage on 
either side of the lot.  A side entrance is also provided on each side of the building, which now 
acts as entrances for added units.  Parking for each unit is provided at the front of the property 
and in the garages. Given that the building was previously constructed as a large duplex, exterior 
design improvements are limited. 

The project compares to Zoning Bylaw No. 8000 as follows: 

Zoning Analysis Table 

CRITERIA RM1 ZONE REQUIREMENTS PROPOSAL 

Existing Lot/Subdivision Regulations 
Lot Area 700m2 757m2 

Development Regulations 

Floor Area Ratio 0.6 0.58 

Height 9.5m 9.5m 

Front Yard 6.0m 6.17m 

Side Yard (west) 2.5m 3.61m 

Side Yard (east) 2.5m 3.65m 

Rear Yard 7.5m 11.83m 

Other Regulations 

Minimum Parking Requirements 7 spaces 

2-Three Bedroom Units = 4 spaces 

2-One Bedroom Units = 2.5 spaces 

7 spaces 

 

 

193



DP12-0171 – Page 3 

 
 

3.3 Site Context 

Subject Property Map: 

 

 
 

Adjacent land uses are as follows: 

Orientation Zoning Land Use 

North RU6 – Two Dwelling Housing Single/Two Family Residential 

East RU6 – Two Dwelling Housing Single/Two Family Residential 

South RM3 – Low Density Multiple Housing Multi-family housing 

West RU6 – Two Dwelling Housing Single/Two Family Residential 

4.0 Current Development Policies  

4.1 Kelowna Official Community Plan (OCP) 

Policy 5.23.1 - Ground-Oriented Housing. Encourage all multi-unit residential buildings in 
neighbourhoods with schools and parks to contain ground-oriented units with 2 or more bedrooms 
to provide a family housing choice within multi-unit rental or ownership markets. High density 
residential projects in the Downtown area are encouraged to include a ground-oriented housing 
component, especially where such can be provided on non-arterial and non-collector streets.’ 

Comprehensive Development Permit Objectives: 

 Convey a strong sense of authenticity through urban design that is distinctive for Kelowna; 

 Promote a high urban design standard and quality of construction for future development that 
is coordinated with existing structures; 

 Integrate new development with existing site conditions and preserve the character amenities 
of the surrounding area; 

 Promote interesting, pedestrian friendly streetscape design and pedestrian linkages; 

194



DP12-0171 – Page 4 

 
 

 Provide for a scale and massing of commercial buildings that promotes a safe, enjoyable 
living, pedestrian, working, shopping and service experience; 

 Incorporate architectural features and detailing of buildings and landscapes that define an 
area’s character; 

 Promote alternative transportation with enhanced streetscapes and multimodal linkages; 

 Protect and restore the urban ecology (i.e. architectural and site consideration with respect 
to the ecological impact on urban design). 

 Moderate urban water demand in the City so that adequate water supply is reserved for 
agriculture and for natural ecosystem processes. 

 Reduce outdoor water use in new or renovated landscape areas in the Cit by a target of 30%, 
when compared to 2007. 

5.0 Technical Comments  

5.1 Building & Permitting Department 

 Development Cost Charges (DCC’s) are required to be paid prior to issuance of any 
Building Permits. 

 Operable bedroom windows required as per the 2006 edition of the British Columbia 
Building Code (BCBC 06). 

 Code consultant report required to deal with exiting and fire resistance ratings at time of 
building permit.  

 Range hood above the stove and the washroom to vent separately to the exterior of the 
building. The size of the penetration for this duct thru a fire separation is restricted by 
BCBC 06, so provide size of ducts and fire separation details at time of Building Permit 
Applications. 

 A fire rated exit corridor is required from the suites to the exterior c/w fire rated doors 
and exit in two directions as per BCBC. An additional exit may be required from the suites 
or the corridor which may affect the form and character of the building.  

 Full Plan check for Building Code related issues will be done at time of Building Permit 
applications. 

 This application was brought in bylaw services for work done without permit and use 
contrary to allowable land use. Development Engineering Department 

5.2 Fire Department 

This home has 8 bedrooms within 4 suites accessed from one common corridor. A fire 
alarm system is required as per the BCBC. 

5.3 Development Engineering 

 See Attached. 

5.4 FortisBC – Electric 

FortisBC has reviewed the attached referral.  The proponent may be required to upgrade 
their electrical service to accommodate the additional units as indicated by their 
electrician.  If this is the case, they'll be required to call 1-866-436-7847 to discuss 
servicing requirements with a FortisBC designer. 

195



DP12-0171 – Page 5 

 
 

 
5.5 FortisBC – Electric 
 
 Please be advised FortisBC has no issue with the above mentioned proposal other than the 

meters may require protection posts as they will be within the new parking stalls on 
either side of the house. 

 
5.6 Bylaw Services 
 Illegal suite investigation for both sides of the existing duplexes. 

6.0 Application Chronology  

Date of Application Received: September 9th, 2012 
Council Consideration of OCP & Zone Amending Bylaws: May 29th, 2012   

Report prepared by: 

     
Alec Warrender, Land Use Planner  
 
 

Reviewed by:    Danielle Noble, Manager, Urban Land Use 
 

Approved for Inclusion  D. Gilchrist, A. General Manager, Community Sustainability 

Attachments: 

Subject Property Map 
Sit Plan  
Elevations & Photos 
Landscape Plan 
 

196



197



198



199



200



201



202



203



204



205



206



REPORT TO COUNCIL 
 
 
 

Date: March 28, 2013 

RIM No. 1250-30 

To: City Manager 

From: Land Use Management, Community Sustainability (PM) 

Application: Z10-0091 Owner: D & S Schulz Enterprises Ltd. 

Address: 196 Cariboo Road Applicant: Siegfried Schulz 

Subject: Rezoning Application, Extension Request 

Existing OCP Designation: Single / Two Unit Residential 

Existing Zone: RR3 – Rural Residential 3 

Proposed Zone: RU6 –Two Dwelling Housing 
RU1 – Large Lot Housing 

 

1.0 Recommendation 

THAT in accordance with Development Application Procedures Bylaw No. 10540, the deadline for 
the adoption of Amending Bylaw No. 10536, Lot H, Section 4, Township 23, O.D.Y.D., Plan 20088, 
located on 196 Cariboo Road, Kelowna, BC, be extended from October 19, 2012 to October 19, 
2013. 

2.0 Purpose 

To extend the deadline for adoption of the Zone Amending Bylaw from October 19, 2012 to 
October 19, 2013. 

3.0 Land Use Management  

Section 2.12.1 of Procedure Bylaw No. 10540 states that: 

 
In the event that an application made pursuant to this bylaw is one (1) year old or older and has 
been inactive for a period of six (6) months or greater: 
 

a) The application will be deemed to be abandoned and the applicant will be notified in writing 
that the file will be closed; 

b) Any bylaw that has not received final adoption will be of no force and effect; 

207



Z10-0091 – Page 2 

 
 

c) In the case of an amendment application, the City Clerk will place on the agenda of a meeting 
of Council a motion to rescind all readings of the bylaw associated with that Amendment 
application. 
 
Section 2.12.2 of the Procedure Bylaw makes provision for Council to consider an extension to an 
amending bylaw for up to 6 months beyond the 12 months deadline.   
  
By-Law No. 10522 received second and third readings on May 17, 2011 after the Public Hearing 
held on the same date. The applicant wishes to have this application remain open for an 
additional twelve months in order to secure the finance costs to meet site servicing 
requirements.  This project remains unchanged and is the same in all respects as originally 
applied for.  However, given the amount of time that has lapsed, this will be the last extension 
that Staff favourably endorses without further activity. 
 
The Land Use Management Department recommends Council consider the request for an 
extension favourably. 

Report prepared by: 

     
Paul McVey, Land Use Planner  
/hb 
 

Reviewed by:    Danielle Noble, Manager, Urban Land Use 
 

Approved for Inclusion  Doug Gilchrist, Acting General Manager, Community  
     Sustainability 
 

Attachments:  

Site Plan 

208



209



Report to Council 
 

 

Date: 

 
April 2, 2013 
 

File: 
 

0600-10 

To:  
 

City Manager 
 

From: 
 

City Clerk 

Subject: 
 

OCP Application No. OCP12-0018 and Rezoning Application No. Z12-0058 

 Report Prepared by: Jolene Lamoureux, Legislative Clerk 

 

Recommendation: 
 
THAT Bylaw No. 10791 being OCP12-0018 and Bylaw No. 10792 being Z12-0058 be adopted. 
 
Purpose:  
 
To consider adoption of Bylaw No. 10791 being OCP12-0018 and Bylaw No. 10792 being Z12-
0058 in order to change the future land use designation and rezone the subject properties to 
accommodate the proposed single family subdivision located in “The Ponds” neighbourhood 
and to further enhance the neighbourhood’s natural features and trail infrastructure. 
 
Background: 
 
Bylaw No. 10791 and 10792 received second and third readings by Council on January 29, 
2013.  A copy of the Bylaws is attached.  As the following conditions of adoption have been 
met, the Bylaws can now be adopted:  
 

1. Ravine Area Rezoned to P3 – Parks and Open Space be dedicated to the City as a titled 
lot; 

2. Parks Agreement for the construction of a public trail; 
3. Natural Environment DP; 
4. Issuance of a PLR for the proposed subdivision. 

 
 
 
Submitted by:  
 
 
 
S. Fleming, City Clerk 
 

210



211



212



Report to Council 
 

 

Date: 

 
April 2, 2013 
 

File: 
 

0600-10 

To:  
 

City Manager 
 

From: 
 

City Clerk 

Subject: 
 

OCP Application No. OCP12-0018 and Rezoning Application No. Z12-0058 

 Report Prepared by: Jolene Lamoureux, Legislative Clerk 

 

Recommendation: 
 
THAT Bylaw No. 10791 being OCP12-0018 and Bylaw No. 10792 being Z12-0058 be adopted. 
 
Purpose:  
 
To consider adoption of Bylaw No. 10791 being OCP12-0018 and Bylaw No. 10792 being Z12-
0058 in order to change the future land use designation and rezone the subject properties to 
accommodate the proposed single family subdivision located in “The Ponds” neighbourhood 
and to further enhance the neighbourhood’s natural features and trail infrastructure. 
 
Background: 
 
Bylaw No. 10791 and 10792 received second and third readings by Council on January 29, 
2013.  A copy of the Bylaws is attached.  As the following conditions of adoption have been 
met, the Bylaws can now be adopted:  
 

1. Ravine Area Rezoned to P3 – Parks and Open Space be dedicated to the City as a titled 
lot; 

2. Parks Agreement for the construction of a public trail; 
3. Natural Environment DP; 
4. Issuance of a PLR for the proposed subdivision. 

 
 
 
Submitted by:  
 
 
 
S. Fleming, City Clerk 
 

213



214



215



Report to Council 
 

 

Date: 

 
April 2, 2013 
 

File: 
 

0600-10 

To:  
 

City Manager 
 

From: 
 

City Clerk 

Subject: 
 

Text Amendment Application No. TA12-0013 – Text Amendments to Zoning 
Bylaw No. 8000 – Carriage House 

 Report Prepared by: Jolene Lamoureux, Legislative Clerk 

 

Recommendation: 
 
THAT Bylaw No. 10796, being Text Amendment Application No. TA12-0013, be adopted. 
 
Purpose:  
 
To consider adoption of Bylaw No. 10796, being Text Amendment Application No. TA12-0013 – 
Text Amendments to Zoning Bylaw No. 8000 – Carriage House. 
 
Background: 
 
Bylaw No. 10796 received second and third readings by Council on February 26, 2013.  A copy 
of the Bylaw is attached.   
 
As the following condition for adoption has been met, the Bylaw can now be adopted:  
 

1. Ministry of Transportation. 
 
 
Submitted by:  
 
 
 
Stephen Fleming, City Clerk 
 

216



  

CITY OF KELOWNA 
 
 

BYLAW NO. 10796 
 

Text Amendment No. TA12-0013 –Amendment to the City of Kelowna 
Zoning Bylaw No. 8000 – Carriage House Text Amendments 

 

 
The Municipal Council of the City of Kelowna, in open meeting assembled, enacts that City of Kelowna 
Zoning Bylaw No. 8000 be amended as follows: 
 
1. THAT Section 2 – Interpretation, 2.3 General Definitions be amended by: 

 
a)  deleting the definition for HEIGHT that reads: 
 

 “HEIGHT means, with respect to a building, the maximum vertical distance between building 
grade and the highest point of the structure of a non-sloping roof, or the mid-point between the 
eaveline and ridge of a sloping roof excluding dormers as provided for in Section 6.6 describes 
restrictions for walkout basements.” 

 
 and replacing it with: 
 

“HEIGHT with respect to a building refers to the maximum vertical distance between building 
grade and the highest point of the structure of a non-sloping roof, or the mid-point of a sloping 
roof. (see Diagram 2.1)  
Note: Section 6. 6 provides additional height and grade regulations.    

 

217



Bylaw No. 10796  
 
b) Adding a new definition for MID-POINT in its appropriate location that reads: 
 
 “MID-POINT of a roof means, the half way point of a roof that falls between the top of 

the peak and the top of the supporting wall.”; 
 

2. AND THAT Section 6 – General Development Regulations, 6.6 Height and Grade, Sub-Section 
6.6.1 be amended to include the word “firewalls,” after the words “roof stairway entrances, 
ventilating equipment,”; 

 
3. AND THAT Section 6 – General Development Regulations, 6.6 Height and Grade, Sub-Section 

6.6.4 be deleted that reads: 
  
 “Where the width of the dormer or dormers exceeds 50% of the width of the roof on which they are 

located the height of the dormer will be measured as if it was the main roof.” 
 
 and replaced with: 
 
 “The height of dormers will be measured as if they are the main roof, unless the dormers are 

limited to 2 dormers per elevation, with a maximum width of 1.2m each and a minimum 1m 
separation. The total width of the dormers may not exceed 50% of the horizontal width of the 
building elevation on which they are located.”; 

 
4. AND THAT Section 7 – Landscaping and Screening, Section 7.7.1 be amended by: 
 
 a) deleting the words “an ‘s’” after the words “Properties with” and replacing it with the  words 

 “a ‘c’”; and 
 
 b) deleting the word “RU1s” in the sentence that reads “(e.g. RU1s shall comply with the 

 requirements of the RU1 zone)” and replace it with “RU1c”; 
  
5. AND THAT  Section 7 – Landscaping and Screening, Table 7.1 – Minimum Landscape Buffer 

Treatment Levels Schedule be amended by: 
 
 a) deleting under Rural Residential Zones, “RR1s, RR2s, RR3s” and replacing it with   
  “RR1c, RR2c, RR3c”; and 
 
  b) deleting under Urban Residential Zones the following: 
   

i)  “RU1, RU1s, RU2, RU2s, RU3” and replacing it with “RU1, RU1c, RU2, RU2c, RU3” and 
 
ii)  “RU2hs” and replacing it with “RU2hc” 

 
6. AND THAT Section 8 – Parking and Loading, Location, Section 8.1.9 be amended by adding a new 

sub-paragraph (e) as follows: 
 

“(e)  no required parking shall be in the form of a parallel parking stall adjacent to a lane or 
alley way unless the parallel parking site is accessed by a driveway and is screened from 
the lane way.”; 

 
7. AND THAT Section 8 – Parking and Loading, Table 8.1 – Parking Schedule be amended as 

follows: 
 
a) deleting under Residential and Residential Related, Secondary Suites  at the end of the 

paragraph “Carriage house: 1 additional parking space, plus the required parking spaces 
for the corresponding principal dwelling unit.” and  

218



Bylaw No. 10796  
 
b) adding under  Residential and Residential Related, a new section in its appropriate 

location the following: 
 

Carriage House 1 additional parking space, plus the required parking spaces for 
the corresponding principal dwelling unit.  

 
8. AND THAT Section 11 – A1 – Agriculture 1/ A1c – Agriculture 1 with Carriage House/ A1t – 

Agriculture 1 with Agri-tourist Accommodation, 11.1.6 Development Regulations be amended 
as follows: 

 
 a) deleting sub-paragraph (b) that reads: 
 

“(b)  The maximum height is the lesser of 9.5 m or 2½ storeys, except it is 13.0m for 
accessory buildings and 16.0 m for agricultural structures.” 

 
and replace it with; 
 
“(b)  The maximum height is the lesser of 9.5 m or 2½ storeys, except it is 16.0 m for 

agricultural structures and 6.0m for accessory buildings or carriage house.”   
 

b) deleting sub-paragraph (e) that reads: 
 

 “(e) The minimum rear yard is 10.0 m, except it is 3.0 m for accessory buildings.” 
 
 and replacing it with: 
 

“(e) The minimum rear yard is 10.0 m, except it is 3.0 m for accessory buildings and a 
carriage house.  A carriage house must be located no closer than 4.5 m to the 
principal dwelling and no further than 10m from the principal dwelling.”;   

 
9. AND THAT Section 12 – Rural Residential Zones RR1/Rural Residential 1/RR1c – Rural 

Residential 1 with Carriage House, 12.1.6 Development Regulations sub-paragraph (b) be 
amended by deleting the words at the end of the paragraph that read “, and 13.0 m for 
agricultural structures”; 

 
10. AND THAT Schedule ‘B’ – Comprehensive Development Zones, CD10 – Heritage Cultural, 1.3 

Secondary Suites be amended by adding a new sub-paragraph “(g) Carriage House” in its 
appropriate location. 

 
11. This bylaw shall come into full force and effect and is binding on all persons as and from the date 

of adoption. 
 

219



Bylaw No. 10796  
Read a first time by the Municipal Council this 28th day of January, 2013.  
 
Considered at a Public Hearing on the 26th day of February, 2013. 
 
Read a second and third time by the Municipal Council this 26th day of February, 2013. 
 
Approved under the Transportation Act this 20th day of March, 2013. 
  
Blaine Garrison             
(Approving Officer-Ministry of Transportation) 
 
Adopted by the Municipal Council of City of Kelowna on the   
 
 

 
Mayor 

 
City Clerk 

220



Report to Council 
 

 

Date: 

 
April 2, 2013 
 

File: 
 

0600-10 

To:  
 

City Manager 
 

From: 
 

City Clerk 

Subject: 
 

Text Amendment Application No. TA12-0010 – Text Amendments to Zoning 
Bylaw No. 8000 – Section 14 – Commercial Zone 

 Report Prepared by: Jolene Lamoureux, Legislative Clerk 

 

Recommendation: 
 
THAT Bylaw No. 10801, being Text Amendment Application No. TA12-0010, be adopted. 
 
Purpose:  
 
To consider adoption of Bylaw No. 10801, being Text Amendment Application No. TA12-0010 – 
Text Amendments to Zoning Bylaw No. 8000 – Section 14 – Commercial Zone. 
 
Background: 
 
Bylaw No. 10801 received second and third readings by Council on February 26, 2013.  A copy 
of the Bylaw is attached.   
 
As the following condition for adoption has been met, the Bylaw can now be adopted:  
 

1. Ministry of Transportation. 
 
 
Submitted by:  
 
 
 
Stephen Fleming, City Clerk 
 

221



CITY OF KELOWNA 
 
 

BYLAW NO. 10801 
 

Text Amendment No. TA12-0010 –Amendment to the City of Kelowna 
Zoning Bylaw No. 8000 – Commercial Zone Text Amendments 

 

 
The Municipal Council of the City of Kelowna, in open meeting assembled, enacts that City of Kelowna 
Zoning Bylaw No. 8000 be amended as follows: 
 
1. THAT Section 14 – Commercial Zone, 14.8 – Convention Hotel Commerical/C8rls-Convention 

Hotel Commercial (Retail Liquor Primary)/C8lp – Convention Hotel Commercial (Liquor 
Primary), 14.8.3 Secondary Uses be amended by adding in its appropriate location a new sub-
paragraph “(e) breweries and distilleries, minor” and renumbering the subsequent subparagraphs. 
 

2. This bylaw shall come into full force and effect and is binding on all persons as and from the date 
of adoption. 

 
Read a first time by the Municipal Council this 4th day of February, 2013. 
 
Considered at a Public Hearing on the 26th day of February, 2013. 
 
Read a second and third time by the Municipal Council this 26th day of February, 2013. 
 
Approved under the Transportation Act this 20th day of March, 2013. 
 
Blaine Garrison             
(Approving Officer-Ministry of Transportation and Infrastructure) 
 
Adopted by the Municipal Council of City of Kelowna on the   
 
 
 

 
Mayor 

 
 

City Clerk 

222



Report to Council 
 

Date: 

 
April 3, 2013 
 

Rim No.: 
 

1140-50 

To:  
 

City Manager 

From: 
 

Ron Forbes, Property Manager 

Subject: 
 

Licence and Management Agreement – Downtown Marina 

  

 

Recommendation: 
 
THAT Council approves the City entering into a fifteen (15) year Licence and Management 
Agreement, with Downtown Marina Inc., with the option to renew for an additional five (5) 
year term, in the form attached to the Report of the Manager, Property Management, dated 
April 3, 2013; 
 
AND THAT the Mayor and City Clerk be authorized to execute the agreement. 
 
Purpose:  
 
To obtain Council approval of the Licence and Management Agreement. 
 
Background: 
 
On March 26, 2012 Council passed the following resolutions: 
 

THAT Council endorses staff’s recommendation to award the design, construction, 
operation and maintenance of the Queensway Marina to Westcorp Properties Inc.; 
 
AND THAT Council authorizes staff to enter into an agreement with Westcorp 
Properties Inc. for the design and construction of the Queensway Marina for a lump 
sum payment of Two Hundred Thousand ($200,000) Dollars; 
 
AND THAT Council authorizes staff to enter into negotiations with Westcorp Properties 
Inc. with respect to a lease agreement for the operation and maintenance of the 
Queensway Marina; 
 
AND FURTHER THAT staff report back to Council with the draft lease agreement for 
Council’s consideration. 

Staff has been working with Westcorp Properties Inc. staff to finalize the terms of the 
agreement and have developed the attached Licence and Management Agreement for 
Council’s consideration.  The terms of the agreement follow the terms set out in the Request 
For Proposal and the bid accepted by the City. 

223



City Manager 
April 3, 2013 
Page 2 of 3 Pages 

 

 
The general terms and conditions are: 
 

 Westcorp has formed a new company and assigned the agreement to Downtown Marina 
Inc (DMI) 

 The City owns part of the bed of Okanagan Lake.  The City will be Licensing that area 
to DMI for construction of the marina. 

 The City and DMI jointly have a Licence Of Occupation over the remaining area of the 
lake bed owned by the Province. 

 As part of the Agreement, the City has assigned its responsibilities for the Licence Of 
Occupation to DMI. 

 The term of the Agreement is for fifteen (15) years with an option to renew for an 
additional five (5) years. 

 The rent with respect to the City lands will be calculated in accordance with what the 
Province charges for rent for the use of their lands.  In addition, DMI will pay the City 
the annual fees payable to the Province for the Licence Of Occupation plus a 10% 
administrative fee. 

 DMI will be responsible for; 
o Meeting obligations under the Licence Of Occupation; 
o All cleanliness, maintenance, and repairs to the marina; 
o All equipment, signage, and rental equipment; 
o Providing moorage and a ticket booth and use reasonable efforts to negotiate 

fair market rent for the existing commercial passenger ships; 
o Providing a public pier that will have 27 daily public moorage slips with the 

remaining 42 slips being for rental boats, nightly, weekly or longer term 
moorage depending on demand.  The slip mix will be re-visited by DMI and City 
staff every two years and adjusted according to demand; 

o Providing all the public amenities outlined in the Design and Construction 
Agreement; 

o Providing a minimum of nine (9) boats and three (3) personal watercraft for 
rent; 

o Providing a boat fueling service for the general public; 
o Providing a washroom facility for controlled use by DMI staff and customers; 
o Providing and maintaining all necessary insurance; 

 
DMI has been proceeding with the construction of the facility.   

 
Internal Circulation: 
 
Manager, Park and Public Space Projects 
 
Considerations not applicable to this report: 
Existing Policy: 
Financial/Budgetary Considerations: 
Communications Comments: 
Alternate Recommendation: 
Personnel Implications: 
External Agency/Public Comments: 

224



City Manager 
April 3, 2013 
Page 3 of 3 Pages 

 

 
Legal/Statutory Authority: 
Legal/Statutory Procedural Requirements: 
 
 
Submitted by:  
 
 
_________________________________ 
R. Forbes, Manager, Property Manager 
 
 
Approved for inclusion:               D. Edstrom, Acting Director, Real Estate & Building Services 
 

  

225



226



227



228



229



230



231



232



233



234



235



236



237



238



239



240



241



242



243



244



245



246



247



248



249



250



251



252



253



254



255



256



257



258



259



260



261



262



263



264



265



266



267



268



269



270



271



272



273



274



275



276



277



278



279



280



281



282



283



284



285



286



287



288



289



290



291



292



293



294



295



296



297



298



299



300



301



302



303



304



305



Report to Council 
 

 

Date: 

 
March 26, 2013 
 

Rim No. 
 

0600-10 

To:  
 

City Manager 
 

From: 
 

City Clerk 

Subject: 
 

BL10814 – Amendment No. 22 to Traffic Bylaw No. 8120 

 Report Prepared by: Corinne Boback, Legislative Coordinator 

 

Recommendation: 
 
THAT Bylaw No. 10814, being Amendment No. 22 to Traffic Bylaw No. 8120 be adopted. 
 
Purpose:  
 
To consider adoption of Bylaw No. 10814 being Amendment No. 22 to Traffic Bylaw No. 8120. 
 
Background: 
 
Bylaw No. 10814 received first three readings by Council on Monday, March25, 2012.  A copy 
of the Bylaw is attached.  All legislative requirements have been met. 
 
 
 
Submitted by:  
 
 
 
S. Fleming, City Clerk 

306



CITY OF KELOWNA 
 

BYLAW NO. 10814 
 

Amendment No. 22 to Traffic Bylaw No. 8120 
 
 
The Municipal Council of the City of Kelowna, in open meeting assembled, enacts that the 
City of Kelowna Traffic Bylaw No. 8120 be amended as follows: 
 
1. THAT the Index, PART 7 – SIDEWALK/ROADWAY OCCUPANCY PERMITS be amended by 

deleting the following: 
 

“PART 7 - SIDEWALK/ROADWAY OCCUPANCY PERMITS 7-1 
 
7.1 Sidewalk/Roadway Occupancy Permits 7-1” 
 
And replaced with: 
 
“PART 7 - SIDEWALK/ROADWAY OCCUPANCY PERMITS 7-1 
 
7.1 Sidewalk/Roadway Occupancy Permits Excluding Bernard Avenue 7-1 
7.2 Bernard Avenue Sidewalk Program 7-2” 

 
2. AND THAT PART 1 – INTRODUCTION. 1.4 Definitions, 1.4.1 Definitions be amended by 

adding the following in their appropriate location: 
 

“Large Patio Food Only / Large Scope Retail – a patio for any use except the 
consumption of alcohol and has greater use than Small Patio/ Limited Scope Retail.  
 
Patio – Food and Liquor –any patio that allows alcohol to be consumed or that must 
have a Perimeter Structure as required by the Liquor Control Licensing Branch . 
 
Small Patio / Limited Scope Retail – a patio that is used for retail purposes occupying 
less than 6 feet of building frontage or food serving purposes that does not exceed 2 
small tables and 6 chairs total.” 

 
3. AND THAT the title “7.1 Sidewalk/Roadway Occupancy Permits” under PART 7 – 

SIDEWALK/ROADWAY OCCUPANCY PERMITS be deleted and replaced with “7.1 
Sidewalk/Roadway Occupancy Permits Excluding Bernard Avenue”; 

 
4. AND THAT PART 7 – SIDEWALK/ROADWAY OCCUPANCY PERMITS be amended by 

adding a new sub-section in its appropriate location as follows: 
 

 “7.2 Bernard Avenue Sidewalk Program  
 
  7.2 Bernard Avenue Sidewalk Program Fees: 

  
7.2.1 Permit Required. No person may occupy a portion of lane, sidewalk, walkway, 

boulevard, or roadway, hereinafter referred to in this Part as the ‘Bernard Avenue 
Sidewalk Program Permit Area’, for the purposes of temporary tables or seating, or 
both, without first obtaining a Bernard Avenue Sidewalk Program permit from the City 

307



in accordance with the conditions outlined in this Bylaw and the Bernard Avenue 
Sidewalk Program as approved by Council. 

 
Any permit holder who is required to forfeit a security deposit shall be prohibited 
from applying for a future permit, and no application for a permit will be accepted 
from any other person for any establishment to which such a permit holder is 
connected, for a period of one year from the date of the forfeiture, and not until any 
outstanding amount has been reimbursed to the City with respect to the seizure and 
storage of property or equipment seized pursuant to this Bylaw. 

 
 
7.2.2 Application Fee.  Applicants for a Bernard Avenue Sidewalk Program permit shall 

submit a non-refundable application fee as outlined on Schedule "A", at the time of 
application. 

 
 
7.2.3 Permit Expiration.  Bernard Avenue Sidewalk Program permits are as follows: 
 

Seasonal Permits for the use of frontage zone:  issued from May 1st to September 30th.   
Annual Permits for the use of frontage zone:  issued from January 1st to December 31st.   
 
Permit Holders are required to remove all furniture, goods and improvements from the 
permit area during the period it is not being actively used.” 

 
 
7.2.4 Permit Fee.  An applicant for a Bernard Avenue Sidewalk Program permit shall submit 

the required permit fee outlined on Schedule “A” of this bylaw, prior to issuance of 
the permit or in accordance with an invoice received from the City.” 
 
a) Permit Fee Credit -  An applicant for a Bernard Avenue Sidewalk Program permit 

may submit a summary of the costs of patio construction and/or improvements to 
receive a one time credit towards the permit fee.  The credit may be carried over 
one or more years if the amount exceeds the annual permit fee.  The credit will be 
determined as follows: 

  Construction/Improvement costs x (0.50) = Permit Fee Credit    
 
 
5. AND THAT SCHEDULE “A” FEES be amended by adding a new sub-section in its 

appropriate location as follows under PART 7 – SIDEWALK/ROADWAY OCCUPANCY 
PERMITS as follows: 
 
 “Subsection 7.2.2 Bernard Avenue Sidewalk Program Permit Fees 
 
Bernard Avenue Sidewalk Program Permit Application Fee:   
 

New Applications (one time fee) - $250 
Change in Scope - $150 

 
Existing Permit Holders (up to May 01, 2014)  

Renewal Fee (one time fee) – $150.00 
                                 Change in Scope (after May 01, 2014) - $150 
 
 
 

308



Bernard Avenue Sidewalk Program Permit Fees: 
 
200 - 300 Block 2013 and 2014 2015 2016 2017 

Small Patio / Limited Scope Retail 
(Annual Fee) 

$0 $255 $510 $510 

*Large Patio / Food only or Large Scope 
Retail (per square foot per year) 

$0 $2.16 $4.32 $4.32 

*Patio - Food and Liquor (per square 
foot per year) 

$0 $4.32 $8.64 $8.64 

400 Block 2013 and 2014 2015 2016 2017 
Small Patio / Limited Scope Retail 
(Annual Fee) 

$0 $0 $213 $425 

*Large Patio / Food only or Large Scope 
Retail (per square foot per year) 

$0 $0 $1.80 $3.60 

*Patio - Food and Liquor (per square 
foot per year) 

$0 $0 $3.60 $7.20 

500 -550 Block 2013 and 2014 2015 2016 2017 
Small Patio / Limited Scope Retail 
(Annual Fee) 

$0 $0 $170 $340 

*Large Patio / Food only or Large Scope 
Retail (per square foot per year) 

$0 $0 $1.44 $2.88 

*Patio - Food and Liquor (per square 
foot per year) 

$0 $0 $2.88 $5.76 

560 - 600 Block 2013 and 2014 2015 2016 2017 
Small Patio / Limited Scope Retail 
(Annual Fee) 

$0 $170 $340 $340 

*Large Patio / Food only or Large Scope 
Retail (per square foot per year) 

$0 $1.44 $2.88 $2.88 

*Patio - Food and Liquor (per square 
foot per year) 

$0 $2.88 $5.76 $5.76 

 
* The minimum fee will be the Small Patio annual fee or the cost per square foot per 
year whichever is greater. 
 
Discount 
For the first year rent is due, the following discounts will apply: 

 Patios that are constructed for less than $2,500 receive $0 credit.   

 Patios that are constructed for more than $2,500 but less than $5,000 receive a 
50% credit.   

 Patios that are constructed for more than $5,000 receive a 100% credit. 
 
Subsection 7.2.3 Security Deposit for Bernard Avenue Sidewalk Program Permit 
 
Bernard Avenue Sidewalk Program Permit Security Deposit:  $500.00” 

 
6. This bylaw may be cited for all purposes as "Bylaw No. 10814, being Amendment 
 No.22 to City of Kelowna Traffic Bylaw No. 8120." 
 
7. This bylaw shall come into full force and effect and is binding on all persons as of the 

date of adoption. 
 
 
 
 
 

309



Read a first, second and third time by the Municipal Council this 25th day of March, 2013.    
 
Adopted by the Municipal Council of the City of Kelowna this   
 
 

 
Mayor 

 
 

City Clerk 
 

310


	Agenda
	2. Minutes - March 18 PM Regular Meeting.pdf
	Back to Agenda

	2. Minutes - March 25 PM Regular Meeting.pdf
	Back to Agenda

	3.1 Rotary Centre for the Arts - Written Presentation.pdf
	Back to Agenda

	3.1 Rotary Centre for the Arts - Monthly News No. 97.pdf
	Back to Agenda

	4.1 Z12-0039_Council Supplemental.docx
	Back to Agenda

	4.1 Z12-0039_Supplemental attachment.pdf
	Back to Agenda

	4.1.1 BL10817_-_OCP12-0006-_Hiawatha_-_Lakeshore_Road[1].docx
	Back to Agenda

	4.1.2 BL10812-TA12-0007_-_Text_Amendment_New_CD_24_Zone_in_BL8000[1].docx
	Back to Agenda

	4.1.3 BL10818_Z12-0039_Westcorp_On_The_Lake_Inc_Lakeshore_3787_3791_3795[1].docx
	Back to Agenda

	5.1 Report to Council - Supplemental Report for BL10837 and BL10838.docx
	Back to Agenda

	5.1 BL10837_OCP13-0001_Pheasant_1242-1244[1].docx
	Back to Agenda

	5.1.1 Report to Council - Supplemental Report for BL10837 and BL10838.docx
	Back to Agenda

	5.1.1 BL10838_Z13-0002_Pheasant_1242-1244[1].docx
	Back to Agenda

	5.2 Z13-0012 - Council.docx
	Back to Agenda

	5.2 z13-0012 attachments.pdf
	Back to Agenda

	5.2.1 BL10839_Z13-0012_Wilden_Various_Addresses[2].docx
	Back to Agenda

	5.3 OCP12-0015_ Council_Supplemental.docx
	Back to Agenda

	5.3 ocp12-0015 attachments.pdf
	Back to Agenda

	5.3 DP12-0198_DVP12-0199_Permit.doc
	Back to Agenda

	5.3.1 BL10825_-_OCP12-0015_-_0754028_BC_Ltd_Inc_-_Doyle_and_St._Paul[2].docx
	Back to Agenda

	5.4 Z13-0003 Report to Council.docx
	Back to Agenda

	5.4 z13-0003 attachments.pdf
	Back to Agenda

	5.4.1 BL10832-OCP13-002-Pier_Mac_Petroleum-_Quail_Ridge_Blvd[1].docx
	Back to Agenda

	5.4.2 BL10833-_TA13-0004_-_Amendment_to_CD15_-_Airport_Business_Park[1].docx
	Back to Agenda

	5.4.3 BL10834_Z13-0003_Quail_Ridge_1760_2025_2137[1].docx
	Back to Agenda

	5.5 BL10703 OCP11-0018 JB Developments Ltd Inc No 0634315  373-375 Fizet Avenue.docx
	Back to Agenda

	5.5.1 BL10704 Z11-0090 JB Developments Ltd  373-375 Fizet Ave.docx
	Back to Agenda

	5.5.2 DP12-0171 - Council.docx
	Back to Agenda

	5.5.2 DP12-0171_Council Attachments.pdf
	Back to Agenda

	5.6 Z10-0091 RTC Extension Report Oct 2012 to Oct 2013.docx
	Back to Agenda

	5.6 z10-0091 attachment.pdf
	Back to Agenda

	6.1 Report to Council - Bylaw Adoption BL10791 and BL10792.docx
	Back to Agenda

	6.1 BL10791.pdf
	Back to Agenda

	6.1.1 Report to Council - Bylaw Adoption BL10791 and BL10792.docx
	Back to Agenda

	6.1.1 BL10792-1.pdf
	Back to Agenda

	6.2 Report to Council - Bylaw Adoption BL10796.docx
	Back to Agenda

	6.2 BL10796 - TA12-0013 - Text Amendments to Zoning Bylaw No. 8000 - Carriage House.docx
	Back to Agenda

	6.3 Report to Council - Bylaw Adoption BL10801.docx
	Back to Agenda

	6.3 BL10801- TA12-0010 - Text Amendments to Zoning Bylaw No. 8000 - Commercial Zones.docx
	Back to Agenda

	7.1 CR Downtown Marina April 8.docx
	Back to Agenda

	7.1 Licence and Management Agreement.pdf
	Back to Agenda

	8.1 Adoption Report - BL10814.docx
	Back to Agenda

	8.1 BL10814_-_Amendment_No._22_to_Traffic_Bylaw_No._8120[1].docx
	Back to Agenda


